% RAMSEY-WASHINGTON
METRO WATERSHED DISTRICT

October 2022
Board Packet



*kkhkkhkkkhkkhkhk

Agenda

AKEXKEKEIEKXEIEIETXEALXLXKXX



This month’s meeting will be held at the District office (2665 Noel Drive, Little Canada, MN) but also via
the video conferencing platform Zoom. Board members, staff, consultants, and general public will be able
to join in person OR via video and/or phone. In order to continue to be sensitive to the COVID-19 pandemic,
we may need to limit the number of public in the board room. The public will be able to listen to meeting
but not participate with the exception of the visitor comments portion of the agenda. Instructions for

Regular Board Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, October 5, 2022
7:00 PM

joining in on the Zoom meeting can be found after the agenda.

1.

10.

Call to Order — 6:30 PM
Approval of Agenda (pg. 3)

Consent Agenda: To all be approved with one motion unless removed from consent agenda for

discussion.
A. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes September 7, 2022 (pg. 7)
B. Treasurer’s Report and Bill List (pg. 16)
C. Permit Program
i. 22-26 3M Avenue R Maintenance, Maplewood (pg. 27)
ii. 22-27 3M Lake Culvert Replacement, Maplewood (pg. 30)
iii. 22-28 Pioneer Commons, Little Canada (pg. 34)
D. Stewardship Grant Program
i. 21-39 CS Washington County Community Development Agency Budget
Extension Request (pg. 38)
ii. 22-08 CS Battle Creek Middle School Budget Extension Request (pg. 39)
Visitor Comments (limited to 4 minutes each)
Permit Program
A. Applications
i. 22-25 Xcel Energy Maplewood Gas Plant Variance, Maplewood (pg. 41)
B. Enforcement Action Report (pg. 52)
Stewardship Grant Program
A. Applications
i. 22-29 CS Woodbury Enhanced Street Sweeping (pg. 55)
B. Budget Status Update (pg. 118)
Action Items
A. Watershed Excellence Award Winners (pg.120)
Attorney Report
Board Issues, Policies and Operation (for discussion at meeting)
A. Action Log: Additions, deletions
B. Manager Topics
New Reports and/or Presentations
A. District Inspection Standardization and Mobile Data Collection Update (pg. 122)
B. Woodbury Target Store Targeted Retrofit Scope Summary (pg. 148)

NOTE: Overflow parking is available at Little Canada City Hall Parking Lot



Board Meeting Agenda Page 2

11. Administrator’s Report (pg. 153)
A. Meetings Attended
B. Upcoming Meetings and Dates

C. Ongoing Project Update
D. WEFTEC Conference
12. Project and Program Status Reports (pg. 156)

Project Feasibility Studies

A.

T I 6o mMmoO0®

J.

Interim Emergency Response Planning

Kohlman Creek Flood Risk Feasibility Study

Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake Diversion Feasibility Study
County Ditch 17 Improvements Feasibility Study

Phalen Village Feasibility Study

Ames Lake Area Flood Risk Reduction Planning Study
Owasso Basin/North Star Estates Improvements

Double Driveway Pond Optimization Study

Carver Ponds Improvement Study

South Metro Mississippi River TSS TMDL

Monitoring Water Quality and Special Projects

K. Annual Water Quality Report Assistance
Research Projects
L.  Kohlman Permeable Weir Test System
M. Shallow Lake Aeration Study
Capital Improvements
N. Target Store Stormwater Retrofit Projects
O. Targeted Retrofit Projects
P. Stewardship Grant Program — Street Sweeping
Q. Lake Emily Subwatershed Regional BMP
CIP Project Repair and Maintenance
R. Beltline Five Year Inspection
S.  District Inspection Standardization
New Technology Report
T. Miyawaki Mini-Forest Assessment
Program Updates
U. Natural Resources Program Update
V. Public Involvement and Education Program Update

W. Communications Program and Website Update

X.

Citizen Advisory Committee Update

13. Manager Comments and Next Month’s Meeting
A. Board Action Log (pg. 184)

14. Adjourn



RAMSEY-WASHINGTON

METRO WATERSHED DISTRICT

PuBLic NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, October 5, 2022
*¥5:00 PM and 7:00 PM
Hybrid Meeting: In-Person and Web Conference

*PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (“District”) Board of Managers will conduct a tour of various sites
and projects within the District on Wednesday, October 5, 2022, departing from the District office, 2665 Noel Drive, Little Canada, MN 55117 at
5:00 p.m. and returning around 6:30 p.m.

*PLEASE FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that the regular meeting of the Board of Managers will be held on October 5, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. This is a one-time
departure from its regular meeting time of 6:30 p.m. to accommodate the aforementioned District tour.

This month’s meeting will be held at the District office (2665 Noel Drive, Little Canada, MN) AND via the video conferencing platform Zoom. Board
members, staff, consultants, and general public will be able to join in person OR via Zoom. In order to continue to be sensitive to the COVID-19
pandemic, we may need to limit the number of public in the board room area. The public will be able to listen to meeting but not participate with
the exception of the visitor comments portion of the agenda. Visitor comment may be given in person or via Zoom. Instructions for joining in on the
Zoom meeting can be found below.

To access the meeting via webcast, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83111140717?pwd=bUhRUOIYMTB30G50Vk9QMHAxdzhyUT09

The meeting room will open at 6:50 pm with the meeting starting at 7:00 pm. To connect to audio you may choose to use your computer audio
options or you may use your mobile device to call. The phone access number is (312) 626-6799. The Meeting ID is 831 1114 0717. The meeting
password is 808082. If you have any questions, please contact Tina Carstens at tina.carstens@rwmwd.org.



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83111140717?pwd=bUhRU0IyMTB3OG5OVk9QMHAxdzhyUT09
mailto:tina.carstens@rwmwd.org

*kkhkkhkkkhkkhkhk

consent
Agenda

AKEXKEKEIEKXEIEIETXAXRXX



Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting
September 7, 2022

The Regular Meeting of September 7, 2022, was held at the District Office Board Room, 2665 Noel Drive, Little
Canada, Minnesota, and via Zoom web conferencing, at 6:30 p.m. A video recording of the meeting can be found at
https://youtu.be/FT9rRTwcwK4. Video time stamps included after each agenda item in minutes.

PRESENT: ABSENT:

Larry Swope, President Matt Kramer, Manager
Dianne Ward, Vice President

Dr. Pam Skinner, Secretary

Val Eisele, Treasurer

ALSO PRESENT:

Tina Carstens, District Administrator Paige Ahlborg, Project Manager

Brad Lindaman, Barr Engineering Mary Fitzgerald, District Inspector
Dave Vlasin, Project Coordinator Laurann Kirschner, Attorney for District
Nicole Bolduc, Hamline University Student Cory Tellers, Xcel Energy

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by President Swope at 6:30 p.m.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (1:15)
Motion: Manager Eisele moved, Manager Ward seconded, to approve the agenda as presented.

Further discussion: Manager Eisele referenced an email and asked if that would be discussed. Tina Carstens noted
that could be covered under Manager Comments.

A roll call vote was performed:

Manager Skinner aye
Manager Eisele aye
Manager Ward aye
President Swope aye

Motion carried unanimously.

3. CONSENT AGENDA (2:10)
B. Treasurer’s Report and Bill List
C. Permit Program

i 22-24 — Impact Apartments, Oakdale
D. 2022 Targeted Retrofit Projects — Change Order No. 3



about:blank

Manager Eisele requested to remove Item A from the Consent Agenda for further discussion.

Motion: Manager Ward moved, Manager Eisele seconded, to approve the consent agenda as amended.

Further discussion: Manager Eisele referenced the McDonald’s item and stated that he was curious about the
budget. President Swope stated that he had questions about that too and it was a closed-out permit where funds

were returned.

A roll call vote was performed:

Manager Skinner aye
Manager Eisele aye
Manager Ward aye
President Swope aye

Motion carried unanimously.

A. Approval of Minutes from August 3, 2022

Manager Eisele noted that he did not recall saying that residents are expected to provide the manpower for
sandbagging and would like that statement removed. Tina Carstens confirmed that she could remove that
statement.

Motion: Manager Ward moved, Manager Eisele seconded, to approve the minutes from August 3, 2022 as
amended.

A roll call vote was performed:

Manager Skinner aye
Manager Eisele aye
Manager Ward aye
President Swope aye

Motion carried unanimously.

4. VISITOR COMMENTS (5:33)
No comments.

5. PERMIT PROGRAM (5:55)

A. Applications

Permit #22-25: Xcel Energy Maplewood Gas Plant — Maplewood

Mary Fitzgerald presented the request from Xcel Energy for repairs to their existing gas plant. She noted that there
are emergency repairs and repairs to bring the station up to code. She noted that the request includes a wetland
variance request for truck access. She stated that the improvements to stormwater will be an upgrade from the
existing site conditions.

Manager Skinner referenced the permanently disturbed wetland buffer in the amount of .29 acres and asked if that
would be made up somewhere else on the site. Tina Carstens replied that typically if there is a utility or significant
safety concern a buffer disturbance has been approved. She stated that the stormwater improvements would
offset the buffer loss.

Page 2 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



Manager Skinner referenced the incidental wetland determination and asked if that would be impacted. Mary
Fitzgerald confirmed that the incidental wetland would be impacted. Manager Skinner expressed concern because
even the incidental wetland is of high quality. She noted that there would also be wetland buffer loss on a high-
quality wetland.

Tina Carstens stated that the incidental wetland is under WCA and was determined to be created without intent to
create a wetland.

Manager Skinner stated that there are not enough places to make quality wetland in the District, but this is a great
place to create a wetland as these are high quality and this will result in a loss of one of those wetlands. She stated
that she may not support the request for that reason.

Manager Ward asked what other options were reviewed to avoid the loss of wetland buffer. Paige Ahlborg stated
that she does not have all the background but is aware of the urgency for these repairs and upgrades. She stated
that the District follows the WCA guidelines for incidental and therefore if a wetland is considered incidental, it
does not have the protections given by WCA.

Manager Skinner referenced the disturbed buffer and asked if there were a policy in place that would require that
to be made up in another area. She stated that the District has a budget to create wetlands and perhaps the
District could preserve that incidental wetland to create an expanded wetland. Tina Carstens stated that typically a
gas station or gas plant would not be an ideal location for wetlands. She stated that staff would not find this to be
an ideal location because of the land use.

Paige Ahlborg commented that currently the water draining through the buffer and into the wetland is sediment
laden and dirty and therefore this will provide an improvement even with the buffer disturbance because of the
stormwater treatment provided.

Manager Eisele stated that he was equally concerned but it seems that the wetland buffer would be disturbed to
ensure that if there was spillage, it would not directly go to the wetland. Paige Ahlborg confirmed and noted that
additional spill containment would be added during this upgrade.

Tina Carstens stated that she understands the concerns but noted that because of the land use and safety reasons,
she would not want to hold up safety improvements that are needed for the site.

President Swope stated that Barr Engineering is the firm for the applicant but also reviews the District permits. He
asked for input on how that is managed procedurally as the firm would essentially be reviewing its own work. Brad
Lindaman confirmed that this happens from time to time. He noted that Barr discusses this with Tina Carstens and
ensures the application form is submitted by someone other than Barr Engineering. He stated that Barr did assist
with the wetland portion of this project. He stated that the District has staff to ensure that there is no conflict of
interest.

President Swope asked for details on the incidental wetland. Paige Ahlborg stated that Nicole Soderholm did walk
the site with someone from BWSR. Tina Carstens stated that the Notice of Decision.

President Swope recognized the concern for the wetland but noted that these are needed safety improvements
and the District has to follow its procedures for incidental wetlands.

Manager Skinner asked if it could be explored more as to how this site could do better to create wetlands. She was
reluctant to approve anything that would involve a loss. She stated that she would like to see a different solution.

Page 3 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



President Swope asked if the wetland could be moved but acknowledged that it seems the whole site is going to be
used. Tina Carstens stated that it is not within the District policy to require that.

Manager Ward stated that perhaps that would be an option to require that for the loss of the buffer.
Manager Ward commented that this is presented as an exception for safety but did not see timeframes.

Manager Skinner commented that she would be voting against the request. Tina Carstens asked for clarification on
whether that would be opposition to the permit or the variance request, or both. Manager Skinner commented
that she would oppose the variance.

Mary Fitzgerald commented that the existing facilities are already in the wetland buffer and therefore a variance
request would be needed no matter what.

Manager Skinner asked if the buffer could be expanded in another area to meet the average. Mary Fitzgerald was
unsure where the property lines fall and whether there would be room for expansion. Tina Carstens commented
that the District does not consider what is currently in place disturbance because the District has changed the rules
since the site was created.

Manager Eisele asked if other considerations were reviewed in the layout and mitigation of this risk. Brad
Lindaman stated that he was unsure but asked another member of Barr whether they reviewed other areas in
which the disturbance could occur or where expansion could occur in return for the loss of buffer. He noted that a
review of the perimeter of the site was done but it was limiting because of the railroad and roadway. He stated
that if the Board denies this request, the applicant would most likely reduce the size of the holding area for spill
response, which may not be big enough and could delay the project. He stated that the only reason the buffer is
being lost is to create the storage volume.

Tina Carstens clarified that the incidental wetland is not shown on the District wetland map and does not have a
high quality designation and a wetland that will not be disturbed with this project is shown as Manage 1 on the
map.

Manager Skinner hoped that the applicant could do something better.

Cory Tellers, Xcel, provided background information on the purpose of the site which was created in the 1950s. He
stated that the codes and variances of the 1950s are not the same as they are today, and they are attempting to
bring the site up to the current standards. He stated that they need a new truck loading system that will fill
propane bullets and the code requires that facility be 75 feet from any buildings, which it currently is not. He
stated that the new code also requires a distance of 100 feet from the road. He stated that with the current
footprint of the facility this was the only option that would meet those standards. He noted that it was a wet
spring, so there was some standing water in the incidental area which is a result of the grading that was done in the
1950s. He stated that when they reviewed the site recently the incidental wetland was completely dry. He stated
that the grading of the site is not the best and erosion has not helped that, therefore they are attempting to be
proactive. He stated that if a spill were to occur now, it would pool under the tank which is a fire hazard, therefore
they will be completing some grading to ensure that a spill would properly drain. He also provided details on the
stormwater treatment that would occur.

Manager Skinner commented that she is bothered by the loss of wetland buffer and asked if this could be
redesigned to create replacement of that wetland buffer in another area.

Mr. Tellers stated that the purpose of the buffer is to have a strip between the facility and wetland and was unsure
how they could create buffer on another side of the wetland in an area that is already native. He stated that they

Page 4 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



are constrained with options because of the size of the facility and its footprint as the rules of the District have
changed since the site was created. He stated that if there was a leak the propane would vaporize unless is it very
cold, under which conditions the leaked propane would follow the designated path into the capture basin as
proposed.

President Swope stated that essentially the District would not be losing anything.

Manager Skinner commented that they would be losing the incidental wetland and the buffer. Tina Carstens
confirmed that there would be loss of the low spot, but the applicant would be building another low spot.

Manager Eisele stated that he believes that the buffer loss would be a result of the creation of the fill pond and the
incidental wetland would be the truck loading area. He stated that the buffer reduction would provide an area for
containment if there were a spill.

Manager Ward commented that is the problem of Xcel and not the District. Tina Carstens commented that the
pond needs to be in that location because of the proximity to the facility. She stated that the applicant has stated
that in order to create more buffer, they would be disturbing an already natural area on the other sides of the
wetland.

Manager Eisele stated that the holding pond will provide benefit. Tina Carstens stated that incidental wetland was
never rated high quality as it is incidental and therefore is not included on the plans.

Paige Ahlborg stated that perhaps staff could work with the natural resource specialists to improve the natural
areas around the wetland to address the concerns of Manager Ward. Mr. Tellers confirmed that they would be
more than willing to do that. He stated that they believe this is the best path forward and are open to
improvement.

Manager Ward asked why this needs to be done tonight rather than postponed. Mr. Tellers replied that the truck
loading is not in a working stage, and they need to get that moving prior to the winter when the facility would be
needed.

Tina Carstens stated that if the decision were to table, the additional information requested would need to be
specified. She noted that additional conditions could be added as well.

Manager Eisele stated that perhaps a condition could be added about working with staff on the buffers. He asked
if Xcel is trying to get the work done before winter. Mr. Tellers replied that they are trying to get the truck loading
done this year before winter. He stated that the catch basin pond would not be created under next year, but they
submitted the entire project as a whole.

Manager Eisele asked if approval could be done for the truck loading and then the Board could ask Xcel to come
back for the remainder which involves the buffer disturbance. Mr. Tellers confirmed that he would agree to that.

Laurann Kirschner stated that the variance request should be tabled pending additional information. Tina Carstens
confirmed that if the variance is tabled, and the permit is approved, the applicant could move forward with the

work that does not involve disturbance of the buffer.

Motion: Manager Eisele moved, Manager Ward seconded, to table the variance request and approve Permit #22-
25.

A roll call vote was performed:

Page 5 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



Manager Skinner nay

Manager Eisele aye
Manager Ward aye
President Swope aye

Motion carried unanimously.

Laurann Kirschner stated that the tabled variance would need to be considered within 60 days or it would become
approved, therefore it should be presented at the next meeting. Tina Carstens asked and received confirmation
that the applicant can authorize extension of that review period.

B. Monthly Enforcement Report

During August, 23 notices were sent to address: install/maintain inlet protection (2), install/maintain perimeter
control (9), sweep streets (2), stabilize exposed soils (2), remove discharged sediment (2), implement property
dewatering (1), install/maintain permanent BMPs (1), install slope/ditch checks (1), install/maintain energy
dissipation (2), and complete required site inspections (1).

6. STEWARDSHIP GRANT PROGRAM (52:55)
A. Applications - None

B. Budget Status Update
Paige Ahlborg provided a brief update.

Manager Ward noted that this item is under budget every year and asked if the budget should be reduced in order
to reduce the levy. Paige Ahlborg stated that staff is looking to offer a program to the cities for enhanced street
sweeping that would use funds as well. Tina Carstens noted that the budget is variable because last year almost all
the funds were spent. She noted that the funds do carry over so if less funds are used, less are levied.

7. ACTION ITEMS (56:16)
A. 2023 Preliminary Budget and Levy Public Hearing
i Approval of 2023 Preliminary Budget and Levy Certification to Ramsey and Washington Counties —
Resolution 22-10
President Swope opened the public hearing.

Tina Carstens stated that the last time the budget was reviewed there was a proposed 12 percent increase to the
levy which has been decreased to seven percent. She provided an overview of the budget broken down per
program and plan goals.

Manager Skinner reiterated the desire to keep the levy stable or increase slightly.

President Swope agreed but noted that there is also high inflation and projects still need to be completed. He
believed that this does follow that slower increase, compared to the increases proposed by some cities or counties
this year.

Manager Ward commended staff for carefully vetting projects and managing funds well. She stated that people’s
taxes will go up because the market value has increased and not solely because of levies.

Tina Carstens explained that even though the levy is increasing, the tax rate is decreasing because of the increase in
market value. She highlighted some of the items that are budgeted conservatively and will be known in the coming
months before the final budget and levy are certified. She highlighted the capital improvement projects items that
are budgeted.

Page 6 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



There were no comments from the public.
President Swope closed the public hearing.

Motion: Manager Skinner moved, Manager Ward seconded, to approve the draft budget for purposes of the
preliminary levy and approve Resolution 22-01.

A roll call vote was performed:

Manager Skinner aye
Manager Eisele aye
Manager Ward aye
President Swope aye

Motion carried unanimously.

8. ATTORNEY REPORT (1:09:00)
Laurann Kirschner provided an overview of the work her firm did for the District including ensuring the notice was
provided for the public hearing and contract documents for projects.

President Swope asked if there was any feedback on the appointment of Board members that was previously
discussed. Laurann Kirschner replied that there has not been any further instruction.

9. BOARD ISSUES, POLICIES, AND OPERATION (FOR DISCUSSION AT MEETING) (1:10:34)

A. Action Log: Additions, Deletions, Purpose

Manager Eisele stated that he appreciated the details and content that was added. He asked if others read the
report in the email regarding requested changes to the drainage law. He stated that it seems to be a proposed set
of work that he is not familiar with. He stated that it seems that the working group looks at the big changes to see
if there is an impact downstream, which seems in addition to the review the District does.

Tina Carstens commented that there are MAWD representatives that attend the work group meetings to represent
the watersheds. She stated that there was legislation proposed that was a major concern to the working group
and, in the opinion of MAWD, that legislation would delay the maintenance needs for ditch work that could impact
property owners. She commented that this is not a public notice but discusses the notification requirements. She
commented that the District does not manage ditches like places outside of the metro area, and therefore does not
fall into that category. She noted that if desired, she could provide more context at the next meeting. Manager
Eisele confirmed that it would be helpful to have a paragraph or so of information in the Administrator Report.

B. Board Member Roles and Responsibilities

Manager Eisele stated that perhaps a workshop had an agenda item devoted to this purpose. He stated that he
would be more interested in the different roles and responsibilities such as Treasurer, Secretary, etc. He noted
that would allow him to better understand what he should or should not be doing. Tina Carstens confirmed that
she is working to develop some written information that will be presented to the Board.

10. NEW REPORTS AND/OR PRESENTATIONS (1:22:25)
None.

11. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT (1:22:31)
A. Meetings Attended
No comments.

Page 7 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



B. Upcoming Meetings and Dates
No comments.

C. Ongoing Project Update
President Swope asked for details on the Ponds of Battle Creek. Tina Carstens stated that she has been in talks
with the County and provided a brief update.

She also provided an update on the potential boundary change process for West Vadnais Lake.
Tina Carstens asked if there are conflicts with any potential Board tour dates and the Managers provided input.

D. MAWD Items for Discussion
Tina Carstens provided an update on the summer tour that she attended.

She provided details on the proposed MAWD changes to the dues structure and the strategic plan. She noted that
MAWD would like a comment letter related to the strategic plan.

President Swope commented that there is a mix of strategy and short-term tactics. He commented that he was
happy to see a lot of information and direction towards more transparency. He stated that many of the items are
assigned to the President, Vice President, etc. and believed that there should be further review into delegation of

those duties to ensure those officers are not overrun with meetings.

Manager Ward commented that she would support a general letter of support encouraging the group to continue
to work on and refine the plan.

Manager Eisele stated that the committees formed do not seem to be unique to drive the initiatives. He agreed
that the plan is directionally correct but is not necessarily measurable.

President Swope commented that it is a good first step.

Motion: Manager Eisele moved, Manager Ward seconded, to direct staff to draft a letter of general support for the
MAWD strategic plan, incorporating the comments of the Board.

A roll call vote was performed:

Manager Skinner aye
Manager Eisele aye
Manager Ward aye
President Swope aye

Motion carried unanimously.

12. PROJECT AND PROGRAM STATUS REPORTS (1:51:25)
A. Interim Emergency Response Planning
Kohlman Creek Flood Risk Feasibility Study
Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake Diversion Feasibility Study
County Ditch 17 Improvements Feasibility Study
Phalen Village Feasibility Study
Ames Lake Area Flood Risk Reduction Planning Study
Owasso Basin/North Star Estates Improvements

OMMOOw

Page 8 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



Double Driveway Pond Optimization Study
Carver Pond Improvement Study

South Metro Mississippi River TSS TMDL
Annual Water Quality Report Assistance
Kohlman Permeable Weir Test System

Shallow Lake Aeration Study

Target Store Stormwater Retrofit Projects
Targeted Retrofit Projects

Stewardship Grant Program — Street Sweeping
Woodbury Target Stormwater Retrofits

Lake Emily Subwatershed Regional BMP
Beltline Five Year Inspection

District Inspection Standardization

CIP Maintenance and Repair Project 2022
Natural Resources Program Update

Public Involvement and Education Program Update
Communications Program and Website Update

Xs<cHwmIPpOPOZZIrAS— I

President Swope commented that he was happy to see the lake levels monitoring integration page on the website
working its way forward.

Manager Ward asked if the agenda could be similar to this format of the report. Tina Carstens confirmed that she
could make that change.

Manager Eisele asked the feedback on the response time for Item A. Brad Lindaman stated that some of these
sites have longer response time which provides an opportunity for sandbagging while some sites are prone to flash
flooding and therefore cannot be protected. He stated that they are working with the cities to share that
information as it is the responsibility of the cities to act upon the plans and make necessary decisions.

Manager Eisele referenced Item J and stated that it seems there is not the data to complete the assessment. Tina
Carstens commented that the District does have the data but needs to complete that assessment. She stated that
data will help to guide the District to determine if the requirements are being met.

Manager Eisele referenced Item P and asked if he could find out more information. Tina Carstens confirmed that
she has data that she can share with him.

13. MANAGER COMMENTS AND NEXT MONTH’S MEETING (1:57:33)

A. Action Log
No comments.

14. ADJOURN
Motion: Manager Skinner moved, Manager Eisele seconded, to adjourn the meeting at 8:28 p.m. Motion carried
unanimously.

Page 9 September 7, 2022, RWMWD Minutes
Regular Board Meeting



RWMWD BUDGET STATUS REPORT
Administrative & Program Budget
Fiscal Year 2022

9/30/2022
Current Current
Account Original Budget Month Year-to-Date Budget Percent
Budget Category Budget Item \umk Budget Transfers Expenses Expenses Balan of Budget
Manager Per diems 4355 $8,500.00 - 450.00 1,409.10 $7,090.90 16.58%
Manager expenses 4360 4,000.00 - - - 4,000.00 0.00%
Committees Committee/Bd Mtg. Exp. 4365 3,500.00 - 273.84 3,124.00 376.00 89.26%
Sub-Total: Managers/Committees: $16,000.00 $0.00 $723.84 $4,533.10 $11,466.90 28.33%
Employees Staff salary/taxes/benefits 4010 1,660,000.00 - 189,191.49 1,259,960.02 400,039.98 75.90%
Employee expenses 4020 15,000.00 - 834.17 5,605.17 9,394.83 37.37%
District training & education 4350 75,000.00 - 2,524.50 22,510.31 52,489.69 30.01%
Sub-Total: Employees: $1,750,000.00 $0.00 $192,550.16 | $1,288,075.50 $461,924.50 73.60%
Administration/ GIS system maint. & equip. 4170 10,000.00 - 165.00 2,706.02 7,293.98 27.06%
Office Data Base/GIS Maintenance 4171 40,000.00 - - 98.94 39,901.06 0.25%
Equipment maintenance 4305 3,000.00 - - 152.69 2,847.31 5.09%
Telephone 4310 4,000.00 - 59.34 534.06 3,465.94 13.35%
Office supplies 4320 7,000.00 - 553.08 5,157.72 1,842.28 73.68%
IT/Internet/Web Site/Software Lic. 4325 75,000.00 - 6,469.70 58,479.61 16,520.39 77.97%
Postage 4330 3,000.00 - - 962.62 2,037.38 32.09%
Printing/copying 4335 5,000.00 - 698.00 3,666.40 1,333.60 73.33%
Dues & publications 4338 11,000.00 - 2,119.00 11,188.94 (188.94) 101.72%
Janitorial/Trash Service 4341 15,000.00 - 294.04 7,194.39 7,805.61 47.96%
Utilities/Bldg.Contracts 4342 30,000.00 - 91.50 8,371.10 21,628.90 27.90%
Bldg/Site Maintenance 4343 150,000.00 - 73,683.43 94,932.06 55,067.94 63.29%
Miscellaneous 4390 5,000.00 - - - 5,000.00 0.00%
Insurance 4480 55,000.00 - - 53,156.00 1,844.00 96.65%
Office equipment 4703 150,000.00 - 4,669.98 11,587.79 138,412.21 7.73%
Vehicle lease, maintenance 4810-40 20,000.00 - 943.47 5,565.61 14,434.39 27.83%
Sub-Total: Administration/Office: $583,000.00 $0.00 $89,746.54 $263,753.95 $319,246.05 45.24%
Consultants/ Auditor/Accounting 4110 70,000.00 - 1,557.19 49,242.18 20,757.82 70.35%
Outside Services Engineering-administration 4121 125,000.00 - 5,029.00 58,382.50 66,617.50 46.71%
Engineering-permit I&E 4122 10,000.00 - 23.00 3,326.50 6,673.50 33.27%
Engineering-eng. review 4123 60,000.00 - 3,750.50 52,867.00 7,133.00 88.11%
Engineering-permit review 4124 55,000.00 - 6,078.00 38,039.50 16,960.50 69.16%
Project Feasibility Studies 4129 410,000.00 - 27,133.26 234,732.98 175,267.02 57.25%
Attorney-permits 4130 10,000.00 - - - 10,000.00 0.00%
Attorney-general 4131 40,000.00 - 5,019.60 14,489.70 25,510.30 36.22%
Outside Consulting Services 4160 20,000.00 - - - 20,000.00 0.00%
Sub-Total: Consultants/Outside Services: $800,000.00 $0.00 $48,590.55 $451,080.36 $348,919.64 56.39%
Programs Educational programming 4370 75,000.00 - 3,571.69 30,002.67 44,997.33 40.00%
Communications & Marketing 4371 50,000.00 - 84.00 28,700.05 21,299.95 57.40%
Events 4372 46,000.00 - 766.63 46,837.22 (837.22) 101.82%
Water QM-Engineering 4520-30 180,000.00 - 49,281.57 183,364.45 (3,364.45) 101.87%
Project operations 4650 200,000.00 - 2,120.70 126,585.59 73,414.41 63.29%
SLMP/TMDL Studies 4661 125,000.00 - 3,087.00 16,757.00 108,243.00 13.41%
Natural Resources/Keller Creek 4670-72 120,000.00 - 27,227.95 93,931.99 26,068.01 78.28%
Outside Prog.Support/Weed Mgmt. 44683 57,000.00 - - 17,369.33 39,630.67 30.47%
Research Projects 4695 225,000.00 - 4,633.58 76,301.27 148,698.73 33.91%
Health and Safety Program 4697 3,000.00 - 84.80 3,663.18 (663.18) 122.11%
Sub-Total: Programs: $1,081,000.00 $0.00 $90,857.92 $623,512.75 $457,487.25 57.68%
GENERAL FUND TOTAL $4,230,000.00 $0.00 $422,469.01 $2,630,955.66 $1,599,044.34 62.20%
CIP's CIP Project Repair & Maintenance 516 1,500,000.00 - 55,833.49 997,244.51 502,755.49 66.48%
Targeted Retrofit Projects 518 1,500,000.00 - 38,131.81 331,801.79 1,168,198.21 22.12%
Flood Risk Reduction Fund 520 5,200,000.00 - 94.50 24,911.94 5,175,088.06 0.48%
Debt Services-96-97 Beltline/MM/Battle Creek 526 394,710.00 - - 393,040.40 1,669.60 99.58%
Stewardship Grant Program Fund 529 1,000,000.00 - 58,386.12 194,969.83 805,030.17 19.50%
Wetland Restoration Projects 540 500,000.00 - - - 500,000.00 0.00%
CIP BUDGET TOTAL $10,094,710.00 - $152,445.92 | $1,941,968.47 $8,152,741.53 19.24%
TOTAL BUDGET $14,324,710.00 $0.00 $574,914.93 $4,572,924.13 $9,751,785.87 31.92%
Current Fund Balances:
Beginning Fund Fund Year to date Current Month Year to Date Fund Balance
Fund: Balance @ 12/31/21 Transfers Revenue Expenses Expense @ 09/30/22
101 - General Fund $2,382,780.20 - 1,734,532.44 422,469.01 2,630,955.66 1,486,356.98
516 - CIP Project Repair & Maintenance 162,659.00 - 991,590.60 55,833.49 997,244.51 157,005.09
518 - Targeted Retrofit Projects 948,555.00 - - 38,131.81 331,801.79 616,753.21
520 - Flood Damage Reduction Fund 3,415,744.00 - 886,952.70 94.50 24,911.94 4,277,784.76
526 - Debt Services-96-97 Beltline/MM/Beltline-Battle Creek Tunnel Repair 944,949.00 - - - 393,040.40 551,908.60
529 - Stewardship Grant Program Fund 854,750.00 - 181,199.96 58,386.12 194,969.83 840,980.13
536 - Stormwater Impact Fund 309,837.00 - - - - 309,837.00
540 - Wetland Restoration Projects 498,036.00 - - - - 498,036.00
580 - Contingency Fund 1,465,487.00 - - - - 1,465,487.00
Total District Fund Balance $10,982,797.20 $0.00 | $ 3,794,275.70 | $  574,914.93 $4,572,924.13 | $10,204,148.77




Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Check Register

For the Period From Sep 1, 2022 to Sep 30, 2022

Check # Date Payee ID Invoice # Payee Description Amount
EFT 09/01/22 met008 Sep 2022 MetL ife-Group Benefits Employee Benefits $1,813.91
EFT 09/09/22 hea002 Oct 2022 HealthPartners Employee Benefits 12,563.83

72714V 9/27/22 chi003 #19-06 Christ United Methodist Church Stewardship Grant Fund (222.50)

73250 9/12/22 aws001 S$1335957-090122  AWS Service Center Janitorial/Trash Service 294.04
73251 9/12/22 galo01 Aug 2022 Galowitz Olson, PLLC August Legal Fees 1,865.00
73252 9/12/22 kin001 060300018152 FedEx Office Educational Program 25.00
73253 9/12/22 1ak007 Casey Lake Fall/Phalen Lakes Aquatic Weed Removal Natural Resources Program 27,203.50
73254 9/12/22 put001 Sep 2022 Catherine C. Putzier Employee Reimbursement 5.67
73255 9/12/22 5ai001 3642 Saint Paul Media Communications & Marketing 50.00
73256 9/12/22 ups001 0000F4471X372 United Parcel Service Water QM Staff 28.40
73257 9/12/22 ush005 481321446 US Bank Equipment Finance Printing Expense 294.00
73258 9/12/22 wat003 WSTQ131770A Water Storage Tanks, Inc. Project Operations 1,883.70
73259 9/27/22 anc001 20-30 Anchor View, LLC Dev.Escrow-General 19,845.00
73260 9/27/22 ass001 21-38 CS Association Team Management Stewardship Grant Fund 5,235.00
73261 9/27/22 att002 287256653401X09252022 AT & T Mobility - ROC IT/Project Operations/Water QM 166.54
73262 9/27/22 bal002 Sep 2022 Darcy Ballantyne Employee Reimbursement 23.72
73263 9/27/22 bar001 8/20/22-9/16/22 Barr Engineering Aug/Sep Engineering Expense 117,993.83
73264 9/27/22 bat001 P54956149 Batteries Plus Water QM Staff 431.80
73265 9/27/22 blo001 Aug-Sep 2022 Simba Blood Employee Reimbursement 250.84
73266 9/27/22 bre003 4th Qtr-2022 Bremer Bank Employee Benefits 8,668.75
73267 9/27/22 cad001 18792021 Allstream Water QM Staff 139.68
73268 9/27/22 cir001 22-04 CS Molly Cirillo Stewardship Grant Fund 1,309.35
73269 9/27/22 cit011 231211 City of Roseville IT/Website/Software 6,264.21
73270 9/27/22 com004 Sep 2022 Comcast Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 81.50
73271 9/27/22 dav003 144118 Davey Resource Group, Inc. Bldg/Site Maintenance/Constr.Imprv. 72,860.25
73272 9/27/22 don001 Aug-Sep 2022 Matthew Doneux Employee Reimbursement 491.48
73273 9/27/22 fit002 Sep 2022 Mary Fitzgerald Employee Reimbursement 58.25
73274 9/27/22 fle001 100289 Flemings Auto Service Vehicle Maintenance 73.35
73275 9/27/22 galo01 Sep 2022 Galowitz Olson, PLLC September Legal Fees 3,154.60
73276 9/27/22 giloo1l 221922 Gilbert Mechanical Contractors, Inc. Bldg/Site Maintenance 4,368.00
73277 9/27/22 haw001 6285516 Hawkins, Inc. Water QM Staff 7,417.10
73278 9/27/22 hbf001 21-29 CS HB Fuller Stewardship Grant Fund 923.02
73279 9/27/22 int001 W22080483 Office of MN, IT Services Telephone Expense 59.34
73280 9/27/22 int003 190080 Intereum, Inc. Office Equipment 1,074.99
73281 9/27/22 1an003 Sep 2022 Lancer Catering Events 750.00
73282 9/27/22 1an009 1395 Landbridge Ecological, Inc. Stewardship Grant Fund 12,713.08
73283 9/27/22 lea002 366848 League of Minnesota Cities Dues & Publications 2,119.00
73284 9/27/22 mel001 Sep 2022 Michelle L. Melser Employee Reimbursement 83.13
73285 9/27/22 met004 INV2126260 Metro Sales, Inc. Printing Expense 404.00
73286 9/27/22 mid003 591089 Roseville Midway Ford Vehicle Maintenance 80.64
73287 9/27/22 min008 36051 Minnesota Native Landscapes, Inc. Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 18,978.00
73288 9/27/22 ncp001 Sep 2022 NCPERS Group Life Ins. Employee Benefits 16.00
73289 9/27/22 nsp001 7950618596-795815685 Xcel Energy Project Operations 750.63
73290 9/27/22 pac001 22100387657 Pace Analytical Services, Inc. Water QM Staff 18,519.54
73291 9/27/22 pas002 Aug-Sep 2022 Carol Passi Employee Reimbursement 461.68
73292 9/27/22 pre003 318968587 Premium Waters, Inc. Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 10.00
73293 9/27/22 qwe001 Sep 2022 CenturyLink Project Operations 271.89
73294 9/27/22 red002 150472760 Redpath & Company August Accounting Services 1,307.24
73295 9/27/22 rmb001 B006306 RMB Environmental Laboratories Water QM Staff 4,023.00
73296 9/27/22 san003 090622 Sandstrom Land Management Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 2,253.75
73297 9/27/22 shi001 B15796719 SHI International Corp. Office Equipment 3,567.00
73298 9/27/22 sho004 Progress Pay #2 Shoreline Landscaping Construction-Targeted Retrofit 10,828.80
73299 9/27/22 sim001 Sep 2022 Emily Simmons Employee Reimbursement 61.88
73300 9/27/22 s0d001 Sep 2022 Nicole Soderholm Employee Reimbursement 40.00
73301 9/27/22 sta004 22-14 CS Ann Starr Stewardship Grant Fund 7,806.83
73302 9/27/22 stu001 2019633 Studio Lola Office Supplies/Stewardship Grant 451.25
73303 9/27122 tec001 326405 Tech Sales Co. Water QM Staff 16,895.00
73304 9/27/22 tilo02 Sep 2022 Joseph S. Tillotson Employee Reimbursement 32.73
73305 9/27/22 tim002 M27620 Timesaver Off-Site Secretarial, Inc. Committee/Board Meeting Expense 228.75
73306 9/27/22 tro002 22-9 Cathy Troendle Educational Program 3,490.86
73307 9/27/22 uliool 150558220 Uline Project Operations 150.46
73308 9/27/22 ups001 000F4471X382 United Parcel Service Water QM Staff 45.68
73309 9/27/22 ush002 Sep 2022 U.S. Bank Monthly Credit Card Expense 3,608.29
73310 9/27/22 via001 Jan 2022 Dave Vlasin Employee Reimbursement 622.92
73311 9/27/22 voy001 8692934232239 US Bank Voyager Fleet Sys. Vehicle Fuel 652.22
73312 9/27/22 was002 5751 Washington Conservation District Stewardship Grant Fund 4,660.00
73313 9/27/22 wes004 21-26 CS Westwood Village 1 Association Stewardship Grant Fund 15,406.00
73314 9/27/22 wit002 22-27CS Catherine Witzel Stewardship Grant Fund 198.84
73315 9/27/22 nsp001 Sep 2022 Xcel Energy Bldg./Site Maintenance 763.18
Total $428,947.42

9/29/2022 at 8:52 AM

Page: 1



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Check Register

For the Period From Sep 1, 2022 to Sep 30, 2022

Check # Date Payee ID Invoice # Payee Description Amount
EFT 09/02/22 myp001 09/02/22 September 2nd Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 $72.00
EFT 09/16/22 myp001 09/16/22 September 16th Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 72.00
EFT 09/30/22 myp001 09/30/22 September 30th Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 72.00

Dir.Dep. 09/02/22 Payroll Expense-Net  September 2nd Payroll 4010-101-000 31,934.51
EFT 09/02/22 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. September 2nd Federal Withholding 2001-101-000 11,441.30
EFT 09/02/22 mnd001 MN Revenue September 2nd State Withholding 2003-101-000 2,054.14
EFT 09/02/22 per001 PERA September 2nd PERA 2011-101-000 6,319.13
EFT 09/02/22 emp002 Empower Retirement  Employee Def.Comp. Contributions 2016-101-000 2,420.00
EFT 09/02/22 emp002 Empower Retirement  Employee IRA Contributions 2018-101-000 400.00

Dir.Dep. 09/16/22 Payroll Expense-Net  September 16th Payroll 4010-101-000 31,161.19
EFT 09/16/22 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. September 16th Federal Withholding 2001-101-000 11,296.12
EFT 09/16/22 mnd001 MN Revenue September 16th State Withholding 2003-101-000 2,003.10
EFT 09/16/22 per001 PERA September 16th PERA 2011-101-000 6,319.13
EFT 09/16/22 emp002 Empower Retirement  Employee Def.Comp. Contributions 2016-101-000 3,170.00
EFT 09/16/22 emp002 Empower Retirement  Employee IRA Contributions 2018-101-000 400.00

Dir.Dep. 09/30/22 Payroll Expense-Net  September 30th Payroll 4010-101-000 30,715.78
EFT 09/30/22 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. September 30th Federal Withholding 2001-101-000 11,152.51
EFT 09/30/22 mnd001 MN Revenue September 30th State Withhholding 2003-101-000 1,965.60
EFT 09/30/22 per001 PERA September 30th PERA 2011-101-000 6,319.13
EFT 09/30/22 emp002 Empower Retirement  Employee Def.Comp. Contributions 2016-101-000 3,170.00
EFT 09/30/22 emp002 Empower Retirement  Employee IRA Contributions 2018-101-000 400.00

Payroll/Benefits: $162,857.64
Total Accounts Payable/Payroll/Benefits: $591,805.06

9/29/2022 at 8:52 AM

Page: 2



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From September 1, 2022 - Sepember 30, 2022

Date Check# Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount Check Detail
09/01/22 EFT met008  MetLife-Group Benefits 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General $1,813.91
09/09/22 EFT hea002 HealthPartners 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 12,563.83
09/27/22 72714V chi003  Christ United Methodist Church 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund (222.50)
09/12/22 73250 aws001  AWS Service Center 4341-101-000 Janitorial/Trash Service 294.04
09/12/22 73251 galo01l  Galowitz Olson, PLLC 4131-101-000 Attorney General-General 1,865.00
09/12/22 73252 kin001  FedEx 4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 25.00
09/12/22 73253 1ak007  Lake Aquatic Weed Removal 4670-101-000 Natural Resources Project-General 27,203.50
09/12/22 73254 put001  Catherine C. Putzier 4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 5.67
09/12/22 73255 sai001  St. Paul Media 4371-101-000 Communications & Marketing 50.00
09/12/22 73256 ups001  United Parcel Service 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 28.40
09/12/22 73257 usb005  US Bank Equipment Finance 4335-101-000 Printing-General 294.00
09/12/22 73258 wat003  Water Storage Tanks, Inc. 4650-516-000 Project Operations-General 1,883.70
09/27/22 73259 anc001  Anchor View, LLC 2024-101-000 Dev. Escrow-General 19,845.00
09/27/22 73260 ass001  Association Team Management 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 5,235.00
09/27/22 73261 att002 AT & T Mobility 166.54

4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 27.54

4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 54.66

4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 84.34
09/27/22 73262 bal002  Darcy Ballantyne 23.72

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 9.77

4670-101-000 Natural Resources Project-General 13.95
09/27/22 73263 bar001  Barr Engineering 117,993.83

4121-101-000 Engineering Admin-General Fund 5,029.00

4123-101-000 Engineering-Review 3,750.50

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,238.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 253.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 3,608.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 6,753.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 2,997.50

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 681.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 161.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,558.26

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 36.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 9,847.50

4170-101-000 GIS System Maint. & Equipment 165.00

4520-101-000 Engineering-WQM 736.00

4520-101-000 Engineering-WQM 878.50

4520-101-000 Engineering-WQM 46.00

4122-101-000 Engineering-Permit I&E 23.00

4124-101-000 Engineering-Permit Review 6,078.00

4661-101-000 SLMP/TMDL Studies 195.00

4661-101-000 SLMP/TMDL Studies 69.00

4661-101-000 SLMP/TMDL Studies 2,823.00

4695-101-000 Research Projects-General 980.00

4695-101-000 Research Projects-General 1,173.00

4695-101-000 Research Projects-General 2,480.58



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From September 1, 2022 - Sepember 30, 2022

Date Check# Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount Check Detail

4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 929.50

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 698.00

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 680.00

4128-520-000 Engineering-Flood Damage 94.50

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 7,573.26

4682-529-000 Engineering-Stewardship Grant Program 10,234.00

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 18,351.75

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 24,373.48

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 721.00

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 1,845.50

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 933.00
09/27/22 73264 bat001  Batteries Plus 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 431.80
09/27/22 73265 blo001  Simba Blood 250.84

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 80.00

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 91.85

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 28.51

4630-516-000 Construction Imp.-Maint & Repair 33.85

4372-101-000 Events 16.63
09/27/22 73266 bre003  Bremer Bank 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 8,668.75
09/27/22 73267 cad001  Allstream 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 139.68
09/27/22 73268 cir001  Molly Cirillo 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 1,309.35
09/27/22 73269 cit0l1  City of Roseville 4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 6,264.21
09/27/22 73270 com004 Comcast 4342-101-000 Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 81.50
09/27/22 73271 dav003  Davey Resource Group, Inc. 72,860.25

4343-101-000 Bldg./Site Maintenance 68,199.50

4630-516-000 Construction Imp.-Maint & Repair 4,660.75
09/27/22 73272 don001  Matthew Doneux 491.48

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 183.11

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 80.00

4820-101-000 Vehicle Maint.-General 8.58

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 219.79
09/27/22 73273 fit002  Mary Fitzgerald 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 58.25
09/27/22 73274 fle0O0O1  Flemings Auto Service 4820-101-000 Vehicle Maint.-General 73.35
09/27/22 73275 galo01  Galowitz Olson, PLLC 4131-101-000 Attorney General-General 3,154.60
09/27/22 73276 gilo01  Gilbert Mechanical Contractors, Inc. 4343-101-000 Bldg./Site Maintenance 4,368.00
09/27/22 73277 haw001 Hawkins, Inc. 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 7,417.10
09/27/22 73278 hbf001  HB Fuller 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 923.02
09/27/22 73279 into01  Office of MN, IT Services 4310-101-000 Telephone-General 59.34
09/27/22 73280 int003  Intereum, Inc. 4703-101-000 Office Equipment-General 1,074.99
09/27/22 73281 1an003  Lancer Catering 4372-101-000 Events 750.00
09/27/22 73282 1an009  Landbridge Ecological, Inc. 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 12,713.08
09/27/22 73283 lea002  League of MN Cities 4338-101-000 Dues & Publications 2,119.00
09/27/22 73284 mel001  Michelle Melser 4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 83.13
09/27/22 73285 met004  Metro Sales, Inc. 4335-101-000 Printing-General 404.00
09/27/22 73286 mid003  Roseville Midway Ford 4820-101-000 Vehicle Maint.-General 80.64
09/274/22 73287 min008 Minnesota Native Landscapes, Inc. 4630-516-000 Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 18,978.00
09/27/22 73288 ncp001  NCPERS Group Life Insurance 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 16.00
09/27/22 73289 nsp001  Xcel Energy 4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 750.63
09/27/22 73290 pac001  Pace Analytical Services, Inc. 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 18,519.54



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From September 1, 2022 - Sepember 30, 2022

Date Check# Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount Check Detail
09/27/22 73291 pas002  Carol Passi 461.68

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 325.85

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 80.00

4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 55.83
09/27/22 73292 pre003  Premium Waters, Inc. 4342-101-000 Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 10.00
09/27/22 73293 qwe001  CenturyLink 4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 271.89
09/27/22 73294 red002  Redpath & Company, Ltd. 4110-101-000 Auditor/Accounting 1,307.24
09/27/22 73295 rmb001 RMB Environmental Laboratories 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 4,023.00
09/27/22 73296 san003  Sandstrom Land Management 4630-516-000 Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 2,253.75
09/27/22 73297 shi001  SHI International Corp. 4703-101-000 Office Equipment-General 3,567.00
09/27/22 73298 sho004  Shoreline Landscaping 4630-518-000 Construction-Targeted Retrofit 10,828.80
09/27/22 73299 sim001  Emily Simmons 61.88

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 21.88

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 40.00
09/27/22 73300 s0d001  Nicole Soderholm 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 40.00
09/27/22 73301 sta004  Ann Starr 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 7,806.83
09/27/22 73302 stu001  Studio Lola 451.25

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 328.75

4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 122.50
09/27/22 73303 tec001  Tech Sales 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 16,895.00
09/27/22 73304 til001  Joseph Tillotson 32.73

4670-101-000 Natural Resources Project-General 10.50

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 22.23
09/27/22 73305 tim002  Timesaver Off-Site Secretarial, Inc. 4365-101-000 Committee/Board Meeting Expense 228.75
09/27/22 73306 tro002  Cathy Troendle 3,490.86

4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 3,465.00

4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 25.86
09/27/22 73307 uliool  Uline 4650-516-000 Project Operations-Maint & Repair 150.46
09/27/22 73308 ups001  United Parcel Service 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 45.68
09/27/22 73309 ush002  U.S. Bank 3,608.29

4365-101-000 Committee/Board Meeting Expense 33.19

4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 27.54

4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 54.66

4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 84.34

4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 96.17

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 62.92

4110-101-000 Auditor/Accounting 8.95

4365-101-000 Committee/Board Meeting Expense 11.90

4840-101-000 Vehicle Maint.-General (10.14)

4110-101-000 Auditor/Accounting 97.00

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 17.99

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 55.00

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 135.00

4697-101-000 Health & Safety Program 84.80

4703-101-000 Equipment Expense 27.99

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 145.00

4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 65.79

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 69.00

4840-101-000 Vehicle Maint.-General 138.82

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 17.48

4343-101-000 Vehicle-Miscellaneous Expense 154.00

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 1,950.00

4343-101-000 Vehicle-Miscellaneous Expense 119.25

4371-101-000 Communications & Marketing 34.00

4343-101-000 Vehicle-Miscellaneous Expense 79.50

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 28.72

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 17.48



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From September 1, 2022 - Sepember 30, 2022

Date Check# Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount Check Detail

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 194
09/27/22 73310 vla001  David Vlasin 622.92

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 90.68

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 532.24
09/27/22 73311 voy001 US Bank Voyager Fleet Sys. 4830-101-000 Vehicle Fuel-General 652.22
09/27/22 73312 was002  Washington Conservation District 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 4,660.00
09/27/22 73313 wes004  Westwood Village 1 Association 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 15,406.00
09/27/22 73314 wit002  Catherine Witzel 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 198.84
09/27/22 73315 nsp001  Xcel Energy 4343-101-000 Bldg./Site Maintenance 763.18
Accounts Payable Total: $428,947.42
EFT 09/02/22 myp001  Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 September 2nd Payroll Fees 72.00
EFT 09/16/22 myp001  Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 September 16th Payroll Fees 72.00
EFT 09/30/22 myp001  Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 September 30th Payroll Fees 72.00
Dir.Dep.  09/02/22 Payroll Expense-Net 4010-101-000 September 2nd Payroll 31,934.51
EFT 09/02/22 int002  Internal Rev.Serv. 2001-101-000 September 2nd Federal Withholding 11,441.30
EFT 09/02/22 mnd001 MN Revenue 2003-101-000 September 2nd State Withholding 2,054.14
EFT 09/02/22 per001 PERA 2011-101-000 September 2nd PERA 6,319.13
EFT 09/02/22 emp002 Empower Retirement 2016-101-000 Employee Def.Comp. Contributions 2,420.00
EFT 09/02/22 emp002 Empower Retirement 2018-101-000 Employee IRA Contributions 400.00
Dir.Dep.  09/16/22 - Payroll Expense-Net 4010-101-000 September 16th Payroll 31,161.19
EFT 09/16/22 int002  Internal Rev.Serv. 2001-101-000 September 16th Federal Withholding 11,296.12
EFT 09/16/22 mnd001 MN Revenue 2003-101-000 September 16th State Withholding 2,003.10
EFT 09/16/22 per001 PERA 2011-101-000 September 16th PERA 6,319.13
EFT 09/16/22 emp002 Empower Retirement 2016-101-000 Employee Def.Comp. Contributions 3,170.00
EFT 09/16/22 emp002 Empower Retirement 2018-101-000 Employee IRA Contributions 400.00
Dir.Dep.  09/30/22 Payroll Expense-Net 4010-101-000 September 30th Payroll 30,715.78
EFT 09/30/22 int002  Internal Rev.Serv. 2001-101-000 September 30th Federal Withholding 11,152.51
EFT 09/30/22 mnd001 MN Revenue 2003-101-000 September 30th State Withhholding 1,965.60
EFT 09/30/22 per001  PERA 2011-101-000 September 30th PERA 6,319.13
EFT 09/30/22 emp002 Empower Retirement 2016-101-000 Employee Def.Comp. Contributions 3,170.00
EFT 09/30/22 emp002 Empower Retirement 2018-101-000 Employee IRA Contributions 400.00
Payroll/Benefits $162,857.64

TOTAL:

$591,805.06



Summary of Professional Engineering Services During the Period
August 20, 2022 through September 16, 2022

Total Engineering Budget
(2022)

Total Fees to Date

Budget Balance

Fees During Period

District Accounting Code

Plan Implementation

(2022) Task Number
Engineering Administration
General Engineering Administration $80,000.00 $58,382.50 $21,617.50 $5,029.00 4121-101 DW-13
RWMWD Health and Safety/ERTK Program $2,000.00 $540.00 $1,460.00 $0.00 4697-101 DW-13
Educational Pr Forum $20,000.00 $2,847.50 $17,152.50 $0.00 4120-101 DW-11
Topical Workshop, Education, and Planning $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-13
Engineering Review
Engineering Review $60,000.00 $52,867.00 $7,133.00 $3,750.50 4123-101 DW-13
Project Feasibility Studies
Iaztee;\sm emergency response plan funds for top priority District flooding $30,000.00 $21,855.00 $8.145.00 $1.238.00 4129-101 DW-19
Groundwater/Surface Water Next Steps $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-10, DW-16
Hillcrest Golf Course $20,000.00 $72.00 $19,928.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-6
. $75,000.00 $6,066.50 $68,933.50 $253.00 4129-101 DW-9, KC-2, BELT-3
Kohiman Creek flood damaae reduction feasibilitv studv
$111,600.00 $51,746.50 $86,010.00 $3,608.00 4129-101 DW-9, KC-2, BELT-3
Kohlman Creek- Wakefield Lake Diversion Plannina and Desian
$20,000.00 $30,646.00 -$10,646.00 $6,753.00 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3
Improvements to Countv Ditch 17
$20,000.00 $18,435.50 $1,564.50 $2,997.50 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3
Improvements to Phalen Villaae
$25,000.00 $15,082.00 $9,918.00 $681.00 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3
Ames Lake Technical Assisstance and Proiect Plannina with St. Paul
694/494/94 WQ treatment feasibility study $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 4129-101 BCL-3
Double Driveway Optimization Study $25,000.00 $4,471.50 $20,528.50 $161.00 4129-101 FC-2
Carver Pond Improvements Study (Fish Creek Subwatershed) $25,000.00 $15,148.51 $9,851.49 $1,558.26 4129-101 FC-2
Evaluate compliance with South Metro Mississippi River TSS TMDL $30,000.00 $2,064.00 $27,936.00 $36.00 4129-101 MR-2
g::asds:)Basm area/North Star Estates improvements (with City of Little $50,000.00 $61,573.97 $11573.97 $9,847.50 4129-101 Gcc3
Wetland Restoration Workshop, Education, and Planning $5,000.00 $2,969.00 $2,031.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-8
Contingency* $45,000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 $0.00 4129-101
GIS Maintenance
GIS Maintenance $5,000.00 $1,019.00 $3,981.00 $165.00 4170-101 DW-13
Monitorina Water Qualitv/Proiect Monitoring
Lake Water Quality Monitoring (Misc QA/QC) $10,000.00 $34.50 $0,965.50 $0.00 4520101 DW-2
Annual WQ Report Assistance $10,000.00 $13,126.00 -$3,126.00 $736.00 4520-101 DW-2
Special Project BMP Monitoring $25,000.00 $9,484.67 $15,515.33 $878.50 4520-101 DW-12
Grass Lake Berm Wetland Monitorina $10,000.00 $8,893.08 $1,106.92 $46.00 4520-101 DW-5
Permit Pr 1 and Enforcement
Permit Application Inspection and Enforcement $10,000.00 $3,326.50 $6,673.50 $23.00 4122-101 DW-7
Permit Application Review $55,000.00 $38,039.50 $16,960.50 $6,078.00 4124-101 DW-7
Lake Studies/TMDL Reports.
2022 Grant Applications $40,000.00 $2,005.50 $37,994.50 $0.00 4661-101 DW-13
" $20,000.00 $5,333.00 $14,667.00 $195.00 4661-101 DW-13
WMP Undates - Includina Plan Undates if needed
$5,000.00 $933.00 $4,067.00 $69.00 4661-101 DW-13
Pr of water guality proiects from feasibility studies
Cost/Benefit Analysis of Treatment Options for Bennett and Wakefield in $35,000.00 $6.415.50 $28,584.50 $2.823.00 4661-101 WL-3, BeL-3
2020 Internal Load Analysis
Phalen Chain of Lakes Changes in Water Quality $2,500.00 $2,070.00 $430.00 $0.00 4661-101 DW-2, DW-12
Contingency for Lake Studies $22,500.00 $0.00 $22,500.00 $0.00 4661-101
Research Projects
New Technology Mini Case Studies (average 6 per year) $12,000.00 $3,914.50 $8,085.50 $980.00 4695-101 DW-12
Kohlman Permeable Weir Test System - Implement Monitoring Plan $50,000.00 $15,818.13 $34,181.87 $1,173.00 4695-101 DW-12
Shallow Lake Aeration Study $90,000.00 $56,568.64 $33,431.36 $2,480.58 4695-101 DW-12
Project Operations
2022 Tanners Alum Facility Monitorina $15,000.00 $19,586.77 -$4,586.77 $929.50 4650-101 Tal-3
Capital Improvements
North St. Paul Target $160,000.00 $157,954.30 $2,045.70 $698.00 4128-518 DW-6
East St Paul and North St. Paul Target Retrofit Projects $5,000.00 $4,202.00 $798.00 $680.00 4128518 DW-6
Ryan Drive-Keller Parkway Conveyance $194,000.00 $226,362.20 -$32,362.20 $94.50 4128-520 DW-9. GC-3
2022 Targeted Retrofit Projects $191,000.00 $152,682.28 $38,317.72 $7,573.26 4128518 DW-6
Stewardship Grant Program: Gen'l BMP Design Assistance and Review
(cases where Dist is approached by landowner, or landowner is not $75,000.00 $36,628.31 $38,371.69 $10,234.00 4682-529 DW-6
commercial, school, church).
Kohlman Creek Storage and Detention $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $0.00 4128-520 KC-2
Wetland Restoration $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 4128-529 DW-8
South Owasso Boulevard East WQ Pond $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 4128-520 GC-3
West Industrial Park Berm and associated improvements $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 4128-520 GC-3
Lake Emily Regional BMP $160,000.00 $26,727.00 $133,273.00 $18,351.75 4128-518 LE-3
CIP Project Repair & Maintenance
Routine CIP Inspection and Unplanned Maintenance Identification $125,000.00 $80,245.70 $44,754.30 $24,373.48 4128-516 DW-5
Beltline 5-year Inspection $70,000.00 $68,692.45 $1,307.55 $721.00 4128-516 BELT-2
District Inspection Standardization $34,200.00 $33,171.26 $1,028.74 $1,845.50 4128-516 DW-5
2022 CIP Maintenance and Repairs $150,000.00 $93,765.92 $56,234.08 $933.00 4128-516 DW-5
2023 CIP Maintenance and Repairs (planning, bidding, and project setup) $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 4128516 DW-5
$117.993.83

Barr declares under the penalties of Law that this Account,
Claim, or Demand is just and that no part has been paid,

Bradley J. Lindaman, Vice President




2022 SCHOOLS & FAITH-BASED SITES BMP RETROFITS
RAMSEY-WASHINGTON METRO WATERSHED DISTRICT

Progress Payment Application No. 2

1. Completed to Date:
2. Less Previously Billed:
3. Amount Completed This Period:

4.  Amount Previously Retained:

5.  Amount Retained This Period (See Note 1):

Total Amount Retained (See Note 2):

o N o

Less Total Retainage Remaining:

Less Amounts Previously Paid
9.  (Pay Application Nos. _1,2,3 )

10. Amount Due This Period:

S 158,749.89

Retainage Released Through This Period:

S 132,046.10

146,717.89

(14,671.79)

(15,874.99)

(15,874.99)

$ 12,032.00
$ (1,203.20)
s -

$ 10,828.80

Note 1: At rate of 10% until Completed to Date equals 50% of current Contract Price and a rate of 0% thereafter.
Note 2: Maximum amount is 5% of current Contract Price (Original Contract Price is $477,624.50; adjusted Contract

Price to date is $505,963.39)

SUBMITTED BY:

Name: Stephan McLafferty Date: 9/21/2022
Title: President

Contractor: Shoreline Landscaping, Inc.

Signature:

RECOMMENDED BY:

Name: Marcy Bean Date: 9/18/2022
Title: Project Manager

Engineer: Barr Engineering Company

Signature:

APPROVED BY:

Name: Lawrence Swope Date:

Title: President

Owner: Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District

Signature:



MOUNDS PARK ACADEMY

INVOICE #3826, 8/4/2022

INVOICE #3826, 9/9/2022

BID TOTAL TOTAL COMPLETED TOTAL COMPLETED
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AMOUNT FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT THROUGH THIS PERIOD THROUGH THIS PERIOD
. Estimated L Extended L Actual L Actual
Bid Item |Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Cost Unit Price Quantity* Extended Cost Unit Price Quantity* Extended Cost
A|Mobilization/Demobilization/Traffic Control/Erosion Control (C.0.1.B) LS. 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $26,050.00 1 $26,050.00 $26,050.00 $0.00
B|Construction Entrance (P) EA 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00]
C|inlet Protection EA 2 $150.00 $300.00 $150.00 2 $300.00 $150.00 $0.00
D|Tree Protection Fencing LF. 112 $5.00 $560.00 $5.00 112 $560.00 $5.00 $0.00
E[6" Sediment Control Logs L.F. 206 $6.00 $1,236.00 $6.00 245 $1,470.00 $6.00 $0.00
F|Sawcut Pavement LF. 232 $2.50 $580.00 $2.50 232 $580.00 $2.50 $0.00
G|Remove and Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb and Gutter LF. 190 $10.00 $1,900.00 $10.00 190 $1,900.00 $10.00 $0.00
H|Clearing and Grubbing (P) AC 05 $13,000.00 $6,500.00 $13,000.00 0.5 $6,500.00 $13,000.00 $0.00]
I|Remove and Dispose of Bituminous Pavement SY 698 $8.00 $5,584.00 $8.00 698 $5,584.00 $8.00 $0.00]
J|Excavate, Haul, and Dispose of Materials (P) CY. 10 $25.00 $250.00 $25.00 10 $250.00 $25.00 $0.00
K|[Bituminous Wearing Course (2" Depth), Including Tack Coat SY. 338 $16.00 $5,408.00 $16.00 342 $5,472.00 $16.00 $0.00
L|Bituminous Base Course (2" Depth) SY. 338 $16.00 $5,408.00 $16.00 342 $5,472.00 $16.00 $0.00
M[MnDOT B612 Concrete Curb and Gutter LF. 152 $48.00 $7,296.00 $48.00 152 $7,296.00 $48.00 $0.00]
N|[6x12 Concrete Utility Curb L.F. 72 $48.00 $3,456.00 $48.00 77 $3,696.00 $48.00 $0.00
Ollron Enhanced Sand CY. 20 $180.00 $3,600.00 $180.00 20 $3,600.00 $180.00 $0.00
P|4" CPEP Draintile, Perforated LF. 120 $5.00 $600.00 $5.00 120 $600.00 $5.00 $0.00
Q|6" SCH 40 PVC, Solid LF. 34 $20.00 $680.00 $20.00 34 $680.00 $20.00 $0.00]
R|Planting Soil (P) CY. 94 $38.00 $3,572.00 $38.00 195 $7,410.00 $38.00 $0.00]
S|4" CPEP Draintile Cleanout EA 3 $150.00 $450.00 $150.00 3 $450.00 $150.00 $0.00]
T|Riprap SF 57 $30.00 $1,710.00 $30.00 57 $1,710.00 $30.00 $0.00]
U|Precast Stormwater Concrete Curb Inlet EA 1 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 1 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $0.00]
V|Landscape Edging LF. 280 $10.00]  $2,800.00 $1000] 280 $2,800.00 $10.00 $0.00)
W/|Twice-Shredded Hardwood Mulch (P) CY. 27 $80.00 $2,160.00 $80.00 27 $2,160.00 $80.00 $0.00]
X|Perennial (#1 Cont.) (P) EA 459 $18.00 $8,262.00 $18.00 0 $0.00] $18.00 459 $8,262.00
Y|Shrub (#2 Cont.) (P) EA 44 $30.00 $1,320.00 $30.00 0 $0.00] $30.00 44 $1,320.00
Z|Deciduous Tree (#10 Cont.) (P) EA 7 $350.00 $2,450.00 $350.00 0 $0.00] $350.00 7 $2,450.00
AA|Soil Loosening Sy 561 $4.00 $2,244.00 $4.00 561 $2,244.00 $4.00 $0.00]
BB|Turf Seeding (Mn/DOT Mix#) AC 0.1 $6,500.00 $650.00 $6,500.00 0.1 $650.00 $6,500.00 $0.00]
CC|Turf Reinforcement Mat (P) Sy 30 $12.00 $360.00 $12.00 30 $360.00 $12.00 $0.00
DD|Painted Pavement Markings LS. 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00]
1.A|Parallel Pedestrian Curb Ramp w/Truncated Domes EA 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
1.B|Concrete Curb and Gutter, Tipout LF. 30 $48.00 $1,440.00 $48.00 30 $1,440.00 $48.00 $0.00]
1.C|Concrete Walks (C.0.1.B) SY. 98 $130.00 $12,740.00 $65.00 99 $6,435.00 $65.00 $0.00]
1.D{Decomposed Granite Surfacing (C.0.1.B) SY. 42 $180.00 $7,560.00 $90.00 42 $3,780.00 $90.00 $0.00]
1.E|Bry-Placed-St Seat Walbw/C s dation{C-0-1-B) LS. 1 $39,600.00 $39,600.00 $39,600.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00]
1.F[4" CPEP Draintile, Perforated LF. 80 $8.00 $640.00 $8.00 80 $640.00 $8.00 $0.00]
1.G[6" SCH 40 PVC, Solid L.F. 13 $20.00 $260.00 $20.00 13 $260.00 $20.00 $0.00]
1.H|Flagstone Surfacing SF 78 $45.00 $3,510.00 $45.00 78 $3,510.00 $45.00 $0.00
1.1|Fine Filter Aggregate (P) cy 2 $120.00 $240.00 $120.00 2 $240.00 $120.00 $0.00]
1J[Class 5 Aggregate Base TON 12 $90.00 $1,080.00 $90.00 12 $1,080.00 $90.00 $0.00]
C.0.1.B[Stone Outcropping LS. $11,300.00 1 $11,300.00
C.0.1.D|Select Tree Removal EA $650.00 10 $6,500.00
C.0.1.E|Catch Basin Adjustment LS $4,800.00 1 $4,800.00
C.0.3.A|Weedy species removal cy $29.00 24 $700.00
C.0.3.B|Compactible fill cy $28.50 98 $2,793.00
C.0.3.C[Topsoil borrow cy $25.00 18 $450.00
C.0.3.D|Pollinator seed mix LS $245.89 1 $245.89
C.0.3.E|Seeding and blanketing LS $400.00 1 $400.00
C.0.3.F|Grout catch basin LS $350.00 1 $350.00
TOTAL BID TOTAL $155,406.00 TOTAL $146,717.89 TOTAY $12,032.00
(PAY APPLICATION #1) (PAY APPLICATION #1)

* NOTE: Items noted as BOLD indicate a change from original bid quantities.




Galowitz Olson, PLLC
10390 39th Street North
Lake Elmo, Minnesota 55042
Office: (651) 777-6960
Fax: (651)777-8937

Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District
C/O Tina Carstens

2665 Noel Drive

Little Canada MN 55117

General Account

Page: 1

September 21, 2022
File No: 9M
Balance

$3,154.60



Permit Application Coversheet

Date October 05, 2022

Project Name 3M Avenue R Maintenance Project Number 22-26
Applicant Name Mary Lenzmeier-Carlson, 3M

Type of Development Linear

Property Description

This project is located on the Maplewood 3M campus, between McKnight Road North and
Carlton Street along Avenue R. The applicant is proposing to complete a mill-and-overlay of
Avenue R with some curb and gutter replacement. The total land disturbance area is 0.05
acre but triggers District Rule F for erosion and sediment control due to the project area's
proximity to a wetland '3M Lake.' To accommodate an anticipated early construction start, a
temporary erosion control permit was issued on 9/15/22.

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

"1 wetlands Erosion and Sediment Control

L Stormwater Management [ Floodplain

Water Quantity Considerations
There are no water quantity considerations.

Water Quality Considerations
Short Term

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water
resources during construction.

Long Term
There are no long term water quality considerations.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this permit.

Attachments:

Project Location Map
) Project Grading Plan



#22-26 3M Avenue R Maintenance

Copyright nearmap 2015

Highlighted Areas
Wetlands Represent Active Permit
- Manage A
- Whieea Flow Arrows
. [ =——
B Manage C Major Flow Arrows 0 350 700
Lake Subwatersheds Feet N
[ ——)
D Sediment Pond Creeks 0 0.075 0.15
Not Assessed /A Permits Miles
[ ]




22-26
Special Provisions

None

Wednesday, September 28, 2022 Page 1 of 1



Permit Application Coversheet

Date October 05, 2022
Project Name 3M Lake Culvert Maintenance Project Number 22-27

Applicant Name Mary Lenzmeier-Carlson, 3M

Type of Development  Drainage

Property Description

This project is located along Avenue R at '3M Lake,' east of 14th Street on the Maplewood 3M
campus. The applicant is proposing to replace a culvert and drainage pipe from an existing
parking lot. The existing pipe is buried without freeboard from the normal water elevation.
The applicant is proposing to remove 135 cubic yards of accumulated sediment from the DNR-
regulated wetland '3M Lake' and raise the outfall approximately 1 foot with associated riprap
to provide energy dissipation. A wetland delineation and no-loss Wetland Conservation Act
(WCA) application was approved by RWMWD staff on 9/27/22. A Public Waters permit has
been submitted for work below the Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL) with a decision
pending by the DNR. The applicant has submitted cut and fill volumes below the District's
100-year floodplain elevation of 980.64' to demonstrate no net fill in the floodplain.

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

Wetlands Erosion and Sediment Control

L) stormwater Management Floodplain

Water Quantity Considerations
The proposed project results in no net loss of floodplain storage.

Water Quality Considerations
Short Term

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water
resources during construction.

Long Term
There are no long term water quality considerations.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this permit.

Attachments:

Project Location Map
Project Grading Plan



#22-27 3M Lake Culvert Maintenance

Copyright nearmap 2015

Highlighted Areas

Wetlands Represent Active Permit
- Manage A
B Manage B Flow Arrows
, =
B Manage C Major Flow Arrows 0 200 200
Lake Subwatersheds Feet N

D Sediment Pond Creeks 0.05 01
D Not Assessed /A Permits Miles

o




22-27
Special Provisions

None

Wednesday, September 28, 2022 Page 1 of 1



(umor 3831, TIPE J. NW.NS 225~ ‘0)
BTUMHOUS ROADWAY

SEE DETAL 1/650
WETLAND SEEDNG, (MKOOT 3881, SEED WIX H
34-282 0 145 Las//u:. FERTILZER

10-20-20, TYPE 3 WULOH IF REQURED
PROPOSED BITUMINOUS PARKING LOT
SEE DETAL 6/850

———— PROPOSED CURB & GUTTER
5EE OTL. 1/8%0
s

6" TOPSOIL AND LAWN TYPE
SEEDING {SPEC 02820)

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:
1. THE CONYRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AND PAY FOR ALL REQURED
PERMITS INCLUDING E\JT NOT LINITED TO THE CTY OF
GRADING PERMIT.
2. HO WORK SHALL TAKE PLACE WITHIN THE WETLAND PRIOR TO
RECBPI' OF THE WETLAND PERMIT FROM THE DNR, ARMY
CORP_AND WATERSHH) DISTRICT,
2. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT GOPHER STATE ONE CALL AT —
651{,454-0002 AND THE OWKER PRIOR TO DENOU110N AND
ACTIVITIES. OWNER SHALL LOCATE ALL PRIV/

e UMTES TOR GOPHER ONE, CALL AHD. FOR 5
3 C SHALL, AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE, FORM ALL
DAMS, CONSTRUCT PROVIDE PUWPS OR

[y
PROGRESS OF THE WORK YO KEEP THE EXCAVATION AREA
CLEAR OF OR TO REMOVE ALL SURFACE AND PERCHED WATER
WHICH ACCUMULATES (N THE EXCAVATION AREAS.
4. COORDINATE REPARS & REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING IRMGATION
SYSTEM WITH 3N DESIGNAYED REPRESENTATIVE AND F
SAMUEL (651—733~4682). SEE SPECIFICATION 02221.
DNTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPON! ALL

FOR SURVEYING
N‘ CESSARY TO COMPLETE ALL WORK INCLUD(NG COORDINATING
BUILT SURVEY SEE SPECIFICATION O:

8. C()ORD{NA AND DRIVE AREA LDSING WITH 3
DESIGNATED RE’RBE‘NTATNE. PROVIOE CONES, FENCING,
BARRICADES AND SIGNAGE AS REQUIRED TO SAFELY AND
CLEARLY CLOSE ROADWAY, TEMPORARY TRAFAIC

DEVICES SHALL CONFORM TO THE MOST RECENT EDITION OF
THE MINNESOTA MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC

DEVICES. CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT PLAN
TO 3M FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL. PEDESTRIAN ACCESS TO
BUILDINGS SHALL BE WAINTANED.

7. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, ALL EXISTING UTILITH
; STRUCTION, PROTECT AS
AVOID U UTIUTES,
INCLUDING TELECOM DUCT BANK AND RIBER OFTIC, BY ANY
HEANS WUST ¥ SUPPORT

THE UTILITlES DURING EXCAVATION, THE OR SHALL

ENTATION SPECIFYING THE MEANS AND METHODS
OF SUPPORTING THE UTIIMES TO THE 3M DESIGNATED E
REP RESENTATIVE ANO OWNER AT THE UTILITY FOR THERE

B. OWNERS CML ENGINEER SHNJ. PROVIDE CAD FILE OF THE
PROJECT FOR CONTRACTOR USE IN GRADING, STAXING AND
COORDINATION OF UTILTIES.

A

CUT/FILL SUNMARY FOR WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOOD
PLAN LiMMS

ar@En | AL | NrEm |
125 | o (rP RaP) | 116 |

DNR_OHW=285:6% ~

» WATERSHED DISTRICT
100 YEAR FLOOD
BLEVATION=285.23 /

b
~ |
i
i

/ S

2100 A —
LE. 283.20 N PeR|

88 N TEN]
C . C
r" N
\ Y i,
\ b
g Wi
) () ‘
i R 4007 >
i Az 2348 { .
i iy D - -~
] i = —
! / )
! i / %
/ ! | {
i /
i /
i /
i H
1 |
B - )
pros.e 12870078
FACILITIES ENGDEERING "
mx'nao' [ E S & bl o dncioved cther than for S oxthorteed
THERERY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REFORT WAS PREPARED BY [ e Fe——1 rpsen. . s e |
A 12E OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT { AM A DULY LICENSED MEM A
PROFESSIONAL IENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA, EGDTRATEN STAP LY. CENTIFICATION] GRADING & CD TDUR PLAN
SIGHATURE: /\*»)WJY'A_ Vﬂ/ A”/L- DATE: 03232022 |
PRINTED HAME: AMANDA MARIE KIEFFER UC.NO.: 58216
xm
MAPLEWDXID
| DRA) [SHEET
Fi X 1PA-gss-c-216]
B 4 3 2 l 1




Permit Application Coversheet

Date October 05, 2022
Project Name Pioneer Commons Project Number 22-28

Applicant Name Melissa Duce, Lennar Homes

Type of Development  Residential

Property Description

This project is located north of the current end to Vanderbie Street, between Allen Avenue &
1-694 in the City of Little Canada. The applicant is proposing to construct a residential
subdivision with 178 units including parking, residential street connections, and stormwater
treatment areas. The total site area is 21.6 acres with historically agricultural land use. Two
wet ponds and a filtration bench are proposed to meet stormwater treatment requirements,
located towards the center of the proposed subdivision. Filtration is being proposed due to
poor soils. A Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) no wetland determination was approved by
District staff on 7/12/18.

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

L wetlands Erosion and Sediment Control

Stormwater Management [ Floodplain

Water Quantity Considerations
The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to handle the runoff from the site.

Water Quality Considerations
Short Term

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water
resources during construction.

Long Term

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to protect the long term quality of
downstream water resources.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this permit with the special provisions.

Attachments:

Project Location Map
Project Grading Plan



#22-28 Pioneer Commons

Copyright nearmap 2015

Wetlands

- Manage A
P Manage B
B Manage C

Lake
[ | Sediment Pond

|| Not Assessed

Flow Arrows

Major Flow Arrows
Subwatersheds
Creeks

/A Permits

[ | Ramsey Co Parcels

Highlighted Areas
Represent Active Permit

[
0 300 600
Feet
[ e—
0 0.05 0.1
Miles




22-28
Special Provisions

1. The applicant shall submit the final, signed plans set including phased
erosion control plans as applicable.

2. The applicant shall submit the executed maintenance agreement for the
proposed stormwater facilities.

3. The applicant shall submit written confirmation that the City of Little

Canada has reviewed and approved the increase in discharge rates from the
north outfall.

Wednesday, September 28, 2022 Page 1 of 1






October 5, 2022

To: RWMWD Board of Managers
From: Paige Ahlborg, Watershed Project Manager

Re: Reimbursement Deadline Extension; 21-39 CS, Washington County Community
Development Agency

Washington County applied for a $15,000 Stewardship Grant for a native planting
project at the Washington County Community Development Agency and were approved
on 11/3/2021. The application funded a native planting project in front of their building
and main parking lot. Requirements of the Stewardship Grant Program give one year to
seek reimbursement for the allocated funds. Washington County is requesting an
extension until 11/3/2023 due to difficulties obtaining a contractor in 2022. Work is

anticipated to begin spring 2023.



October 5, 2022

To: RWMWD Board of Managers
From: Paige Ahlborg, Watershed Project Manager

Re: Reimbursement Deadline Extension; 22-08 CS, Battle Creek Middle School

St. Paul Public Schools applied for a $100,000 Stewardship Grant for a stormwater BMP
at Battle Creek Middle School and were approved on March 2, 2022. The application
funded a filtration basin with native plantings. Requirements of the Stewardship Grant
Program give one year to seek reimbursement for the allocated funds. St. Paul Public
Schools is requesting an extension until to December 31, 2023 due to the need to
finalize other funding sources and obtain a contractor. Work is anticipated to begin

summer 2023.



*kkhkkhkkkhkkhkhk

Permit

Program
KEEXEXKXKXKXKXEXETXX



MEMORANDUM

Date: October 5, 2022
To: RWMWD Board of Managers
From: Nicole Soderholm, Permit Coordinator

Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD)
Subject: Permit #22-25 Variance Request (Rule E)- Xcel Energy Maplewood Gas Plant

Last month the RWMWD Board of Managers conditionally approved the Xcel Energy Maplewood Gas
Plant project with special provisions. The variance request for wetland buffer impacts (Rule E) was
tabled after a detailed discussion. The Board requested additional information on mitigation measures
to be completed during the project to help offset the proposed loss of wetland buffer.

The applicant has submitted a tree preservation and vegetation enhancement plan to demonstrate
proposed mitigation measures. The project would maintain a 75’ average buffer around Wetland 2 and
enhance Wetland 3 buffer vegetation by removing invasive species, planting plugs, and seeding with a
native species mix.

Attachment: Wetland Buffer Variance Request, Figure 2 (Project Layout), Attachment 3 (Native Seed
Mix), Attachment 5 (Tree Preservation Restoration Plan)

Request For Board Action:

Staff recommendation: Approve the wetland buffer variance with the proposed tree preservation plan
and buffer vegetation enhancement plan which will include invasive species removal and supplemental
planting/seeding.



Memorandum

To: Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District Board of Managers
From: Brian Sullivan; Xcel Energy, Cory Tellers; Xcel Energy

Subject: Wetland Buffer Variance

Date: September 19, 2022

Project: Xcel Energy Maplewood Propane Plant Variance Request

c: Aaron Mielke; Barr Engineering, Tyler Conley; Barr Engineering

Xcel Energy is proposing modifications to their existing Maplewood Propane Plant Facility located in the
City of Maplewood in Ramsey County (Figure 1). The project includes expanding the plant boundary for
modifications needed to meet fire code requirements. The purpose of this memo is to request a variance
to the wetland buffer requirements from the Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD) for
the proposed modifications.

Purpose and Need
A review of the Maplewood Propane Plant identified hazardous conditions on-site, including pooling of

precipitation at the base of the tank bases. In the event of a liquid propane spill, it is plausible that
propane could pool in similar low spots, trapping dangerous flammable liquids underneath tanks; these
conditions appear to be in violation of the national fire prevention Association 59 Requirements (NFPA
59). The area under containers needs to be re-graded or shall have dikes or curbs installed so that the
flow or accumulation of flammable liquids with flash points below 200°F is prevented." (NFPA 59, 5.4.1.8,
ref 11.7). In addition, the third party identified saturated conditions at tank banks that could compromise

subgrades and foundation and poses a risk of foundation movement or deterioration.

The core Project objective is to improve the existing stormwater routing, storage, and discharge systems
at the Maplewood Propane Plant while reducing the failure risk potential of on-site storage tanks and
meeting NFPA 59 requirements. To meet this core objective, the Project will specifically include grading
revisions to better comply with the requirements set forth by NFPA 59, drainage system upgrades, and
revised stormwater storage and discharge design and operations. Site upgrades, design, and operations
would also consider new anticipated vehicle loading operations.

Additional improvements recommended by the third party include impervious fence linings surrounding
the proposed containment/water quality pond, a channel protection outlet structure, an emergency pond
outlet shutdown device, pond pretreatment structures, and (forebays) to facilitate maintenance activities
and reduce sediment loading from a generally unsurfaced and sediment-laden site.

Grading Extents
The project will grade approximately 4.98 acres; 3.48 acres of grading would occur within the existing

facility fence line, and the remaining 1.5 acres of ground disturbance would occur outside the facility
fence line (Figure 2). Of this disturbance area, approximately 0.11 acres will be temporarily disturbed from



To: Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District Board of Managers
From: Tyler Conley; Barr Engineering

Subject: Wetland Buffer Variance

Date: September 19, 2022

grading activities, and 1.39 acres will be permanently disturbed from the construction of the truck loading
area. Please refer to Attachment 1 for grading plans.

Impervious Surface

The project would create 1.49 acres of additional impervious surface. Including 0.70 acres from the
construction of the loading area and 0.79 acres from the western pond, as the pond will have an
impermeable liner.

Stormwater

The project includes permanent drainage improvements such as an engineered water quality and channel
protection outlet structure. The outlet structure incorporates a water quality screen to prevent clogging, a
steel orifice plate to limit post development discharge to pre development values, a micropool to prevent
unwanted mosquito breeding in shallow pools within the pond, an impermeable pond lining to prevent
infiltration of hazardous materials that may enter the impoundment basin by design, an emergency pond
outlet shutdown device, and engineered forebays (pond pretreatment structures) to facilitate
maintenance activities and to reduce sediment loading from a generally unsurfaced and sediment-laden
site. A rock-lined emergency spillway will be implemented to pass extreme flows in the event of a pond
failure.

Infiltration is prohibited on site due to low permeability soils, proximity to seasonal high groundwater
levels, and the implementation of our pond liners to prevent groundwater contamination. Alternative
compliance, per the district's guidance, is considered to be met via filtration. District required volume
reduction for the eastern truck unloading pond will be deferred to a later date within the western tank
bank area pond. The western pond will be constructed in 2023 and will incorporate a sand filter and
underdrain system, pending final design, located just east of the pond outlet, that will meet volume
reduction requirements for the site in its entirety. The location of the sand filter is shown on drawing 4300
(Attachment 1).

The district's rate control standards are met for the 1, 2, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-year storm frequencies.

Floodplain Impacts
The 100-year flood elevation is 980.0" (Figure 2). There will be no project related disturbance below the
100-year flood elevation. As a result, the project will not trigger Rule D for flood control.

Wetland Impacts

Barr Engineering completed a wetland delineation of the proposed project area on May 13, 2022. The
wetland delineation identified three wetlands totaling 5.79 acres. Wetland 1 was determined to be an
incidental wetland. RWMWD approved the delineation and incidental determination on July 6, 2022
(Attachment 2). Construction of the truck loading area will directly fill all of wetland 1 (0.03 acres).
Wetland 2 and Wetland 3 will not be impacted by the proposed project.



To: Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District Board of Managers
From: Tyler Conley; Barr Engineering

Subject: Wetland Buffer Variance

Date: September 19, 2022 September 19, 2022

Variance Request
The watershed requires buffer zones around the existing wetlands, lakes, and streams to be preserved

during construction. The wetland buffer requirements are identified in Table 1. It is not feasible to
maintain the buffer around wetland 3 due to the available space for construction. A variance is requested
for the Maplewood Propane Plant in locations where buffer zones cannot be feasibly preserved around
Wetland 3. The project would permanently disturb approximately 0.29 acres of the wetland 3 buffer
(Figure 2). No temporary wetland buffer impacts would occur.

Table 1 Wetland Buffer Requirement

Wetland Minimum Average Temporary Permanent
Buffer Width = Buffer Width Wetland Buffer Wetland Buffer
disturbance disturbance (Acres)
(Acres)
Wetland 2 (Manage B) 50’ 25’ 0 0
Wetland 3 (Manage A) 75' 37.5' 0 0.29

Minimization measures

Xcel will install redundant sediment controls to prevent sedimentation into adjacent wetlands (Figure 2).
The temporarily disturbed wetland buffers will be restored to their original contours and planted with the
woodland edge south and west native seed mix (Attachment 3). In addition, Xcel will implement the
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan included in Attachment 4. The Tree Preservation Restoration Plan
(Attachment 5) was developed for the City of Maplewood to mitigate impacts to the wetland buffer. This
plan shows the wetland buffer impact locations and proposed mitigation measures. As shown in the
plans, the project would maintain an average 75-foot buffer around wetland 2 and would impact the
wetland 3 buffer. To offset the impacts to the wetland 3 buffer, Xcel proposes to enhance the remaining
wetland 3 buffer on their property by removing invasive species and planting native plugs and a native
seed mix.

Attachments

Figure 1 - Project Location Map

Figure 2 - Project Layout

Attachment 1- Plan Sheets

Attachment 2- WCA Notice of Decision
Attachment 3 - Seed Mix

Attachment 4 - SWPPP

Attachment 5 - Tree Preservation Restoration Plan



¢ 34NSld (u1 9 Aaswipy 10)03 0Z0Z) SIWM 02DUly :234nos A1abpuij

INIETTERER)Y

NIA ‘poomajden

any Auimus) N §SS1
SIYNLY3IH ILIS HLIM
SANVI1LIM d3LvaNII3Iag

1994

I .
orlL 0L 0

€ ANV1LIM

Ysiely mojleys

uiseg papoo|4
K|leuoseas

MopeaIN

19M Ysal4 D
ysJte| desQ D
Kiepunog Ayunod m !

S
slajng pueisp\

I
|
I
|
ALNNOD NOLONIHSYM
ALNNOD AISINIVYH

(IvlNaai

(saloe -

6Z°0) @ouequmisia ~ | 1 1
slayng puejis\
jusuewlad

wz_v
¢ ANV1LIM

(.0°086) uonens|g
ureidpoo|

9dua4 1|1

snwi Buipers _H

X— X—=x
90Ud4 S l |
X — X

ealy pafold

208 1U3S() PXWI'S2IN}ES4 SUS UMM SPUB[IDAN Paleaul|a - X 24nBi4\sainiead a1S Yim spuepapy 6L .0z20z\sdewsaseg\sde|N\gey L\z9\e2\s1a(01d\!| 3|14 LZ:SL 6L-L0-2202 'L'8'0L SID2IY 123004 Lieg



36-211 Woodland Edge South & West
N Rat Rate % of Mix S

Common Name Scientific Name (kg/hi\) (Ib/ac) (%%y wt) S:g(:t /
big bluestem Andropogon gerardii 1.12 1.00 2.90% 3.68
side-oats grama Bouteloua curtipendula 1.12 1.00 2.89% 2.20
kalm's brome Bromus kalmii 1.68 1.50 4.34% 4.40
nodding wild rye Elymus canadensis 1.40 1.25 3.61% 2.38
bottlebrush grass Elymus hystrix 0.36 0.32 0.91% 0.88
slender wheatgrass Elymus trachycaulus 1.40 1.25 3.64% 3.18
switchgrass Panicum virgatum 0.07 0.06 0.17% 0.30
little bluestem Schizachyrium scoparium 0.69 0.62 1.79% 3.40
Indian grass Sorghastrum nutans 1.12 1.00 2.89% 4.40
Total Grasses 8.97 8.00 23.14% 24.82
common yarrow Achillea millefolium 0.03 0.03 0.09% 2.00
blue giant hyssop Agastache foeniculum 0.11 0.10 0.28% 3.20
white snakeroot Ageratina altissima 0.03 0.03 0.09% 1.70
white prairie clover Dalea candida 0.19 0.17 0.50% 1.20
Canada tick trefoil Desmodium canadense 0.16 0.14 0.42% 0.29
ox-eye Heliopsis helianthoides 0.15 0.13 0.38% 0.30
wild bergamot Monarda fistulosa 0.07 0.06 0.18% 1.60
stiff goldenrod Oligoneuron rigidum 0.07 0.06 0.17% 0.90
Clayton's sweet cicely Osmorhiza claytonii 0.07 0.06 0.17% 0.06
smooth wild rose Rosa blanda 0.07 0.06 0.17% 0.06
black-eyed susan Rudbeckia hirta 0.20 0.18 0.52% 6.10
Lance-leaved Figwort Scrophularia lanceolata 0.06 0.05 0.14% 3.20
zigzag goldenrod Solidago flexicaulis 0.02 0.02 0.05% 0.50
showy goldenrod Solidago speciosa 0.07 0.06 0.18% 1.80
smooth aster Symphyotrichum laeve 0.07 0.06 0.19% 1.30
American vetch Vicia americana 0.20 0.18 0.52% 0.14
golden alexanders Zizia aurea 0.12 0.11 0.33% 0.46
Total Forbs 1.68 1.50 4.38% 24.80
Oats Avena sativa 28.02 25.00 72.48% 11.14
Total Cover Crop 28.02 25.00 72.48% 11.14
Totals: 38.67 34.50 | 100.00% 60.75

Purpose: Partly shaded grassland planting for native roadsides, reclamation, etc.

Planting Area:

Tallgrass Aspen Parklands, Prairie Parkland, and Eastern Broadleaf Forest
Provinces. Mn/DOT Districts 2(west), 3B, 4, Metro, 6, 7 & 8.

7265 WASHINGTON AVE. S. EDINA, MINNESOTA 55439
PHONE: 952-944-7105 FAX: 952-944-7239 800-545-TURF EMAIL: twincityseed@twincityseed.com




1092268 (256) e
L122280:008°T d

Q m_n_i_ VL0MYQ/SIHOIFH VIOANIW © ALNNOO/ALIO HLYON NOISIAID ‘31VA 30INIS NI 250 150 e

8€28E0T0SY 1103r0Nd _ ANVAIOD ¥3MOd SALVLS NYZHLYON ¥ILNIO JOIAYTS il WS LE -1 -1 e Y ——— ————
zeozi20/60 | AHE A QINDTHD | 3mea 3inioarzsnvm ooes

————————— swoanm
TO-d NV1d NOILVAYISIHd 3341 2202/L0/60 aHg M3IAIY ¥O4 a3anssi v 2202/L0/60 ddva Ag 3INoIs3Ia VAOSINNIN 40 31¥1S kgm: mu
ML 50 SM¥ 1 MIONN HIINIONT TYNOISSIH0MY. ]
NOISSIHddNS JdId I ISYHd AOOMI TV 3lva | A8 NOLLdI49S30 ON | wwoeiom | MY A8 NMYQ
0 NOLIYOLID3dS Ny 1d SIHL L¥HL AdLLEE0 AG3RH |
ONIMYHA SNOISIATS 31vad AHOLSIH
L4YH0 ASYNINITZNd &= : BTEAN
rmﬁmwwﬁﬂwu _ o - - e NOIS ¥344Nd ANVILIM TIVLIA \}
EENTY —
1334 N1 31908 (AL 3N ALY3AONd 7
T X B
il * VA NOLSUISNGS — == :
- 1L >
. - — —_ B\ 2 150 — T
NOILVAYISTad 33aL Nv1d \ 1/ ] e | X L — A
| . 5160 >
| \ si=n s1icy |
0099 (NI X S33L55) X NI'dITVOI09_NOLLVOLLIN 3301 403 33 % N 3 Tt 00 juiod siyL
S3991 65 NOTIVOIIIN ¥od 53381 WIOT B — % #i seo || puokag qinisiq
HONI 3dIT¥D/09 LNSW3OY1d3Y 3381 O< 333 | S ; WSl
| 2 =en g0 dwing ‘InY ‘MO
FINGIHOS T34 2202 INIWAOTIATA ALINTAINOD ‘SVT 10D TYGIDINI GOOMTTAVH 30 ALID 538 _ | \ 3 FE——
339 INIW30V 13 3300 | \ X R n— JON o a
FINAIHOS 334 2202 LNFWIOTIAIFA ALINNWINOD S.JOOMI TV 4O / = u.,..._._w_ﬂ“ 5
ALID 43d SIL GIAOWI FLYOLLIN TIIM 130X LINST ¥ SV "SNOLLYAIAO LNVd ¥0d | N N | F . '3
G3AVd ¥O ‘GNVILIM ‘G3A00M ATAYIH ¥3HLIE SI AL¥IAONd SHL STRIL GIINVId LnoxwT
ATMIN TYNOLLIAQY 40 NOLLYTIVASNI 3HL 04 F18Y.LINS LON 34Y 3LIS NO SNOILINOD 211 aNY ONGeal
ONILSIX3 3HL GISOONd STRIL L2 ‘NV1d NOLLVAHOLST HOd £0-4 1F3HS 33S TLON 404 5o NS Sae
1 Ul aUDUIIG 10 OMI O WL B 3G BY 1UAWADR 31 311 Pa OWal ‘IONVEUNLSIA 40 SLINI
991 UG PUE WEDIUBI 13 9249UD 30R 31 BY UED B AU ‘PO OWAI 1AUD O AU} U
UoUI JIAWRIP 931 UAWIA 0 WEDI DI EI01 AL 0 WG 0Z UPL) @ | UONZ MO ED © OWal 3l = o
L
2 T (0607 ) Wowain o3 Wawaow_oy 2311 pooa_e I
(4300 .2 @) s90iL_| arey wowaoeiday o
| Jawannoa
Gvinaaon | o [ ‘I
it st 2211 AuleaH o EI0L waoiad oo — =9
oset 2 Pa WAy 90 0 931 UGWIGS 5 W WBIS A EOH wI0L )]
sote s 9oL uawns 5 1ol UBS AUt BoH _ T
(u) s@1aureIq e10L = 4
SrZ-BT_3000 TWIDININ GOOMI AV 40 ALID 53 dAL '10310¥d
SINIW3HINOY NOILVOILIN NV1d NOILVAY3S34d 3391 . R
St " NV SHNVL
! SV ONILSIX3 .
_ v ] | g
i =D | (&P
NY1d NOILYHOLS3Y 804 £0-4 133HS 335 9T | o || N
(G3MIN03Y) SNOLLYOHIO3dS NOLLONHISNOD TYNOLLIAAY 404 S0-4 T3S ‘ST a—=pi|| i \
(4107) SOMVONYLS 3351 QOOMITVW 3d 3ONI4 NOLLOILON FL SY | |V (e
ONLLOV 30N LIS ¥0 3ON3 NOLLO3LOHd 341 NO I9VNOIS 3AIN0¥d 7T \ — =4
GIAIAYNS STFHL TIV 40 FdAL ANV 'S3103dS "HE'Q a1 11D
04 204 133HS NO FINAIHOS WAOWIY 3L OL ¥3434 ‘MOT38 GILON SNoISNaNIa b 1
SY G3AOWIY S33ML 4O NOILVOLLIN HO4 334 Avd OL SONILNI INIINO ‘€T ANV NOILYDO1 ¥Od 00EY L33HS oD T 1)
UAID 335 *AUVANNOA ¥IHNE A¥YaNNOE 1
ALID 3HL 40 WAONddY JHL HLIM A39NA3Y 38 AVA NMOHS SILLLLNVND QNVIL3M FOVRIEAY LOO-6L Zanvuam | —F 5
SHL GIAON3 34V SIIL ¥3MT3 o ‘TINONTY 38 TIM LVHL SITAL 0 a1 ) D
UIBNNN WAWIXYA FHL STLVEIDLLNY TINAIHOS INFWIOVTdZ IFLIHL 2T / : = \
‘dddMS FHL NO GILON & & 2
SV SLNZW3HINO=4 TOHLNOD NOISOME TIV MOT104 OL §1 HOLOVEINGD ‘T (I 1) C %
SIE30 ONY S31SVA NOLLONYISNO 40 ¥VITO L3 NG 0 s13L3 . . — i D | </ %5
38 TIVHS SAILIIOVA ONILSIXI OL I9VAVA ANY ‘GINIVISNN ANV NVITO == —— 1 IWUNLYN ANV ALITIOVA ONILSIXT
SONIGTING ONY STUNLXIA 'SINIWIAVA d33 TIVHS HOLOVHINGD FHL 0T AMVSSIOIN F1q3HOS D I o NSIML3A Q13K N SNOLLYOOT 55
SV @734 NI LSNCAY ‘LuvdY {| NOLLYAY3SI™d 1 - ——— | ,, 1SNCQY ‘A¥YONNOS ¥334N8
SIHONVHE HO v 33uL ST ey - | v’.: 330L33S = [ - GNNOYY OST A¥3A3 QI TIVASNI - 15
J9VAVA LON 04 'SLOOY 3341 ¥IAO STVIMILYIN AAVEH 3ARIA HO FHOLS T o FROSKRN oAt wvnoma = | 38 TIVHS SNOIS H34N8 VLM &
LON 00 "S334L ONILSIX3 ONIOVAVA QIOAY TIVHS HOLOVHINOD FHL 6 - - | (A 404 3301 A
150D TYNOILIGQY ON LY ¥3INMO HO H3LSTHOS A8 AIHINOIY NIHLIM 3ONYENLSIA y AN LNOAVT § v”'ﬁ.. (s — NOUSTEN
I0S HO ONIAVHS ON 'V3uY //A 31IS ANV ONIQVHO MO — ] |
SSIINN SLINM LOICOHd NIHLIM NIVWI AVIN HSV1S GILON JSIMHIHLO T AONI CaIDgs NS N\ AN 0‘0 /
SSTINN SLINM 10300MA NIHLIM ¥3LIAVIO .0 S3IULTIY ONRIVATD 8 s _ $04 S133HS TND 333 5SS A
NV LNOAY 3LIS AMVONNO8 YN8 SONVEUNLSIA 40 SLIWI o N e ey, i
i 30 TS N0 3L awonodS e EXN o I T I
NIHLIM NOLLOVANOD O SNIYAS ANY ONY G3AIOAY 38 TIVHS TYAONZY BRI A¥3N3 GFTIVISNI SR SEEI R KKK,
04 ARIVN LON SIFUL T1V 'd39ENYO ANV AF¥vIT0 38 OLSYIIV NI L 38 TIVHS SNOIS 33 “"«.}‘ XS ’«”
AUVAINNS TYAOWIY 3L ANV Eming aNVLLAM R 0"””"‘4 K ‘QV‘"
.9 NVHL ¥31V349 ¥313WVIQ HLIM |A3/NS 3341 804 MOT38 F18VL Z ;7”0"‘. 04.9" (X
GIAOWIY SIL 0 ALLLNVND GHODTY ANV AJIMIA OL HOLOVHINOD ‘9 335 '¥3GWNN NOLLYIHILNIAI PO XX > LK XX >
3341 - 3341 AONIY %] P00 0.0 Do XXX
G3AOW3Y SANNLS IAVH S AR "“ MO XX >
1VHS 9 YL 3130 LHOI3H LSYaHE L S e GO o R LR ALDGIRESS
3301 ANV SNOLLYINS34) GNY S311t 1007 TIV HLIA SONVAHOD0Y NI 1031044 33 ONLSHA ,

SI¥830 ANY JOOM T1¥ 40 3SOdSIA ANV ‘SAWNLS ANIMO ‘331 IAONIY

3ON34 NOILOZLO¥d I3l

VZ

NOLLONALSNOD (30NVEHNLSIA 40 SLINI)
OL ¥OI¥d SHIIM (2) OML HINMO HLIM LYNIGHOOD “IWAOWY OL —

SLINITNOILONYLSNOD |
HOIMd STTHL GIHIYIN FA0HAY TIIM HINMO “ALIAILOY NOLLONYLSNOD

ANV OL HOI¥d IWAOWIYH ¥O4 SIIFHL TV AV TIVHS HOLOVHINOD ¥ FON3H ONILSIX3
VAN GINLLNVEVAD 3AVET NI SVO ONILSIXE ////
LON OQ S33¥1 HSV LVHL 3ONVHNSSY 3AINO¥d LSNIN HOLOVEINOD NOISOY3 LN3AIHd OL 30V1d NI NIVW3Y OL 3uv
SNOILYINO3Y T¥O01 ANV 3LVLS TV HLIM 3DONVYAHOIIV NI TWSOdSIa AN3W3SVY3 ONILSIX3 ‘31 TdWOD FV SIILIAILOV ONILNYId 'SLO0Y ANV (SNOILLYANIWNOD3YH SFHNLOVINNYIN i
HO4 3LIS GIA0HAAY NV OL NIAVL NV GIAOWT 38 LS SITULHSY € GNY NOLLONULSNOD TV TLNN GINIVINIVIN GNY ¥3d) JI0IBYIH HLIM GLY38L 38 OL 3UV SIWNLS NN
1013 QYIHEIAC ONILSIX NOLLONALSNOD OL HOId IHIVLS 38 TIVHS AHVONNOE 10D "HOIH & NVHL 35O ON 1n0 38 OL 34V N
SNOLLYING3 GNY 31N 1007 TV HLIM SONYAH000Y NN O NOLVD0 Hou 00Ew L3EH1S TS P A St b=t N
NI V3¥V TYAOW3Y NI SI4830 NV GOOM TV 4O 3SOdSIA ANV IANOW3Y T 33S 'AYVANNOSE ¥333N8 ONVILIM IOVHIAY LOOH -00T

3NIT ALYIOYd ONILSIXT  —— — — ——
'NOILONYLSNOD OL ¥OI¥d G314 IHL NI ¥31IAVIQ ANV

SNOLLYOO' 3341 ONIAAISIA O3 TTBISNOASI S1 HOLOVHLNOD "ABANNS
WNIDINO 40 Luvdl S¥ A3ANTONI LON 3HIM NMOHS ATT¥DI103dS LON HNOLNOD 2 ONILSIE
SITIL VARY TAONI NI LNISTHd 30 AVN SIIUL HITIVINS *.9 N0 HNOLNGD 0T ONILSIXS |

S334L 0304003 ATNO SHOAIAYNS Z202/2T/S NO G3LI1dNOD AIAHNS
NO G35v8 34V ¥3LINVIQ ONY S3103dS 'SNOLLYOOT 334L ONLLSDA T
=R QN3 TNG311vd ANV TO8NAS

730X FHL NIHLIM ¥333N8 ANVTLIM V FOVNVI //
ONINIVWSY 3HL WO SA33M SNOIXON TV ANV / N\
'QUVLSNI DITHY ‘TIHONSAINOH 'NYOHL¥ONE

IAISYANI 177 JAONTY ANV FAIDIBYIH NN
R

14 Q34610 + UePuaIG 438N AOVO

Wd L2 2202186 ‘31Y0 1014 27T FI¥OS 10Td SMTNYTd




v

_m_n_i_ VLOMVQ / SLHOEH VI0ONGW : ALNNOO/ALID

HLdON

‘NOISIAIQ

:31¥A 30ING3S NI

20-d

ONIMVHA

B8EZBEOTOSY

J3royd _ ANYAOO ¥3MOd S3LYLS NYIHLYON 43 INIO 3OINY3S

2202/L0/60

aHg :Ag d3A0YddY

3TNAIHOS NOILVAYISTIYd 3341
NOISS3dddNS 3dI4 1| 3SYHd AOOMITdVIN

2202/L0/60

aHE  :Ag QINDTHD |3nea 3inioasmsnsvm ooer

2202/L0/60

MY

M3IAIY ¥O4 d3anss|

v | 2zoe/Lo/60

ddva Ag 43NoIs3d

dlva | A8

NOILdI40S3d

"ON | zeoziLoe0

MAY A8 NMYYEA

SNOISIAIY

31vad

AdOLSIH

1092268 (256) e
L122289:008°T d

SEVSS NI ‘SITOAVINNIN

I ve

NOILONYLSNOD ¥O4 LON

14vHQ AJYNINNTEd

[

002 2ns

438NN ——31v0
Funivers

2WN aaINd

Abisuz 92
ML 50 SM¥ 1 MIONN HIINIONT TYNOISSIH0MY. ]

O NOLLYOIIDIS 'NY1d SIHL LYHL AdLLAED AGIH |

i3 [ o e |2 oovomoy | o6e 3 3 D3 o ot n W ooy | 56
monpoaq poo 05 e oy noreioeg poowpr e | o 3 ovoeh B 3 o | o = = W e b5 e T
onpsaq poow 05 o s nonpro30 poowpRI e | =3 nono30 poows 05 e 3 5| _nonpasa poonpien o ot orpoa poowi 05 | e s v
e poon o5 e Sor e | vt w50 nonp30 poow 05 B 3 x| _nowmea poowos @ o e T e
o poon 05 o vy woon |zt 3 o050 poow 05 & 3 x| _nowsea poowios = o6t Tovpa PO 05 o %
o 3 on |t =3 ovoreh 9 e Dy £ 3 n o T
oma poon 05 B 3 Ronpioa0 oo aeon | ot e monvioag oo 05 o e 91| _rowmaq poomos = 3 norpoa poowi 05 | e s o o
ioaq poon 05 e o noreisag oo T =3 o £ 91| _rowmagpoomos m e norpoa poowi 05 | e s o
i5ma poo 05 @ oo rompaea pon 05 e |t oaen | e o e 1| _rowsaapoomos @ 1 e s £
o i o | vt poovuaios B 3 x| nowseapoowos & St I
o r Tonprea poun o5 & o090 poows 05 o 3 x| _nowpeapoowios o vt %
T oy o 3 oz D £ 3 n s £
B P ronpaea pon 05 T TR o =3 91| rowmagpoomos 3 3 a0 poowi 05 | e s o v
@ siv Ponpaea poar 05 oo | v nonprsag poows 5 e oz x| rowmagpoomos o o orpioag poowa 05 | e & El
o iy Tonpaea pon 05 e | et o wz x| rowsaapoomos z o6t e PO 05 | e whrs e =
B ey Tonpaea po 05 & G P x| nowpeapoowos & i ovpa PO 05 w w®
o v Tonpea poun el P D3 3 ar n 3 o
o T o B D3 & o n e o
o Poovimoy | o Ponpaea poa 05 or monpioe0 poow 05 vz o | o £ [ n st o
Ponpasa poanpiER a0 wor Ponpaea poar 05 o norprsaG poows o5 iz x| _nowmag poowios o st onpoag poowi 05 o P
onpa poov 05 I e o 550 poow 05 o w x| nowseapoomos = P ovp5a poow 05 o o
o el =3 o590 poowp eI & 73 By 3 e ooaG poow 05 B e
o & 3 3 oz Dy 3 I a3 o
o Sor e | o = norpioRg pocprEH o o x| o st T n o o
onprsa poos e vor e | v =3 PR poaBEH o =3 x| rowssapoowos = o e poow 05 e 2
o PO 05 s [ rwwn | = s = T wor T o0 nonopo0 poow 05 o 3 5| _mowmsapoowos o oot Tovpa PO 05 o o
o590 poows 05 s o 3 o on | e mos o 3 " £l W o o
o ponoron | e s 0 ewion | e or won | et =3 oS o 3 e TR Poow 05 | e o B
T T 5 ET T [ e |t 3 o vz Dy : e o £
o530 poows 05 | o v 55 v =3 e | v 3 R poapER W 3 x| o e ot e s 2 )
o o0 B v 55 e =3 i, o 3 nonop30 poows 05 o e onpoaa poows 05 & ot o 3 o
wroa P05 | a w v 3 o =3 3 =3 nono90 poow 05 & 3 x| roweea poomos w 3 o E
onpoaG poow 05 B w v Vs o (53 Ponpraoa poum o5 & =3 o o % & 3 ar W
B G w v 3 e S5 e | e =3 & =3 3 & 3 e 0B v ooy | o
s s [ s 2 W =3 P =3 £ =3 % £ 3 e 0B 3 ooy | 5
B s % =3 e | e S5 o5 © sz % o = T o T
B =3 onpoaa poovs 05 s ronpea pr or nono50 poow 05 & =3 x| _noweea poomos £ [ o590 poowi 05 o
1590 poowI 05 o 3 v 5 el monoeG oo o5 o 3 % o 0B 2 =3 n ]
ooaG poowi 05 o we ompoe poov 05 (53 ToTpaa Po0 05 = ) 3 Ve w06 v [ TR Poow 05 | e o
e | ot s Raeon |1 o e | v CEET] o =3 S wesubs | Aweor s
s o Ponpaea poa 05 T =3 1550 poow 05 o 3 [ s et W e b5 o
s o 50 P00 05 e e o9 poow I Tavn | ® =3 &3 apoomios v
oo | e E3 g Tonpea poun o5 @ ooy | e monoow0 poow o5 Kavn | o 3 o o s B
e | o s o T oowamoy | ove monpioa0 oo 05 Raven | v 3 & =3 e poowi 05 | e S =
e | ot 3 o ronpasq poun o ) Tawon | e e & ot e 0B s
s o o e Ravan oz o e e s o
s T T 550 poow 05 Ravon £ B o 550 poowprn | v s o
s o e nono90 poow 05 3 e e apoovios o
s 53 e Honpiow0 poow 05 o £ onoa poowi 05 3 o Gpoomos )
s =3 e b5 o e momoaG poows 05 £ e onpoaG poows 05 | e s o
s onpaq poo 05 v e b5 =3 e o ot e b5 el
s 52 pon 05 [ e b5 D oz o En e b5 s
3 onpeea poov 05 S o s = e =3 o Tt B
zes =3 o s [ o =3 e poowi 05 o [ zr
= e poo 05 =3 ey = e e R poowi 05 = monpeg poapt | o o W
s mompoaq poo 05 v vee o e =3 o v n e b5 o
= 51| rowseq poomos 3 = % ot £ onpsaq poows 05 2 monpos0 posp o
s x| _nowsea poomos =3 e s o e E rorpoea poonp o
s x| _noweea poomos 73 Tee % & =3 o TovpPag PO 05 =
3 Dy (73 =3 % & =3 o o poovonos | ver n o
e s £ 51| _rowmaq poomos v nonee0 poompr = o = = onpoaq poown 05 o poovuonos | eer a0 poow 05 e
o b ves x| _rowmaq poomos s2r nonpe0 posmpH =3 o & oz ompoaq poow 05 o T e poowi 05 v
s 1| _nowsea poomos s 2o £ ot 3 e poow 05 E wpaxes | wr B
s x| _nowsea poomos o w2 = o onpa poowi 05 w poovoonos | oet =
s x| _noweea poomos 3 oo poon 3 mon90 poow 05 = apoon o5 o e B
o 2 Gavon = =3 =3 3
e s s o aeon =3 £ o " (3
e s s onpeaa poon 05 | wea b o ronpea pon 05 aoon = nonprsaG poows o5 o 3 owpsag poow 05 o e onpasa ponprEn o
s s x| _nonpesa poonpren | wes b 3 Tonprsa poos e T nonpios0 poow 05 B £ e poon o5 o o 550 oot :
s % o s [ Ronpioa0 pooma oo 3 nono50 poow 05 @ apooos B e Ronpooa poonpI [
S oy e 05 o on e v 3 3 e 63
o B vis 0 e 0B o noreieg oo aeon e nonoiaG poows 05 & = omoaG poows 05 o = W 3
e poowi 05 s S 4| ronprasa pospiey [ wes s s o | mreeen awon e nonpioaG poows 05 5 e ompoag poows 05 & e poowi 05 B3
onpoa poowi 05 s % e 0B v 5x_ | ronposa posemen awon ote 152G poowi o ooy | otz owoa poowi 05 B3 =
s e nonpag poon o stc 155 poow 05 o EETC 3
e poowi 05| e s [ g % e nbs | Aavon e monooa0) & oz 3
B 05 % T % e wbs | Aavon e o0 o Ex o o
orpoa0 poowi 05 | e s w05 0 [ neon e st iz £ o n o
o PO 05 s w05 4| _nonposq ponpien oor Tompea pon 05 e e ovpoaG poaerH o o o oo poow 05 o
o PO 05 a05 ronpasa povnpren wor e e poaeren s e e 51| rowpsapoomos o
TR Poov 05 wbs 05 o590 poov 05 v wor e aor TonoaG Poom 5 o = E = o
Wb s wo3oa | oor ompeq poa 05 aeon 3 oS & ooy | otz oo |zt % 3
B 05 Poovios | sov Taeon 3 o0 T T T T 0y &
o550 poowi 05| e s s vor e 0e & £ poowuon o w o
s Ponpasa poanprER or ronpraG poowpRI oo 3 o550 poow 05 o g oa poowi 05 ot x| rowpeapoomos | wemubs T
3 or Poprea poun o5 on e monow0 poow 05 = %0z R poovi 05 ot x| mowpeapoomos | weswos o
omoaG poowi 05 oo Tor ompaea po 05 Fareon e ForoiaG Poom 5 & E3 o 03 i B
w5y [ aeon 3 O 3 Ve sor 3
npaa poonoen v oo eon e = 0z B3 o
o poow 05 S5 [ nonpag poon e 3 nono50 poow 05 & e o5a poowi 05 B 51| _nonpesa poompien 5
Do PO 05 Sor 3 oo poon =3 o090 poow 05 B3 3 2 poowi 05 3 2 e s O
onoa poowi 05 vy 3 o 3 v o ooe Poowi 05 & 51| _rowpsapoomos v
worbs | Aawen | et ey Rawon (= Tompasq PO =3 o0 s oot 6 ) % ©
5 [ werubs | fwwn | @ zor Raoon o =3 & 3 poowioios | oot 2 z
o550 poows 05| e s Tor Raon oo o 3 o o boomuows | o6 e [
o550 poowi 05 v onpa poowi 05 5 nonpag poon = 0 a6t B % oo poow 05 X
o590 Poow 05 v o poon 05 L onpaa poon 3 5| _roromapoonios & e o = rowss| ok oo e

378VL TVAOW3d ANV NOILVAY3S3dd 3301 NOISS3dddNs 3413 11 35VHd QOOMI 1dVN

Wd LT 2202186 31Y0 1014 2T 31995 101d MO N1 NOLLOLONA 3381 T0-4 LEVIZGEI000MI TVAI00 BEVTZOETINDISIAN ‘314 AUBUBnoq '+ UBpuasg 435N WD



:31¥A 30ING3S NI 100275 (z58) o

Q ”mn;._._ VLOMYQ/SIHOIFH VLOANGW * ALNNOD/ALID HLYON NOISIAIQ

8€28€0T0SY  :1J3rO¥d _ ANYAOO ¥3MOd S3LYLS NYIHLYON 43 INIO 3OINY3S

2202/L0/60 aHg :Ag @3A0YddY SEPSSNW'SIOdVANNIN |~ #3swsonT————=va

oozauns | T asnuners

2202/20/60 aHE  :Ag AINOTHD |3nma 3uniodL3xvi 0oer

2WN aaINd

IDIONSAINOH HSNE FUVMA (S)

€0-d NV1d NOILVYHO1S3d 2202/L0/60 | aHg M3INFHHod aansst | v [ zeozoo | Wuva A QINOISIA mm<m LoSINNIN 40 31¥1S @kmkm:m ‘QQ
NOISSIddNS Juld 1| ISYHd AOOMITdVI lva | A8 NOILdI¥0$3 [ON [ 22020200 | MY _ A8 NMYYQ e S
ONIMYYd SNOISINTS 31va AHOLSIH I
NOILONYLSNOO ¥O4 LON
14v4a AYYNINITIAd - o
AMY3EIOINEIS ANMOA () h o ‘\\ _ X
— (4AL) 3N AL8360HS NAOHLIWVH ANMOG (©) %
ozt 09 ] > T — — ‘, 2 —_— — —_— —
NV1d NOILVE01S3d Nv1d \1/ 7 N o _ .I@F | = B\ 5
- - RN oomooa oML azy (6) L \ \ =X
_ aooM90d a3AVIT-aNNoY  (€) / | . //
| \

e

FDIONSAINOH HSNE VMG VH30INOT VTIANIIO 1
G00M0a SIML a3 V3OS SINHOD
0OM0a GIAVITaNNOY VS09NE SIR0D
o TEVINGS AN NORROD Sanars

o
NHOHLIYH MO SITION SNOFVLVD
"
NUSHISON  NIVSLS NSSHLNON
AMIITIONGIS ANTHOTTIY
AMRIEEEOINES ANMOD

SINZVT HIHONVIIRY

Hovonon

TENVINGS

3I1NA3HOS LNVd

NOILYOOT 03 00V L33HS TIAID 33S ‘AUVANNOS
¥3334N8 ANVILIM AdvaNnog

U3LVM HOd SINIWIONVEUY AVSSIOIN
SHL IV TIVHS ¥OLOVIINOO ‘G33N ININYILIA OL ONIIILYM OL HORid HOTNW HIANN
FANLSION HO3HO "SIAVT ONILIIM SV HONS SSTMLS Lv3H 40 SNOLLVOIANI A8 AFINOTS

SV N3L0 FHOW ¥ILVM ‘HIHLYIM AA 'LOH ATIWIHLXE NI HEIM ¥ 3ONO SINVId
TV HILYM ATHONOHOHL TIIM HOIHM TTNGIHOS ONIFILYM ¥ NIVANIVIY ONISILVM
‘QOR43d FALNVHYNO FHL LNOHONONHL BWNTd SITML FHL ONIII HO4 FIBISNOISTY
38 OL INNLINOD TIVHS HOLOVHLNOD SHL "¥IAIMOH “SILIIBISNOASIY JONYNIINIVA
FNNSSY TIVHS Y3NMO FHL ‘SONVLAIOOV ¥3L5Y "NOLLISOd BWNTd ¥ NI SINVId ONId3D 2
NV '3QVH9 ¥3dOtd ANV SINVId ONILLIS-3d ‘NOSVIS ONIMOYD OL HORid TVINILYA
Q3 40 IYAOWI ‘ONIHO N ‘ONIGTIM 'ONIMILYM JANTONI TIVHS JONYNILNIVA
‘GOR3d HYIA-FIUHL Y HOH ¥34NE THL NIHLIM NOILYOLLIW
Q3HINOIY IHL NIVANIVW NV HSIM8V.LS3 LNVOITddY IHL LVHL ONIMINOIY ALID FHL
HLIM INZW3FHOY FONVNILNIVIV ONY NOLLYOLLIN &333N8 ANVILIM ¥ NOIS OL ¥INMO
04 NO STLON NOLLYOIAID3dS TYNOLLIAAY 335 “FIAINVHVND FHL 40 IAISNTOXI
314300V S| ONLINVId AN 3QVA NI38 SYH NOLLOFASNI ‘FLITANOD SI SONLLNYIA 40
NOLLYTIVASNI HL TLLNN G3NIVINIVW ONY 03.L03L08d 38 TIVHS WRIALYW INV1d “3OVTd
NISIRIOM SHL 30 NOILYO HOVE H313Y ATALVIGINI NI938 TIVHS JONYNILNIVAY
AV ANV JONVNIINVA

SNOLLVOII03dS JONYNILNIVA 3dVOSANY G3ANILXE FHL
43d GINIVANIVW ANV GIOVNVA 38 TIVHS SLINTT NOLLONYLSNOD FHL NIHLIM SYIdY TIV 2
NUIA0D TIVHS
SNOLLVOII03dS FHL 'SNOLLYOIHIDIdS HO 'SNYd “1IVA3A SIHL NIIMLIE SIONVAZHOSIA
ANV 40 35¥D SHL NI 'NOLLYAROSNI TYNOLLIGQY 0 SNOILYOIAID3JS OL ¥3434
2888 NOILYOIJID3dS QUVANYLS LOG/NW HLIM JONVAHO0DDV NI VAAY ONIGIS
LN ¥3AO0 GFIOHONV-OSIA 38 TIVHS TYIIELYW HOTNW 8 3dAL 'ONIQIIS H3LY
SY3UY TIV NIHLIM G333S 38 OL S1 JO¥O ¥IN0D
NOILOVAINOD ONY
NOISO3 IN3AZHd OL INIWIOVTd TIOSAOL ANV ONIGVH TYNIJ ONIMOTIO ATELYIGSWAI
30V1d VL OL S| ONIGIFIS ‘SNOLLYOIHIDIAS FHL HLIM JONYGHODOV NI G335
“YLOSINNIA 40 3LV1S
SHL NIHLIM 4O1VOIddv G3SNOIT Y A8 Q31ddY 38 TIVHS NOLLYOIddY 3AIDI8H 11V
3us 3NIT 30N MAN

NO G3150d 38 LSNW SIAIDIS¥IH 30 3N JHL ONILYOIANI JOVNOIS ‘NOILYANIWWOOTY

S3UNLOVANNYI ¥3d SY 4O ONIGIIS OL HOIMd SAVA ¥T JAIISHIH HLIM QIAVHAS
38 TIVHS SY34Y ONIG33S FHL NIHLIM STIIM ANV SINVIA JAISYANI DLLOXIANY__T
SNIGITS

AMIAITAA LNV OL HORId

SAV OML ONLINYTd 4O LOFLIHONY JdVOSANYT IHL WHOSNI “ONLLNVTd OL HOI¥d LNOAVT
INV1d M3IAZ OL 193LIHONY 3dVOSANY “AYSSIOIN 38 AVW LNIWLSNCAY Q1313 3WOS

31NA3HOS LNY1d ONY ‘STIVA3A 'Nv1d NO NMOHS SV S38 LNV1d 03S0d0dd TIV VLS €

ONI'NIWAYISHNN F0O NOILVIDOSSY NYORIIWY JHL 30 'NOILIGS LSILW] "09Z-ISNV " HO0LS 3NN ALYIJOHd ONISIXT  —— — — ——

AMISUNN O3 GUYANYLS NYORIIWY. 3HL OL WHOINOD TIVHS HDOLS ONLINYTd T1v
AMOLOVASILYSNN G3W33Q 34V HOIHM SLNVd ANV 10303 OL LHOR

FHL SIAYISTY 1DILIHOYY FdVOSANYT THL '1OTLIHOUY IdVOSANYT IHL AS ONILIRIM
NI G3A0UddY SSTTNA Q31d300V 38 TIVHS TVINELYIN INVd 30 SNOILALILSENS ON T
TVIZILYN LNV

‘S3LON ONILLNYId ONY SNOLLYOIIO3dS WNOILIAQY ¥0d S04 335 T

S3ION TvaanTo

<

4344N8 40 SINLXD
ONILYOOT ¥O4 00€Y L33HS
TUAID 33S “¥344N8 ANVILIM

T0-Y 133HS
33 ‘NOIS ¥344N8 ANVILEM

<

.
3INA3HOS 33S ¥O4 0o 5
133HS 335 'VIUY ONILNYId 7/1
©N7d NV ONIG33S JALLYN B

T0- 335 '30V1d NI 33uL

10310¥d ‘3341 ONILSIXT

L)

SLIWINOILONYISNOD  — — — —

30N34 ONILSIX3

ANIWISV3 ONILSIXS

UNOLNOD Z ONILSIXS

UNOLNOD 0T ONILSIX3

ONIOF1NY311Vd ANV T08WAS

SIILIALOY ONLINYTd NV NOLLINULSNOD TIV
LLNN GINIVANIVA ONY NOLLONHLSNOD OL HORd

VHOBY HIIHONY1INY [
SV NOMTOD SEm LT 1INOD Tev
3AHYLS 38 TIVHS AUYANNOE ‘SNOISNIWIG ANV

I

| | ;
@ 33s

“dAL 'Sv3dv a389Nn1Sia |
TIV LNOHONOBHL 00

.V SONINOYO NI G3LNVTd |
S IALYN

=]

’ NOILONYLSNOD {

THIONSAINOH HSNG FHVMA  (5)

JOOMO0A A3AVIT-ANNOY  (€)

IDIONSAINOH HSNE FuVMa (3

\ AMYONNOB | |
\c/>/ (IAN3QIOND) o

- Tanviam

aoOMO0a DIML a3y (€)

dAL'LO3L0¥d
ANV NIVIZY
oLsaNn
aNVY SHNVL
SVO ONILSIX3

=
a
|

[ N il
IR
==

ZaNvLEm

/agr=Nyay
|

.
008y 133HS TAI0 335 —T[)
*3OVAUNS SNOINMIWI —— =
HLIM GNOJ NOLIN3LIa

1NOAVT

3LIS ANV ONIQVYD

404 SLIIHS WAID 335
‘3ONVENLSIA 40 SLIAIN

\

NYOHLMVH ¥NdS%000 (1)

/

QNBA3Y NIVAILS NYIHLEON (€
AMMIEIOINYIS ANIHOITIY  (€)
FTHONSAINOH HSNE MOT (9
FTIONSAINOH HSNE MO (S)

aN8A3Y NIVHLS NYIHLHON (€)
‘a0OM90a A3AVIT-aNNOY  (5)
AMH3IBIOINYIS ANIHOITIV  (€)
aooM90a DIML a3y (5)
ITHONSAINOH HSNE Fuvma  (S)

'

FIHONSAINOH HSNE SHYMa (9)

“aoomeoa omi a3y (&)
Q00M90T GIAVITANNCY  (5)
NHOHLMVH ¥NdS¥000 (€)

Javannos
N\ canviLam
E 33S "dAL 'LNOHONOYHL

0'0.Z SANOYD.

S
AN
N osesse

WNTd NYORIANY ()
IIONSAINOH HSNE Jvima  (5)

‘3L31dWOD Fuv.
S3ILIALOY ONLLNYTd GNY NOLLONMLSNOD 11V
LLNN GINIVANIVI ONY NOLLONMLSNOD OL HORdd
VLS 38 TIVHS AUVANNOE SNOISNINIA ONY

NOLLYOO™ 404 008 L33HS TIAID 335 ‘AUVANNOS 7
433408 ANVLIM

14 Q34610 + UePuaIG 438N AOVO

Wd 620 2202186 ‘31Y0 1014 2T FI¥OS 10Td SMTNYTd



B B . B o me
@ .m_...:ﬁ_ VLOMYQ/SLHOI3H YLOGNIW - ALNNOO/ALID HLYON NOISIAID ‘31vd 30IAY3S NI sz 20 s 3
% wa
. . 2202/20/60 aHg : GEVSS NI ‘SITOJVIANNIN #3sN30N a1va
8€28€0T0SY :103MONd _ ANYANOD H3MOd S3LYLS NYZHLYON :HIINID JOIANIS A8 d3A\0dddV v o
220220160 aHE  :Ag @INDTHD [anwma 3iniodrzwm ooer e s
v0-d STIV13A NOILYHOLS3Y ANV NOILYAYISIHd 3341 Z20u0r60 | M @A U03 Ganss | v | 2202060 | uEva Ag GIN9ISIA o aivis yr=1v} ~ D)
mm<m Sus0 512 G o Tosszions | ©
g B ‘GISNIDI ATNOY WY | 1YWL ONY NOISIAGEANS
NOISSTHAANS T4 Il ISYHA AOOMITdYIN 3V | A8 NOLLJIH0S3a ON | om0k | MAY_Ag NMVAQ
0 NOLIYOLID3dS Ny 1d SIHL L¥HL AdLLEE0 AG3RH |
ONIMYHA SNOISIATH 31vad AHOLSIH I
14740 AUYNIAITIed TT2-98 LOG/NW XIW G335 IALVN N amvos oL son
ONILNY1d aNIHS
5209 9600007 1988 05vE 1oL
v %8r'ZL 208z 0z 1e101ans dod 19700 V130 YNOILIAaY. 3avuoans
04 SNOLLYOIHIOFdS INIWHSITEVLSS INY1d SNO30VEIH 335 “ISNIdX3 oNLSIX3
ste
T evel ez ose EES By © SHOLOVALNOD LV G30V1d3d 38 TIVHS ATLHOISNN ¥O AHLTVAHNN
[ %BEY 89 051 10105 59104 GINIWYILIA HO AVIA FUY LYHL SENUHS T1V AORITd FILNVHYNO THL
050 %S00 200 200 Sineanay obepiios poIuapIoB Bezbiz 0 AN 3HL LV 'NOLLIGNOD AHLIVIH V NI NIVINIVIA OL (4v3A-T) QOld3d ios
3ALNVHYNO LNOHONOUHL AMYSSIDIN SY ¥3LVM OL ¥OLOVHINOD 0T TIDHOVE
ot 9600 €00 €00 ewissife euneiR0Y 10059eUS UM INVd HLIM LOVINOD NI 38 OLHOMNW ON 6
00z %600 €00 00 wnijojaiiw ealiiay oA UowWOD “INV1d NNOY . 30 HLd3a
V OL ANV .2 40 SNIaV V OL (QOOMA¥YH G3AQIHHS 334 a33S a33Im
oze %rT0 900 s00 eie[0s0U| BLEINYdoI0S uomBy paneal-aue -9 3dAL 2Z88€ D3dS LOQ/NW) HOTNW AOOMAXVH GIAAIAHS FOV1d
0T w6T0 100 200 anoe) wnyooAuduAs Jorse oows NOLLYTIVISNI 40
. ‘SUNOH € NIHLIM ¥3LYM ATHONOMOHL ‘NISY8 ONIMILYM € LONSISNOD L
091 %810 200 900 es0193ds 0feplios POIUIPIOB fmoys SSYIN LOOM ONNOXY Sdvo v ON UNSNI ANV 8N Td NIVANIVAY Javis S S
900 %.T0 100 900 epue| SOy 501 P UIooWS OL SSYIW LOO¥ ANNOXY T10S Walld 10S ONLLNYId HLIM TI3X0VE s
: 3OV HSINIA HLIM B8
900 %LT0 00 900 01felo Bziuiowso £18910 199ms 5,U0ME1D N3AT SI 34¥14 LOOY OS TI0S TII4OVE G313 ATIHOITNO 8NHS 135 'S e
060 %.T0 100 %00 wnpibu uoinauob posuapiob 4ns S30IS IV 'SSYW LOO NYHL 439HY1 NIN .9 STIOH INV1d 91d % HOINIW AOOMAUYH
: - s V14 L0OM 40 ISVE OL 1I0S J0VUNS 30034HS 31800 €
00T %8T0 00 200 BSOINISY EPIRUON towebiod pim 3LYAYOX3 ¥3NIVLNOD FHL NIHLIM 03SOdX3 LON SI 314 L0OY 5l
o0ze %820 o oo wnino1uR0j aydeISeDY dossAu el anig ANV
40 W04 WHNLYN 3HL NIVLZ 'SIHONVAE GIOVINVA HO Qv3A IAOW 2
o HEEO ero a Foine ez Slopuexely uepio “3INA3HOS ¥3d SLNVId TIVLSNI NV 30INO¥d T
0e0 %gE0 sTo €10 saplouueIay sisdolaH Jamojjuns Ajse3 STION ONILNY 1d INIA ONY SNaHS
620 %zr0 910 vro osuapeUR) WNIpoWSaq )
ozt %050 610 1o epipued Baleq 191010 o1eId DM,
awosovton /-
o %250 020 810 eueolBWE BN e ueoniaUy v 5
or'g %250 020 810 =11y BPfoagPNY uesns pake-yoe|g 9ON1d SNO3JVEH3IH 1Ivi3a
vz wrTEz 68 00 [er01ans sessein
00 %110 100 %00 wniebin wnoiued sseibyoums
880 %160 90 20 X1SAY SNWAI sseid usnigapiog “1Iv130 TYNOLLIJQY ¥Od SNOILYOHIOTAS INFWHSI18VLST
- ~ P —— INVd SNO30VEMIH 335 “ISNIdX3 SHOLOVHLNOD Ly G3DV1d3d 38 TIVHS savomns
ore 966LT 690 290 wnue 03 wnuAe 1S 1sonid s ATLHOISNN ¥O AHLTYIHNN G3ININY3L3A ¥O QV3A WY LYHL SINVId TIV(VIAT)
ory %68'T Zrt 001 SueINU WSEYBIOS. sseib ueipul GORI3d FALNVHYNO FHL 30 AN FHL 1V ‘NOILIGNOD AHLTVIH V NI NIVINIVA
0L ORiZd FALNVHYND LNOHONOUHL ANYSSIOIN SV ¥3LVM OL MOLOVAINOD L
0ee 68T art 00T einpuadiuno enof@inog eureib sioopis ONILNY1d 43147 ATHONOYOHL ¥3LYM ‘9
8¢ %067 ot 001 1psesab uobodospuy waisan(q big "ONINYId OL 4ORdd 1O 40 WOLLOE AJIMYOS 'S
: " “ 5 ‘SLOOY HLIM 1OVINOD 0009 FuNSNI OL TI0S Walld MOTIVHS 0OL 40 d330 00L
sre w9e ot set Snineakyoen snwAs Sceibmeun fenuers INV1d LON 00 - TI0S HLIM NIAT dOL TIVELOOY ONINOIY HOTNW HONOBHL INVd %
sz %19E or't sz1 sisuapeues WA 341 pim BuIppON 'S100¥ NS00 OL TIVELOOY 30 WOLLOB Hv3dd €
- TIVEL00Y 40 HLOIM SIWLLE FTOH LVAVOXE T
o HPEY 89T 08t ey snwo.a ouolq st IINAIHOS ¥3d SINVId TIVLSNI ANV IAINO¥d T
(s1d) (LHOIZM AG) (wH/OM) (ovrisgm) ‘S3LON ONILNV1d ONd SNOIOVEAIH
Ladaseaas | o en i SNYN DIHILNZIDS SWYN NOWNOD
15aM 7 UInoS aBp3 PUEIPOOM TTZ-9E
FwosoLion /- awosorton /-
ONILNYTd 33HL TIVLIA NG FON34 NOILOFLOHd IFIL IVLIA \}
S M3IA 3AIS M3IIA LNOHH
404 SNOILYOIHIOFAS INIWHSITEVLST INVId 1108 TisovE 3avuoans
SNO30VEXIH 335 “ISNIdX3 SHOLOVHLNOD a3guNLSIaNn o
LV Q30V1d3 38 TIVHS A1LHOISNN 80 3ava9ans ONILSIXA IREAEN -
AHLIVIHNN G3NINR130 ¥O Av3A 34V LYHL SL33IHS 33S 'NMOHS Sv L
S334L TV AORI3d IIINVHVND FHL 40 ANI. NOILOALONd HOJ SITML @
SHL 1V ‘NOLLIGNOD AHLTYEH V NI NIVINIVIY FSOTONT ATILITANOD \ z
L (3¥3AT) QORIAd FAUNVAIVND LNOHONOBHL SR s i T H
ok | e AHVSSIOAN SV HALYM OL MOLOVHINOD ‘ET A A A A A1 B r
5 | 55255 ‘QOI43d FILNVAVNO SHL LNOHONOUHL
NOILISOJ 8WNTd ¥ NI S334L ONINIVANIVA
annos 404 F18ISNOASY SI HOLOVHINOD 2T b
SHL OLNI 13342 LSVI1 1Y ANVId 3
QIHOHONY 38 1SNW STIVLS 40 3SVE HLIM 1OVINOD NI 38 OL HONWON 'TT i
“(NV1d ¥3d SV a3uVdIdd (NOLLYTTVLSNI
S150d-L 1318 @ 710S) 331 GNNOYHY .£ 40 HLA3A ¥ OL ONY 3341 OL VANIAIOND “dAL.O £
.v2 40 SNIavy v 0L (JOOMA¥YH a3Aa3uHS HOINW QOOMaAVH 'FON34 40
§ 33244 033 G33M - 9 JdAL 2Z88E O3S Q3003HS . woLlo8 -
Lt LOGINW) HOTNW GOOMAYYH 3AAFHHS 30V 1d 0T HOHONY
. 3Y¥14 LOOY IN08Y SLOOH 1vdvo Hi¥va
NOLLYTIVLSNI 4O SHNOH € NIHLIM ¥3LVM SNOMAI Ny SHOSowLNYAGY
ATHONOUOHL ‘NISYE ONIMILYM .€ LONMISNOD 6
'NOLLISOd 8WNd GINIVANIVAY 40 SHY3A ST 00K ANOCHY Sdvo By On SUnss Fnonam any S onona: L
(2) OML M3L4Y ONINYLS 334L FHL INONTY ¥ SdVALS INTTAHLIATO NV NI NIVANIVIN OL SSYW LOOY ANNOXY oS ¥o - 318v0 : ®
o 4O INTTAJONIATO I0S I3 ONY 110S ONILNYId HLIM TIH%0¥8 '8 HOININ HLIM G3¥3A00 LON ANV J5331s w_wwwx,m [ ] N -
3909 0T HLIM SLSOd-L NI STTOH OL OL Xid3¥ N o P e S 3AVHO LV 38 OL '3V LooY T a3aivug dALS - </
NV NNYL ONNOYY SAVHLS INFTAHLIATOL ONLLNY T oL FINAIHOS ¥3d IIUL '
0 INZIAOUAATOH A 07 ONOT.9T TIVASNI '€ . . —/
SINNL HOMATION 405301 ANV IO LLOE A om - LO300¥d FHL 40 WL FHL LNOHONOUHL - /| -
JHL 40 JAIS ¥IHLIF NO ANNOYS THL OLNI > AMVYSSIOIN SV J0V1dTY HO NIVANIVA OL —_"
Z G3MOHONY ‘S1S0d-1 1331S 8 (2) OML TIVASNI 2 LOOY NVHL HIOHVT NI .9 mwwwn wqumzw_w s F18YQVHOIAOLOHINON (€) ¥I¥d3d ANV ATdVINO3 FONIH LOASNI 'S HSTN 812 X 8T /M FONIH p— ! =
ONLLNVId 3381 OL IVANIGIONI 35¥8 0L 1108 30¥4NS FLYAYOXT HINIVINOD $150d-L 13315 () oV AL MONS DSV JONVHO OH H.67 - yu bl
G3Y3AISNOD 38 TIVHS ONINVLS F3dL 318v0 H04 430ANLS 38 TIVHS S1SOd-L 7 1S0d ¥3d 1
. SHL NIHLIM 03S0dX3 LON SI 3413 1008 I % :
ONLLNY1d ONIMOTIOS ALITYOILYIA NIVANIVA v A e . S3ILQ3ZNI8VLS SEIL S NIW ‘S3IL T19YD NOTAN J— 7
dOL 1v.9 AN FUNLYAIANIL 0100 HIHLVIM —— A=
OL G3IL ANV DIVLS 368 TIVHS SITULTIY__ 1T LON 0Q "LN¥1d 50 WHOH TYHNLYN 3HL NIVL3Y 4 318YaV493A0LOHd-NON -
SIION ONDIVIS 3381 T e WOLLO8 LV SONINIHO .9 INFULXE 34V S3IL 318YO JUNSNI —
P 1) 30N34 4330 AIZINVATYD V34V GION3S NI INTWAVSLNS TYAINY a30vds —
3341 0L TVINIAIONI GFHIAISNOD I8 VN TIVL S N S S e 2 JE— ATN2A 'S1SOc-L 115 19 —
TIVHS NOLLO3LOMd 331 "ONISMOUE TYNINY ONIIAIS LNSAGNG p— - -
WO¥3 10310¥d OL ONIONIH ¥330 GIZINVATYD B —! = -
OL 1S0d ISNIVOY LHONVL a3TINd J— P ——
A8 G3SOTONS 38 TIVHS S334L SNONAIDIA TV 2 S S 319YD TUNSNT NMOLS v —— P —
FINA3HOS ¥3d SINVId TIVLSNI ONY 3AINO¥d T - S

SILON ONIINV1d 3381

AT3UND3S YOHONY ANV SLSOd NIIMLIE -
LHONYL GITIN SI 3ON34 JUNSNI__T
SIION

3114 AUaUBn0q  UepuBIE ¥3SN QYD

0

Wd ST 2202186 ‘31Y0 1014 27T FIWOS 10Td SMTNYTd



- B . = o e
Q .m_n;._._ VLOMYQ / SLHOIFH VLOANIW  ALNNOJ/ALID HLYON NOISIAI -3L¥A 30IAS3S NI o52-268 (z56) e
Lzz2ee 08T
- - z20zi20/60 | QHE :AQ QINOYAAY | sevss i sroavanmim |~ sasmmon—————210
8€28€0T0SY  :1J3rO¥d _ ANYAOO ¥3MOd S3LYLS NYIHLYON 43 INIO 3OINY3S oozauns | T asnunors
2202120160 aHE  :Ag @INDTHD [anwma 3iniodrzwm ooer [—
S0y SNOILYDIFID3dS ONILNY1d ANV NOILYAYISIH 341 e WEIRas 503 Ganssl | v_| Zoeiioro | uva Ag 0anNoisad P JoUT 19D
mm<m 310w T G ossions | @
NOISSIHddNS JdId I ISYHd AOOMI TV 3Lva | A8 NOLd¥OS3q [ON | covaniomd | MY __‘AG NMvHQ
0 NOLIYOIID3S N e SHL 1ML AJILNE0 AGSHEH 1
ONIMYHA SNOISIATS 31vad AHOLSIH
NOILONYLSNOD ¥04 LON 4331 TIVHS HOLOVHINOD 'G0RIZd FONVNILNIVIY LNVd 40 NOLLVAIGX3 TLNN ONV SNOLLY3dO ONLNVId ONLLUVLS ¥3LdY 2 “30¥W 38 TIVHS NOLLYSNZANOD WNOLLIGAY ON ANV NIZ3H 031103dS YHOM 3HL OL TYANIAIONI ARIAISNOD
, 34 SNOILOISNI ATHLNOW ‘G3NSS! N338 SYH 3ONV.LIII0V TYNId 40 FOLLON TLLNN ANV QOI3d ALNVARYM
3LV 1 YIATHOHM ‘NOLLITINOD TYILNYLSENS 1DIC0Nd TLLNN HO .
1440 AYYNINMIEd ORIFd 1OVHINOD FHL 40 NOILYHNA HYAA-IHHL V HO4 38 TIVHS QORI3d JONVNILNIVW LNV IHL ‘AORIFd JONYNILNIVA FHL 30 NOILYHNG 3HL HOHOM FHL MIINTH OL SNOILOIFASNI 3LIS ATHLNOW WHOSIH TIVHS HOLOVHINOO JHL  'TeT
3HL SY NMONX 38 TIVHS HOIHM 30 NOLLYNNA 3HL ‘ALIIBISNOJS3Y SIHL 40 G3A3I34 N338 SYH 3H TLLNN G3TIVASNI JORIFd ALNVHHVM ONING ONILYOdIY ANV NOILOIdSNI - "€T
SINVId 03 YD ANV YHOM JHL NIVANIVW TIVHS HOLOVHINOD ‘SNOLLVAIIAO ONILNYId TWILINI FHL 50 NOLLIIdWOO NOdn  'T SIHONVE 0 SIHOLVA
ONIAQ ¥O ‘NIHL '‘Qv3A 40 J3t4 38 TIVHS ‘GNY HOT0D ONY ‘JdVHS '37IS 'ALISNIA TYWNON ONILYHISNOWIQ
OR3d SONVNILNIVIV 8V3A -330HL HLMOYD FAILVIIOIA IAVH ‘QFUNVTd NIHM LNISTHd 39VI104 FHL 40 %08 40 WNWINIW ¥ 838 “TIVHS SINVTd TTZT
SAILVINISTIATY NOLLIGNOD ONIMOMO SNOHOSIA 0 ANV ‘N3O ‘AHLTVEH 38 TIVHS SONINVI TV T2
SHINMO HO HINMO A8 HOLOVHLNOD JHL OL ONILIMM NI GILLINENS 38 TIIM NOLLYOIHILON ‘3ONVLAZO0Y WNIHNOdN 26 SOUVANYLS 3OV43A00 NV NOILINOD 2T
G1TTANOD Ty SINIWIOV 143 TIV 3LV ANV QORIId ALNVEEYM UINMO AS JONVLIIOOV AMVNINITZA 0 INLL IHL WOUS ¥V3A (T) INO 30 QORIId V 403 NOLLINOD ONIMOYO
3HL 50 GN3 FHL LV SHOM MIIAZY OL G13H 38 TIM NOLLYOIJID3dS SIHL HLIM ZONVGHOD0V NI NOLLDIASNI WNIH Y ‘T'62 SNOXODIA ANY AHLIVAH V NI 38 OL SINVTd SNOSOVENIH NV ‘SENAHS 'SITUL TIV INVEHVM TIVHS HOLOVHINGD  'TT
3ONVLAI0OV WNI4 62 SINV1d SNOIOVANIH NMONO-UINIVINOD ANV ‘SENNHS 'STIUL T
UINMO FHL AS GILNIOIAY AINVHEVA
LSINVLO8 ¥ A8 0390N€ 38 T1IM SNOLLYOIddY 117S OL 30 NIV INV1d 40 NOLLYNIWK3L3A 3HL ‘NOLLYOIddY LIS LINY/33S ONIV3E LON JuV SI03dS JAISVANI LVHL OS SILLIAILOY G3Lv134-LOIC0Ud 50 ONINIL ¥3AISNOD LY
01300 SLNV1d 40 SSOT HO/ANY 'WSIVONVA OL 310 SIUNTIVA ¥4 FIBISNOASI G13H 38 LON TIVHS HOLOVHINGD  T8Z STYINALYW SSYWNOI8 AGOOM 30 ONISYLS ONIMNG F18ISSOd SY HONW SV JONVERUNLSIA ANNOYO 30NAT 9
SNOILGFOX3 2 3LIS 03TUNLSIA AQVIXTY NO TVIN3LVIN SSYNOIE AQOOM JOVIS ‘T1BVOILOVEd NIHM 'S
ATONIQHODOY AOII3d ALNVHEYM FHL ANILX3 TIVHS ‘NOSYIS . ONNO4 I LVIUL ANV ONLLNOYSIY |
ONLLNY1d INO NYHL FHOW OLNI ONIGIS THL ANALX HOIHM 'SNOLLVAHAO ONIGZ3S 40 NOLLETINOD NI SAVIZ  T'22 ¥0 NOILYNINY39 S3103dS JAISVANI 40 3ONIAIAT 4O SYIHY ONIDVLS ONY ‘STIVL IS ‘SOVOY SSFO0V HOLINOW 7%
savisa vz SV3HY ONIOVLS ANV STIVAL QIYS 'SAVON SSI00V FZINININ '€
» ¥3A0O MONS 31VNO3AY HLIM ANV ANNOHO N3ZO¥Hd NO ‘YHOM 318ISSOd 4l 2t
ALNVRIHYM HIANN 38 TIVHS ONIG33S INJNSOVId3S  Tree ‘S3LIS GILSIANI NI ONI ONY LSHId SILIS GILSIANIN NI ¥4OM 'SAVA 40 QORI ¥ ¥IAO SILIS ITdILINW NO ONNOM I T'¥
ALNVHHYM INIWIOVIdTS 97 Sro8v a3Lsh
SNOLLVA3dO 3ONVNILNIVA ANV ONIG33S ‘NOLLVAYdId AQV3HTY 3SOHL OL NOLLIAQY NI 'S3103dS JAISYANI 40 JONVNINOG JHL ONISVIMONI 40 ¥SI 3HL JZININIW OL S3HNAIO0H 7
‘SNOILOFASNI ‘NOILOF T3S ‘NOISIA XI OL SV SINTWIHINOTY TIv OL 10308NS 38 TIVHS ONIGIIS INIWIOVTATS  TSZ SIVRILYA 2LIS40/AAISLNG 40 35N FHL ZWININ e
ININEOVIERY 5T anno:
HINMO OL 1500 TYNOILIAAY ON LY QOI3d ALNVRHYM 3HL 40 ONS SHL Ly ONY YA HOV3 ONIMNA SAHVANVLS 41 1V34L ONY ONILNOHASI O NOLLYNIWE3D S3153dS IAISVANI 40 JONIAIAZ O IONVANLSIA I0S 40 SY3UY HOLINOW ‘€€
39V3A0D ONV NOILIONOD G3LVLS 3HL 133W LON S300 HOHM YHOM LOFHH0D ISIMYIHLO ANV INVId3 '033ST  T+Z Q31SIANIND
QOIM3d ALNVERYM ONIING SHOM SALDTHHOD  +Z SV Q311430 I LYHL HOTNW ANV “TIAVAS ‘MYALS “T1I 'SINVTd “TVI¥3LVW ONIG33S 3dAL0D3 T¥D0T 3N ‘TTAISSOd 3l 2
. S3103ds
TIN3 NI L3W 34V 3A08Y G3LSI VIHILIHO I9VHIA0D ANV NOLLIGNOD .
L NIHM G3LAT00Y GNY 3LE1ANOD GSHIAISNOD 98 T1M HLOM L JoNYLoaooy TV Hos Syaty 0Sa5as 11y SAISVANI 40 3ON3STId FIGISIA ¥O3 STVRIZLYIN ANV SHINIVLNOD J9VHOLS ‘INIWdINO LYOASNYAL 40 JAISLNO 1DFdSNI '€
M3IINTY OL QORI ALNVHHYM FHL 4O ONI FHL LV FALLVINISTHATY SHINMO O HINMO HLIM ONILTIN V 1SINOTY  '§€T 4D'SSTIONA THL NI (013 SINYId ‘GIES HOTN MYMLS "EAVES ,xuoxmﬂﬂuomzv MMWWMM%&u,%wnm‘rwm%%r%ﬁwmmm@ .
3UINOIY SI NOLLOY JALLOTHHOO 5l HO FONVLAZOOV 5O NOLLYOIILON NILLRM HOLOVAINGO OL LIWGNS TIIM oS
SAILYINISIUAIY SHINMO ¥O HINMO JHL ‘NOILOIASNI 3LIS JHL ONIMOTIOH 'SS300NS LNIWHSI18VLSS d33S MIINIY
OL NOSV3S ONIMOY HOVA 40 AN JHL 1v IALVINISTUT SHINMO HO HINMO HLIM ONLLFIWILIS ¥ ISINOTY  vEZ GFLSTINNHOM NGBS 31 ISN 3HOIIA NG 3415 A0 O M.,“umwmwﬂﬂﬂﬁ%M__n“,mmw_znmﬁ%uﬂmum,uwpwﬂﬂﬁwgmm e
Ly JFBIN03Y S1 NOLLOY AALOTHHOO ANY 31 HO JONYLA300Y 30 NOLLYOHILON NILLIM BOLOWHLNGD OL Linans 1 ONISN 30438 YUY Lv3uL 'F18YAIOAYNN NIHM 'S3I03dS SAISVANI 40 STHOLV NI 3OVHOLS HO ‘ONDRIV 'ONMMOM QIOAY ‘82
OL G3LNVd SI G33S ¥3L4V SAVA (09) ALXIS FAILYLINISTHATY SHINMO HO HINMO HLIM ONILFIN 3LIS ¥ 1SINOIY £ET STIVEL APIS ANV SAVOY SSFOOV A8 JONVAHNISIATIOS ANV NOLLYLIOIN 0 VAUV IZINININ - "L 2
TV - 3LIS OL SINIOd SS300V 40 ¥IGWNN SZINININ 92
SHINMO HO HINMO OL WLLINGNS OL HORd TINA NI LI TINOD S| WHOS JUNSNI “WHOS IONYNILNIVI “SIONVEUNLSIA TIOS YIHLO ANV ONILLAY IZININIA OL SNOLLIGNGD LIM B3NN MHOM LON 00 752
INOILOISNI LIS (ANG Lv) GIHOVLLY FHL ONISN GINUON3d NOLLOSJSNI IS HOVA HOd LHOdT v 3AIN0Ud  ZEZ ‘S3LIS GILSIANI SA GILSTANING NO SN HO4 HVID ANV 'INIWAINOT ‘STTOIHIA DIHIDIAS JLYNDISIA ‘TTAISSOd NIHM '+
30V 38 TIVHS NOLLYSNIAWOD WNOLLIAQY ON ONY NIZY3H G313103dS SHOM SHL OL TVANIAIONI G3IAISNOD HIWHYD VS 10O NV ANY HOLTD L0 NYO OL NIVHD JNONT SMYSNIVHD
ey SO BN A LNOM AN 8] NS SyH SNV LT NN 10 1L ON T G GO A LA 403 00 JLVINAONddY HIHLO HO ‘YOSSTHANOD HIV ¥O HIHSYM MO 'HSNHE LOOE TIACHS 'HSNYE AT TLSINE
JHL 50 NOLLYENG SHiL HOm TN S MAIATE O OIS LIS AT NON NEOUY TS O LOVIINGD L Te2 S1LS ¥ 35N D13 'STYWINY ANV 110S ‘G 'ST33S 'SLHVd LNVI/SLNYId TTAISIA 40 3343 Fv SWILI JuNSN 3LIS ONIAVIT
ANV ONIYILNI OL HOId SWSINVOHO NV “1I0S ‘NOILY.LIOIA FAOWIH ANV ¥VIO ANV 'LNIWCINDS 'STIDIHIA TV LOFdSNI - €2
ORI ALNVEHYM ONIHING ONILHOGZY ONV NOLLDIASNI €2 ‘S3ILIALLOY 10300 NI GIATOANI SILLYYA TIV LT TVINELYW LNVId/SINEIA/ LI
UINMO JHL OL 1500 TYNOLLIQY 40 G3UVA1D 34 VIO ANV 'LNIWAINO3 'SITOHIA TIV JUNSN3 OL 3LIS ONINVITO ¥ AJILNIAI LSNW SINVOMddY IHL 22
ON 1V AT3LVIGIWAI G3QI3STH 38 TIVHS 1334 F4VNOS SZ NVHL ¥ILVIHO STHOLVA QVAQ 'ALISNIA TVNIOINO THL % 1Y “WIHL HONOUHL SNIAGN OL OIHd WINL LV3UL HO ‘STHOLYA
030335-3 38 TIVHS QORIId INIWHSI18VLS3 FHL ONINNG INLL ANV LV L3140 JAI0IGU3H A8 03AOHLSIA HO S303dS 3STHL HONONHL ONIAOW GIOAY HIHLIT ANV ‘SNOLLYLSIANI FSVASIA HO LOISNI 4O SID3AS IAISYANI TVILSTHAL
ILOX3 A8 LNO G3HOHO NI38 IAVH SLNVId IALLVN 3SN¥D38 HO A3HSI18VLSI ATIN4SS300NS IW0D3E LON 3AVH 50 S3HOLVd ONILSIXE 40 SNOLLVOOT QHOIIYALON ‘INIWLYZIL L1 SAMVH 30438 LIS ABAMNS  TZ
SLNVId SAIVN 3571938 TN4SSIO0NSNN SVaMY 531035 TS 30 405 30 ANWININ ONY SLVINGSIHG3N SHINNO 3LIS 199008d WORH/OL (D13 'SOVE ALIILN ‘SHIAVHASISHOVANOVE
A8 ININGILIA Sy S3ID3dS LNV JALYN 40 43N0 3608 NANININ SV A3NIJIA S| SSI90NS F3ONVLIIIOV TNI LN 'SAVHO HVIAIN ‘SAVHLS OHOT3A (3dd) INFWAINDT FAILLOTLOH TYNOSHI 'ONIHLOTO ‘S1008) ¥vIO ANV ‘(013 ‘SHI VAL
ANV QOIH3d ANVERYM A3I193dS 3HL HONOUHL SYIHY 03A3IS FLNVHVNO TIVHS HOLOVHLNOD 'SIIOIS LNV 'S/ALY 'SHOLOVAL ‘SHONYUL ‘MYS HSN¥E 'SMYSNIVHO) INJWINOI AAVIH ANV LHOI 'STTOIHIA 40 INIWIAOW TYNOLINALNI 2
SALLYN HLIM G3033S SY3UY ‘SAUYANYLS ONIMOTIOA 3HL L33W TIVHS ONIGIIS JALLYN 40 FOVHIA00 ANV HIMOND 122
(Q3ddvaim 3UY STVINILY IAISYANI
SQUVANVLS 3OVHIA0D ANV NOILIONOD 22 ¥O G3H3A0D SIONYL "9'3) L1YOdSNYHL 3¥0438 03WNI3IS MY ILIS 1O3r0d IHL WOMS A3AOW3Y STYINILYW TIV IUNSNI (a3
0F T4y HONONHL T YIBWIAON 40 QORI LNVAROQ IHL 3ANTONI LON TIVHS QORI ALNVAMVM SIHL T2 310333 S3LINNOD 11V ¥03 YOLOIASNI TVAINLINOROY ALNNOD
HINMO A8 JONYLAF00Y ANYNINIT3t Ha.L3Y QORI HYSA - (1) INO ¥ HO4 H3LvaRaH 40 MOLOTISNI AT WI0T IHL ONILOVINOD A8 LNFWAINDT HO TVINALVI G3LSIANI NI 033 SNOIXON GILORNLST 40
Q3NI430 SAUVANY.LS 3DVHIA0D ANV NOILIANOD 3HL 133 TIIM ‘SYIY ONIGIIS TIV LVHL LNVENYM TIVHS HOLOVHINOD T2 SLYVd ONILYOVAOUd LYOJSNVHL OL LINH3d NILLIMM ¥ NIVLEO '88'8T OL S2'8T SNOILOIS ‘8T ¥3LdVHO SILNLVIS NW ¥ T'T
ONIGI3S NOLLY.LIOIA FALLYN 2 RITLYIW SSYWOIS AOOM 30 LNIWIAOW TYNOLINILNI T

YINMO A8 4O GIA0HdAY 38 T1IM SILALLOY INIWFOYNYIN GISOdOHd ANV GIMIINTY 38 TIVHS SLHOdIH ONIMOLINOW

NOISO¥3 ANV NOILLOVAIOD S¥ HONS T10S HLIM S3NSS! YTEY
S3ILIAILOY INIWIOVNVA 40 31NA3HOS ETEY
‘SIILIAILOY INIWIOVNYI 0ISOdOYd zTEY
ANJWHOVOHON S3103dS
IAISYANI ANV ONIGI3S 50 FuNTIV4 ‘STI0S A3LOVAWOD SY HONS LNIWHSII8YLS3 NOILYLIOIA HLIM SINSSI TTEY
ONIMOTI04 3HL 3ANTONI ANY G3DNA0Yd 38 TIVHS 140434 ONHOLINOWY  TE%

(4380.100-AVI) SNOSY3S ONIMOYO FHL ONIING SHIIM

9% AMIAT SVIHV G33S JAILVN FHL HOLINOW LSID0T093 NOILVHOLST JALLYN G3111YNO ¥ IAVH TIIM HOLOVHINOD HL

033S 0L 09 OL A3MOTTV 33M SNOIXON ANY 40 ISOdSIA ANY ‘OVE 1N

TIVHS HOLOVHLINOD 'NOSYIS ONIMOYS JHL ONI¥NG LNIO ANV LV G33S OL 09 OL GIMOTIY 38 TIVHS G3IM SNOIXON ON
'1D3LIHOYY 3dvOSANY FHL HLIM NOSY3S ONIMO¥O FHL LNOHONOXHL
SAFIM SNOIDVENTH TIV 40 NOLLYDIQV23 ¥O4 SOHLIN ANV ONIWIL FLYNIGHO0D TIVHS HOLOVHLNOD SHL
'SINIWLY3YL 3AIDI8Y3H ANV ONIMOW 'OL G3LINIT LON 3V 1N8 'FANTONI AV SINOINHOIL INIWIOYNYIN

'SV3YY ISTHL NIHLIM S31D3JS AFIM JAISYANI TV JOVNVIN

GNY INJWHSI18Y1S3 033S JALLYN FLOWO¥d OL SINDINHOIL INFWIOYNYW NOILYLIOIA AlddV TIVHS HOLOVHLNOD IHL

S3103dS INVId JALLYN HLIM 03a33S

SYIUY NIHLIM 3ONYNILNIVIY NOILYLIOIA HO3 HOVOMddY LNIWIOVNYIN FALLAVAY NV 3ZIILN TIVHS MOLOVHINOD FHL

€y
(a4

zTY
TTY

v

a3YINO3Y STVIMALYIN INFWIOV1d3Y ANY JO S1SOO FHL ONIGNTONI ‘ISNIAX3 SHOLOVHINOD HL 1V 38 TIVHS HHOM
SONVNILNIVA LNV Id 40 LSOO 11V "A¥YSSIOIN JIN0D3E AVI SV ATIVNOLLIAAY ¥O0 NOSVIS ONIMOND JHL ONRING SAYA 08
A¥3AT 4O SISYE WNININIW ¥ NO SONLLNYTd M3IN HL NIVANIVIW GNY LOFASNI TIVHS HOLOVINOD ‘SVIHY GIHOTNI NI HLMONS
G3IM TIV ONIAOWIY ANV NOILISOd LHOIHAN N NI SINVd FHL ONINIVLNIVI 11I0S ONIINYId ONY HOINW M3N ONIINTONI
‘Q3033N SV SINV1d INSWIOV 1434 ONITIVLSNI ONY ONIHSINNNE ‘ANYSSIOIN SV AVHdS QIDILOISNI ONIATAAY 'SWILI
IVLNIAIONI ¥3HLO ANV "NOILOTL0Hd LNIAOY “I0S ONIINYTd “WINILYIN HOINW IHL AMYSSIOTN SV ONIOV1d3Y ¥O ONILSNCAY.
"ONIFIVAIY 'STNIL TIV LV FHNLSION T10S 31YNOIAY ONINIVINIVIA 3O LSISNOD TIVHS YHOM FONYNILNIVIN INVId FHL

NOSV3S ONIMOYS ONIHNA AIWHOM3d SIOILOVHd TWHNLINDILIOH 00D ONISN ‘NOLLIANOD ONIMOYO AHLTYIH NI SINY1d

v

IALVINISTHdTY

SI0IIoVad INSWIOVNVA 1538

103r0¥d SIHL O S.dWE 40 ALIMIAYOIddY FHL INIWEELIA

SHINNO HO HINMO AT HOLOVHLNOD 3HL OL ONLLIMM NI GILLINGNS 38 TIM NOLLYOIILON HONVLAZOOV WNIINOAN 208 TIM SALLYINISTHATY S.AOOMI VI 40 ALID IHL ANV IOVNVIN LOICONd SLNVOIddY FHL SNV INSYANI SNOTOVETH
03LI1dNOD 34y SININAOV 13 T1v MLV QORI ANV 40 QV3UdS FHL INIATHd OL 3OV1d NI ISOHL ATIVIOFAS *AlddY LON AVI S.dIN8 FHL 40 3WOS ‘FT8ISSOd SV IONVEUNLSIA
SHL S0 NS SHL LY RIOM MR OL T13H 38 TIM NOLLYOIIOIAS SIHL HLIM SONVGHO00Y NINOILOIASNI NI Y T6T 710S 3L SY LOM4NI OL SINYOITddY IHL 50 LNFWIANOT 3L ANY 19300 THL 50 ONINLL FHL O1 30 'SILIS LOIOMd
FONVIJIOOVWNIF 6T SSYWOIS AJOOM IHL 340 HO OLNO STVINILYW HO/ANY 4v39 'INTWINOS 'SITOHIA 40 INIWIAOW TYNOLLNILNI IATOANI LVHL
“YINMO FHL AB QILNIOAAY SILLIALLOY T1V 104 SAD3AS JAISVANI 40 QIdS SHL ONIONGT 404 (S.dNE) STOLLOVEA INIWISVNVIN 1S38 ONIMOTIOH THL
LSINVLOE ¥ A8 G390NE 38 T1IM SNOLLYOIddY 175 OL 3A JHNTIVA LNY1d 40 NOLLYNINNEL3D SHL NOLLYOITddY L1vs 40 35N 3HL YIAISNOD OL AFHINOTY 38 T1IM SINYOI1ddY FHL TT0HLNOD SIOTAS IAISVANI 4O STOILOVEA ININIDYNYI 1538 2
01 3NA SINV1d 40 SSOT HO/ANY 'WSITVANVA OL 3NA SFUNTIVE ¥O4 F1FISNOJSIY Q13H 38 LON TIVHS HOLOVHINOD T8T 'SG33S ANV ‘S¥E3A DINVOHO “110S 30 334 3LIS NOLLONYLSNOD FHL LV IARIYY LSNIW INIWJINO3 1TV
SNOILdZOX3 BT 315 NOILONEISNGD
ATONIGHOOOY COTd ALNYHYA SHL ONALXE TIVHS 'NOSVES N¥1d T0MLNOD NOISON3 £0-9 ANV dddMS T0-9 335 ‘SNOLLVSIO
LN SO NYHL SHOM 0L SNLLNYId SHL IS L L e O e S ot NOLLOMHISNOD LNOHONOXHL dddMS 4O SLNFNIINOT t3d STANSYIN TOHLNOD NOISOHT TIY NIVANIVIN OL HOLOVALNGD LT
savEa ot SIHONV2E HO v 3L FOVINYA LON
00 °S100¥ I3L YIAO STVIHALYW AAVIH JAA HO THOLS LON O “STL ONILSIXS ONISVWYQ GIOAV TIVHS OLOVHINOD FHL 9T
ALNVAHEYM H3ANN 38 LON TIVHS MOOLS INSWIOV1d3 ot 'SIIONVAIHOSIA ANV 50 LOFLIHOYY FdVWOSANY] ISIAQY "NOILYTIVASNI ONINNIOFE FHO38 STHNLYIS I0v4uNs-ans
ALNVAMYM INNEOVIAZY 9T GNY JOVRINS 40 SNOLLYOOT 119 WAINOD “3LIS 3HL 30 AJAMNS TVIDIHH0 NV ILNLILSNOD LON S300 ONIMVAA SHL ‘ST
SNOLLYY3JO FONYNILNIVIW ONY ONLLNYTd ISNIdX3 SHOLOVHINGD
‘NOILVVd3d 'SNOILOIASNI 'NOLLOITIS OL SV SINFNIHINOIY TV OL LOICANS 38 1IVHS ¥OOLS INFWIOVIdIS  ZST 1V Q3IVd3d 38 OL 3LIS OL FOVAYA ANV 'INIWAINDI AAVEH HLIM TI0S ONLLOVAOD JIOAY "SNOLLYHIAO ONILLNYId ONY
SALVANISIHATY SHINMO O HINMO ONY HOLOVELNGD NIIVLIE SLEIXS LNINTIHOV NY HONS 1 AORITd LNV ‘313HONOD ‘NOILVaVd3d TI0S A8 LOVANI WO¥S SINFNET3 LIS ¥3HLO ANV ‘SYTYMIAIS 'INIWIAVA ‘SBND ONILSIXT 1OTLO¥ 7T
YIHL 30 AN3 FHL OL HORId AIOV1d3Y 38 AVW SINVId "NOLLOIASNI ALNVHHVYM 3O SAVA (0T) N3L NIHLIM Q3OV1d3Y 'SNIS38 SONILNYId ONY JHOMHLNYI
38 TIVHS SNOILIANGD 3S3HL 11V AZSILYS OL NIV SLNYId ANY ‘NOLLIANGD NV ALY OL QMVSd HLIM 0438 SLIWM LOIC0Md 3HL NIHLIM G3LYO0T SILLITILA ONLLSIXT 11V 3NO HIHAOD A8 G31¥O0T JAVH TIVHS HOLOVMINOD ‘€T
SNOLLYOIAID3dS 3S3HL 40 SINIWIHINOZY FHL 1TV TI4INS TIVHS SLINVId TIV '‘OR3d ALNVAMVM HL 40 NI JHLLY  TST ‘STIY.30 ONLINYId 3351 ANV ‘8NHS 'ON1d SNOIOVEUIH HOd 10 133HS 335 2T
INEWIOVId ST Q3N3S00T 38 1SN 110S GINISO0T ATSNOIAT 40 NOLLOVANOD ANY "ATNG LNJWdINGI A3HOVEL INSSTUd ANNOHS MOT “TT
. . ONINISO01 1108 ¥3L4Y SYIuY
zo:«wu%ﬁmwmﬁmmﬂwﬁqﬂ_ﬁwwﬂ M s ONIO33S NI INSWAING3 G¥1L 38BN ON “ONIGVE NI 314 HLAIA.2T TINA ¥ OL TI0SJOL TILOLON O ‘did NISO0T ‘0T
39VH3A0D ONY NOLLIANOD SHL 13IW LON S30A HOIHM YHOM LOFHHO0D WHOSMAd ISIMHIHIO ONY INVIdId  Tr'T LOVEINOD SHL Ol IVINSAION| OIHIQISNOD 38 TIM ONIALYI 6
HINMO OL NOLLVOIHILON LNOHLIM SINVd ¥3LVM QORI ALNVANYM
QORITd ALNVHEVM ONINNG YHOM SNILOIHH0D  ¥7T HVY3A INO IHIINI ONI¥NA (NOILYOILILON 40 SSI1A¥YOIY) SINVId ONIMILYM ¥Od I18ISNOJSIY 38 T1IM HOLOVHINOD '8
TIN3 NI L3N 34V 3A08Y G3LSI VINILIHO J9VHIA0D ANV NOILIGNOD. coRsad
3HL NIHM 031d300V ANV 313TdN0D IUIAISNOD 38 TIM HHOM 3HL "JONVLAIOOV VNI HOd SYIY A3LINVId TV ALNVHYVM HYIA INO FYILNI ONINNA NOILISOd LHOIHMAN ANV 8INNTd NI SI3HL ONIJIIN O F18ISNOISTY S| HOLOVEINOD "L
AT OL GOINIA ALNVENVA JHL 40 N3 FHL 1v IALLVINIS T SHINMO HO MINMO HLM ONLLIAW Y 1SINOI 'S8T ANHHS ONY ‘S9t1L HOVE ONNONY £ 40 HLAAA ¥ OL ONY 2
Q3UINOIY SI NOLLOV JALOTHHOO dl ¥O FONVLAIOOV O NOLLYOIILON NILLRMM HOLOVAINGD OL LIWENS TIM 50 SNIaVY v OL (A0OMQ¥YH 030A3HHS 333 A33S GIIM - 9 JdAL 2288 O3S LOGINW) HOTNW JOOMAYH QIAATIHS IOVTd 9
JAILVINISTUATY SHINMO HO HINMO 3HL ‘NOILOTASNI 3LIS HL ONIMOTIOH ‘SS300NS LNFWHSIBYLSI LNVId MIIAZ AUV 38 OL 3U SONTd
OL NOSV3S ONIMOYD HOVE 4O AN JHL 1V JALLV.INISTHAIY SHINMO HO HINMO HLIM ONILIIN LIS V 1SINOIY VET ATLSYTNIHL "WNO00 OL SI ONIHOINIW MYHLS ANV ONIGIIS NIHL ‘LSHId IHO TN ANV 3INVId 38 OL 34V SBNUHS ANV S33L 'S
Q3UINOIY SI NOILOY NOISO¥3 INIAT¥d
IAILOTHHOD ANV 31 4O JONVLAIOOV 40 NOLLYOIHILON NILLRIM HOLOVAHLNOD OL LINENS TIIM JALLVINISTATY OL ONIG33S ¥3L4V AT3LVIGINWI LIHNYIE TOHLNOD NOISONI HLIM GRIIA0D 38 TIVHS T:E NVHL ¥3LV3NO SIAOTS TV ¥
SHINMO HO HINMO FHL ‘NOILOISNI 3LIS FHL ONIMO 104 'SSIOONS LNFWHSIEYLST LNVTd MIIATH OL NOLLYTTVLSNI Q71314 FHL NI LO3LIHONY 3dVOSANY 40 NOLLOINIA HLIM SINVId T1V 40 LNOAVT LYNIGHOOD TIVHS HOLOVHINGD €
INV1d SNOIOVEU3H 3LV SAVA (09) ALXIS IAILVINISTUAI SHINMO HO HINMO HLIM ONLLFIW ILIS ¥ 1SN0 EET “AM3AITIA LNV OL HOldd SAVA OML ONLINYTd 5O MINMO ONV LO3LIHDNY JdVOSANYY 3HL WHOINI 2
SAILVINISTII SLIIHS ONLINVIA JHLNI
SHINMO HO HINMO OL TV.LLINGNS OL HOI¥d TN NI 0313 1O SI IWHOT FUNSNE "WHOS SONVNILNIVV 3SIMUIHLO A3LVOIANI SV Ld30X3 'INIWHSI18VISI ANV NOILYTIVISNI LNV d ‘1252 O3dS LOONW OL WHOINOD TIVHS ONIINYId T
INOILO3ASNI 3LIS (N3 LV) GIHOVLLY FHL ONISN GIN043d NOLLOIASNI 3LIS HOV3 ¥4 L¥Od3H v 3AIAOHd  ZE'T SIION WESNES

3114 AUaUBn0q  UepuBIE ¥3SN QYD

Wd ST 2202186 ‘31Y0 1014 27T FIWOS 10Td SMTNYTd



MEMORANDUM

Date: October 5, 2022
To: Board of Managers and Staff
From: Nicole Soderholm, Permit Coordinator

Mary Fitzgerald, District Inspector

Subject: September Enforcement Action Report

During September 2022:
Number of Violations:

Install/Maintain Inlet Protection
Install/Maintain Perimeter Control
Install/Maintain Construction Entrance
Stabilize Exposed Soils

Contain/Dispose of Liquid and Solid Wastes
Remove Discharged Sediment

Implement Proper Dewatering
Maintain/Protect Permanent BMPs
Complete Required Site Inspections

Activities and Coordination Meetings:

Collaboration with private developers and public entities, miscellaneous resident
inquiries, ongoing ESC inspections/reporting, non-compliance follow-up inspections
and enforcement, WCA administration/procedures, new permit review with Barr
Engineering, permit closure/final walk-throughs, vegetation establishment and 48-
hour rainfall inspections, underground stormwater system permit inspections with
Barr Engineering, inspections team meeting, closed permit routine BMP inspections,
initial erosion control walk-throughs, pre-construction meetings, MN Water

Workforce Pilot meeting

-
(5]



Project Updates:

Sites where active work is recently complete, but vegetation establishment
requirements have not been met just yet:

#18-11 Whistler Pines (Shoreview)

#18-27 McKnight Road Development (North St. Paul)

#19-38 McKnight Road — Anchor Block Commons (North St. Paul)
#20-05 Frost Lake Elementary (St. Paul)

#20-07 John Glenn Middle School (Maplewood)

#20-39 Midland Terrace Phase | (Shoreview)

#21-06 Maplewood Fire Station County Road C (Maplewood)
#21-08 White Bear Lake High School South Phase 2 (White Bear Lake)
#21-22 748 Bielenberg Medical Office Building (Woodbury)
#21-30 Roseville Area High School Baseball Field (Roseville)
#22-02 Little Canada SIP (Little Canada)

Sites where active work is recently complete, vegetation establishment has been
met, and remaining permit closure administrative items are needed:

#19-04 Hiway Federal Credit Union (Woodbury)
#20-01 Carver Elementary School Addition (Maplewood)
#20-02 Conway Recreation Center Athletic Fields (St. Paul)

Elsewhere in the District, projects are continuing to start construction even at this
stage in the season, and active projects are being inspected by District staff on a
regular basis.

The Metro Transit Gold Line project (Permit #21-16) began this month with some
utility work. Staff scheduled an initial erosion control meeting with the contractor
and will inspect the site on a regular basis. The multi-year project spans four cities
and two watershed districts, resulting in 34 BMPs in RWMWD alone.

Single Lot Residential Permits Approved by Staff:

None

Permits Closed:

15-07 Academy Cesar Chavez (St. Paul)

19-07 Phalen Parking Lot Improvements (St. Paul)
19-22 Sterling Street Bridge Replacement (Maplewood)
20-10 NSP 7t Ave Reconstruction (North St. Paul)
20-30 Anchor View Apartments (North St. Paul)

21-03 Phalen Parking Lot Improvements Phase 2 (St. Paul)



*kkhkhkkhkhkkhkhk

Stewardship

Grant
Program

KEXKEKEIEKXEIEIETXEALKXX



Stewardship Grant Request

DATE: October 5, 2022
TO: Board of Managers and Staff
FROM: Paige Ahlborg, Watershed Project Manager

SUBJECT: 22-29 CS City of Woodbury Enhanced Street Sweeping

RWMWD staff and Barr Engineering are currently working on an Enhanced Street Sweeping study to
determine how to best prioritize and provide funding for increased sweeping efforts to improve water
quality. Results of this study will be shared with the Board of Managers at the December meeting.
While we were just beginning our process, the City of Woodbury and South Washington Watershed
District (SWWD) collaborated on development of a 2022 Enhanced Street Sweeping Plan, which
identifies an enhanced program as a cost effective Best Management Practice (BMP) to reduce nutrient
loading to City of Woodbury waterbodies and reduce maintenance needs of other BMPs. The SWWD
plan looks at specific parameters to determine the benefit of enhanced sweeping within the entire City
of Woodbury including the subwatershed areas of RWMWD (Carver Lake, Battle Creek Lake, and Battle
creek) which are outside the SWWD boundary.

After sharing the SWWD plan and reviewing with District staff, the City of Woodbury submitted a
request for grant funding to provide enhanced street sweeping in the RWMWD portion of their City.
This is a one-time request that comes at a unique time as we work to complete our enhanced street
sweeping study. Staff believes this proposal can provide valuable input in assisting staff and board
managers to determine how to move forward with funding for an enhanced street sweeping program
in the future.

The City of Woodbury has received quotes and will select the lowest bid sweeper to provide additional
street sweeping in SWWD, and is looking to pursue the same coverage in RWMWD for a not-to-exceed
cost of $50,000. SWWD is contributing $300,000 for enhanced sweeping in their area this fall. If
RWMWD chooses not to participate in the program, our area will be swept prior to leaf drop, as has
been done in the past, due to staffing and equipment availability. In contrast, the requested grant
ensures that two sweepers would be dedicated to RWMWD for 3 weeks; October 10 through October
28. These sweepings will target picking up leaves that are in the streets.

Summary of Woodbury review:

Reviewing the Woodbury street sweeping grant request has supported development of our street
sweeping prioritization analysis in a number of ways. The request gave us our first opportunity to
develop a cost-benefit analysis based on a street sweeping program request. The cost benefit analysis
showed us that, within the City of Woodbury, street sweeping is a cost-efficient non-structural BMP;
both in terms of total pollutant reduction and of pollutant reduction to downstream waterbodies. The



review process also gave us an opportunity to run quality assurance and control on our model reduction
values against the new MPCA Street Sweeping Calculator to see that both models estimated a similar
reduction total for the proposed condition.

Is Woodbury a “high priority” sweeping area?

Although our prioritization analysis is still in progress, there are likely to be high priority areas within all
municipalities within the District. Our analysis will include a “heat map” of pollutant loading, as well as
maps of high priority sweeping areas based on a number of prioritization criteria (e.g. total pollutant
load reduction, pollutant loading prevented from reaching “impaired” or “at risk” waterbodies, etc.).
Initial results show that Woodbury has higher average pollutant loading than neighboring municipalities,
based on slightly higher development density in those areas within RWMWD. As outlined below, all
major RWMWD managed waterbodies within Woodbury (Battle Creek, Battle Creek Lake, Carver Lake,
and Fish Creek) are “at risk” or “impaired,” and the entire City of Woodbury is currently considered a
priority area for the Stewardship Grant Program (shown in blue on the map below). This further
supports that many areas within the RWMWD portion of Woodbury will be considered high street
sweeping priority areas within the Stewardship Grant Program.

Summary of the street sweeping analysis within Woodbury:

Below is a summary of key elements of our Woodbury street sweeping analysis. Note that from the
perspective of total pollutant reduction and effective pollutant reduction, the enhanced street sweeping
program produces highly cost-efficient removal of total phosphorus. Please also note the impairment



status of RWMWD managed waterbodies within the City, and the high number of “priority” ponds
within the City.

The RWMWD street sweeping model (in development), calculates total pollutant reduction from the
proposed Woodbury Enhanced Street Sweeping efforts at an additional 52 pounds total phosphorus per
year compared to what they are currently providing (existing conditions removal = 65 |bs TP removal per
year; enhanced sweeping program = 117 Ibs TP removal per year). Current removal rates may be less
than removal predicted by the model, as Woodbury has typically conducted fall sweeping efforts prior
to leaf drop. The cost efficiency of the enhanced sweeping program is in the range of $700 to $1,550
per pound of total phosphorous removed, depending on the efficiency assumed.

According to the 2016 RWMWD Pond Prioritization Study, 11 of the 40 highest maintenance-priority
ponds and 4 of the top 20 ponds are within the City of Woodbury (411 total ponds were evaluated
within the study). The highest priority pond in Woodbury is ranked #11. A “high priority” pond from
this study is one that prevents pollutant loading to downstream, RWMWD-managed waterbodies and is
at risk of filling quickly over time. Enhanced street sweeping will reduce the amount of sediment going
into these ponds and provide additional time before maintenance is needed.

The City will submit an annual report summarizing efforts for the year by the end of the year. The report
will include summaries of labor, operation, and maintenance costs in addition to amount of material
collected and disposed of, broken down by sweeping area. The collected material will be weighed and
screened. This information will be useful in helping us determine future zoning and priority areas within
Woodbury and help assess how priority areas should be determined in other municipalities. Thisis a
one-time request and would not guarantee an Enhanced Street Sweeping grant will be funded by
RWMWD in the future, nor that the City of Woodbury would be guaranteed such a grant in the future if
a program is implemented.

Action Items
Staff is requesting action from the Board on the following items:

e Approve the City of Woodbury’s request for a not-to-exceed amount of $50,000 for the
implementation of the Enhanced Street Sweeping Plan in RWMWD.



FINAL DRAFT



pkalinosky
Text Box
FINAL DRAFT


[Page intentionally left blank for printing purposes]

ii|Page



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMIMARY ...ccooiiiiiiinnniiiiiiiiiinnnieeeiiiiimmmeieeeiiiimmsssmteesisimssssmmteeiiosmsssmtetetiiosssssmmttesiosssssssssassssssns 1
1. INTRODUCTION ...cueiiiiiiiiiinnereeeiiiiisisnteeetisisissssseeeesssissssssseesssssssssssssesessssssssssssesesssssssssssseasessssssssssssseesssssss 2
R - 1 =1 V11 I 2
2.1. Protection Of Water RESOUICES .......cc.eiiiiiiiriereeeet ettt et s bt e sbe et st e s sbe e beebesaeesbeenees 3
2.2. Compliance With PErmits & POIICIES ........uuiiieiiiecciiee ettt et e it e e et e e e tte e e e sate e e eeatae e e eeanaaeessaeaens 3
2.2.1.  MSA Permit REQUITEIMENTS .cciiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e seeeeeeeseeeeeeasaaaaees 3
2.2.2. NON-deZradation POIICIES ......c..iiiiiiiiieiieee ettt et e sb e st e s bt e sabe e s sabeesabeesabeesabeennneens 4
2.3. Safety, Aesthetics, and PUDIIC REIGTIONS.......ccuuiiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e s aaee e saaeeeeas 5
2.4. MaiNTENANCE BENETILS ..cuveeiieeeeeeee e e st e sr e e e e s e b e e e s e sreenes 5
0 W oo | I o oo Yo I o4 o] =T ot o] o FOR U OO OP OO PSR TR UPRUUPSRPRP 5
2.4.2.  ROAAWAY MaiNTENANCE LIf@ ... .uiieieiiii ettt ettt e e et e e et e e e esate e e sabeeeestteeeeensssaeeenssseeeansaeenannes 5
2.4.3.  BMP Maint@NancCe LifE CYCIES ...oeouuiiiieiiee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e et e e e eate e e eetteeeessteeesensaeseeeesseaeeanseeeeannes 5
3. CURRENT PRACTICES......cccccotsmummtrriiiiisssnnteeriisssssnsnnneeeissessssssnneeesssssssssssstesssssssssssssssesssssssssssssseesssssssssssnnnnes 6
3.1. =Ty V=TT o o = PP PSPPSRI 6
3.2. Other MainteNanCe PraCliCS. ....uuiuiiiiriieiiiee ettt ettt ettt sttt et r e aesmeesreesreeneenee e 6
3.2.1. Roadway Maintenance and REhabilitation .........cc.coociiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e ere e e 6
3.2.2.  Storm Sewers and CatCh BASiNS ........cceeiieriierierienieete sttt ettt ettt sbee st e b e et sate s bt e sbeebeeenbesaeesbeenbeenrens 6
3.2.3.  Stormwater BMP MaintenanCe........ciiiiiiiiiiiieiiii ettt s e e s 6
4. SWEEPING ZONES ......uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiuneneiiiiiisissseessisssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssessssssssssessssssssssnnsnsss 7
4.1. Primary Water RESOUICES.......uuiiiiiiieeiiitie ettt sttt st e e sttt e s e e e s e asr e e s sane e e s e ne e e e ssnneeesnneesesnreeesannns 7
4.2. B IO [ [o] o) O O P P PP PUPPPPPTPPPPPRY 10
4.3. LANE-IVIIES .t sttt R e r e he e sre e bt et e ae e ne e r e e reere s 12
4.4, PropOSEd SWEEPING ZONES .....uveiieiiieeiitiieeeeiteeeeitteeeeeeteeeeeteeeeessteeesabaeaessteeeeassaeesassaseassseseeansssaeeesssesesassananns 12
5. LOAD RECOVERY AND LOAD REDUCTION ESTIMATES .......cccccceetiiiiiiininneeeiiisicssunsteessssssssssssessssssssssssssesesses 16
5.1. [WeY: To I 2{=Telo 1Y/ =T oV USRS 16



5.2. [WoF: Lo I {=Te [0 Tt A Lo T a W o) €= o L =Y RN 19

6.  MATERIAL MANAGEMENT .....uutttiiiiiiiiiinteitieiiisiinetsessssssssssssssssssasssssssssessssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssessssssansssssss 22
6.1. [\ o] g B @o T o o Yo 1] =1 o] LI USRS 22
6.2. ComMPOSEADIE IMALEIIAL. ...ttt sttt e st e e sat e e eate e sareeeneeesareeneas 22
7. COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS ....cuuuuuuteiiiiiiiiinntteeiiiiiiseneeeetiiiisssssseeeesiissssssseeessssssssssssseessssssssssssseessssssssssnssseesss 24
7.1. (O o 4 ol =T Tor V@ o o =1 Yo T S 25
7.2. Pollutant Removal CoSt BENETit.......couiiiiiieiiiieeiee et sttt s re s 29
8.  RECOMMENDATIONS ....cociiiiiiiutrteeeiiiiiiissteteiiiissssssseessisssssssssssesssssssssssssesssssssssssssseessssssssssssssessssssssssanses 30
9. REFERENCES .......couuiiieiiiiiiitiei e sree s s rsas s s saes st e sass s s e as s st e ass s saassstessssssressssstensssstanssssssnsssssennssssennes 34
APPENDIX A. STREET SWEEPING ZONE IMIAPS.......ccitttttmtuiiiiiiiiiiiineiiiiiiiiinesseiiisiiimmssssiisiimsssssssmessssssns 36
APPENDIX B. COLLECTIVE BMP REMOVAL EFFICIENCIES FOR LOAD REDUCTION CALCUATIONS .......cccevueerrennns 45
APPENDIX C. COST BENEFITS — DETAILED CALCULATIONS .....cccieeiivummreeiiiisssunnneeeiiicisssnneeeessssssssssneeesssssssssnsees 47
Appendix C.1. (1= oo T 0o 1Y J RSP 47
Appendix C.2. EQUIPMENT COST .ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeeeeeeaeees 48
Appendix C.3. Materials ManagemMENT COSt......uuiiiiiii et e et e e e e e sebrr e e e e e e e eabaraeee e e e s abaaeeaaeseeas 50
Appendix C.4. Contract Sweeping Cost ESTIMate ......coiiiiiiiiieee e 51
Appendix C.5. Detailed Costs - Vehicle Maint@NanCe .........ooceeiiiieriee ittt 52

ii|Page



LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.

Table 2.

Table 3.

Table 4.

Table 5.

Table 6.

Table 7.

Table 8.

Table 9.

Summary of defining characteristics for street sweeping zones in the City of Woodbury............. 8
Summary of PropoSed SWEEPING ZONES.....ceeieieieiiiiiiieiieeeeeeiiiteeeeeeeescttreeeeeeeesssateeeeeasesenssssesseeees 13
Street sweeping scenarios used in load recovery and load reduction estimates.........cccccceeuuunee 16
Summary of estimated annual total solids and phosphorus recovery by receiving waterbody for
the street sweeping scenarios described in Table 3. ... 17
Median BMP removal efficiencies (Minnesota Stormwater Manual) used to estimate the
collective pollutant removal efficiency of BMPs located upstream of resources for which water
quality modeling data were not available. ... 20
Estimated collective pollutant removal efficiency for existing stormwater BMPs within each
FESOUICE AIAiNAEE QM. tiiicureieeiiuiiieeiiireeeeiireeeestbteeeestreeesaseeeeassaeeessteeeeassseeesnsseeessssaesennsnsssnes 20
Theoretical annual pollutant load reductions (total solids and phosphorus) to waterbodies for
street sweeping scenarios described in Table .....ccuvvviiiiiiii e 21
Cost basis assumptions, in-house street SWeeping Program. .....cccccecccviereeeeeeeeccciireeeeeeeeeceneeeeeens 24

Estimated total annual costs and cost-efficiencies for in-house street sweeping for the scenarios
presented in Section 5 and different vehicle purchase options. ........ccccceeeiiiiiieeeeiicccciieeeeeee, 28

Table 10. Comparison of estimated annual costs for in-house and contract service street sweeping for

the street sweeping scenarios presented in SECLION 5. ......coooecciiiiiieee e e 28

Table 11. Total costs and cost-efficiency with respect to phosphorus management for potential in-house

LTV =T=T o 11 =T ot =] - [ [ Y- 29

Table 12. Recommended SWEEPING SCENATIO ..cciiiiicciiiiieeee e e e eccirree e e e e ecerre e e e s e e ssabrrre e e e e e esaenreeeeessennsennnns 32

Table 13. Estimated pollutant load recovery and load reduction to downstream water resources for the

sweeping recommendations summarized in Table ......cccooiiiiiiiiiiie e 33

Table 14. Summary of TSS load estimates from SWWD P8 lake models used to calculate the collective

TSS removal efficiency of modeled BMPs in the water resource drainage area. ........ccccccvveeenns 45

Table 15. Summary of TP load estimates from SWWD P8 lake models used to calculate the collective TP

removal efficiency of modeled BMPs in the water resource drainage area..........cccoecvveeeennnen. 45

Table 16. Summary of BMPs by drainage district and downstream water resource for Tamarack East and

Tamarack West WELIANG. ......cooeeeeeee e e e et e e e e e e e e e b s e e e e er e s 46

iii|Page



Table 17.

Table 18.

Table 19.

Table 20.

Table 21.

Table 22.

Table 23.

Summary of sweeping labor cost calculation assumptions. ........cccceeeeiiieieccciee e, 47
Estimated annual cost of labor for street sweeping by sweeping scenario..........ccccccvveeeenneennn. 47
Breakdown of vehicle purchase and maintenance cost, annualized. ........cccccceeevveeeiciieecccnieenn. 48
Summary of total vehicle-related costs for sweeping scenarios based on minimum number of
sweepers needed to complete sweeping within the allotted timeframe...........ccccoovveveeiinnnns 49
Summary of sweeper waste management assUMPLiONS. ......ccuviieeeeeeeciiiiieeee e e e e 50
Estimated annual cost of disposal-related costs for street sweeping scenarios. .........ccceecuveeen. 50
Summary of municipal street sweeping bids reviewed for contract sweeping service cost

(ST ] 4 1T (LT PSRRI 51

iv|Page



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.

Figure 2.

Figure 3.

Figure 4.

Figure 5.

Figure 6.

Figure 7.

Figure 8.

Figure 9.

Figure 10
Figure 11
Figure 12
Figure 13
Figure 14
Figure 15
Figure 16

Figure 17

Drainage areas and total lane miles for Woodbury lakes and wetlands included in the study. ...9
Average right-of-way tree canopy cover for City of Woodbury water resources by watershed

(o 11 o o Lot USRS UUPRURRR 10
Average ROW tree canopy cover aggregated by minor subwatershed........c.ccccccceeevviiniennnnnnnnn. 11
Paved road lane-miles within the City of Woodbury water resource drainage areas by

T LT 0] T=Te e I o o ot AR OO U PP 12
City of Woodbury sweeping zones. Maps of individual zones are included in Appendix A. ....... 15
Cumulative total solids and average total solids recovery vs. number of sweepings per year for
waterbodies in the SWWD and the City of Woodbury. ..., 18
Cumulative total phosphorus and average total phosphorus recovery vs. number of sweepings
per year for waterbodies in the SWWD and the City of Woodbury. .......cccooevveeiiiiiiiiieeeen, 18
Cost of inhouse and contract sweeping for sweeping scenarios using 3 (1 new) and 4 (2 new)
LTV 1= 26
Vehicle (depreciation and maintenance), labor (sweeping and hauling operations), material
disposal fees, and fuel costs as percent of the total cost of sweeping program options

0 aTaa T aP4=Te I T T =1 o1 =N 1 OSSPSR 27
. Sweeping Zones SW-1 and SW-2 ...ttt ettt e et e e s e s sar e e e ssnaaee e s s nnnreeees 37
. Sweeping Zones SW-3, SW-4, and SW-5. .....coi ittt e s e e e s saaaee e s 38
. Sweeping Zones M-2, M-3, SW-6, SW-7. ...t e e e eeeaa e aees 39
. Sweeping Zones SW-8 and SW-9. ..ottt sttt e s e e e e rrae e e areee s 40
. Sweeping Zones SW-10 and SW-11. ...ttt et e et e e e sara e e s sare e e esaraeeesnnnareees 41
. Sweeping Zones M-1, RMW-1, and RMW-2 ........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e etee e e earee e e 42
. Sweeping Zones M-2, M-3, and RMW-3. .....coiiiiiiieiiiiie ettt e s e e s raae e s saaaea e ae s 43
. SWEEPINEG ZONES VB-1L. it e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeaeaaeaaeaeeeeeesessessssnsseresenens 44

v|Page



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Street sweeping is the practice of removing particulates (salt, sand, and soil) and organic matter (leaves,
seeds, flowers, etc.) from streets using mechanical broom or vacuum street sweeping vehicles to reduce the
amount of pollutants and sediment discharged to stormwater conveyance systems. Traditional municipal
street sweeping programs typically involve mechanically sweeping all City streets once in the spring and once
in the fall. Enhanced municipal street sweeping programs typically involve sweeping streets with high
efficiency sweepers (vacuum type or similar) at higher frequency based on the variable generation of
particulates and organic matter to streets.

This Plan identifies road-specific street sweeping timing and frequency, quantifies expected phosphorus load
reductions, itemizes costs of enhanced street sweeping (including purchase and subcontract options), and
recommends funding options for an enhanced street sweeping program in the City of Woodbury, MN.

The City currently sweeps approximately 606 lane-miles of city-owned roads twice annually, 458 of which lie
within South Washington Watershed District. Current sweeping practices improve road safety and
appearance and recover (load taken out of the streets) approximately 296 |b of phosphorus (TP) and 277 tons
of solids (TS) from City’s roads surfaces each year. Key findings from this Street Sweeping Management Plan
indicate enhancing the current baseline sweeping practices could increase pollutant recovery by 188 Ib of TP
and 270 tons of TS for one additional sweeping each in the spring and fall (4 sweeping per year total), and by
660 Ib of TP and 776 tons of TS for twice monthly sweepings.

Pollutant recovery through street sweeping also results in a reduction (load prevented from discharging in a
downstream waterbody) in TS and TP pollutant loading to stormwater practices and downstream
waterbodies. Due to the complex nature of phosphorus transport and transformation, it is difficult to directly
correlate recovery to specific load reductions for downstream waterbodies. However, the estimates provided
in this report can provide a relative comparison for the sweeping scenarios evaluated. The analysis indicated
that compared to estimated load reductions for the baseline effort, the enhanced sweeping scenario (4
sweepings per year) can further reduce TP loading to downstream waterbodies by 92 Ib for the baseline
effort and by 324 Ib for the twice monthly scenario.

For this study, streets were aggregated into sweeping zones at a neighborhood scale considering water
resource drainage boundaries, land use type, and tree canopy cover characteristics. Zones are shown in
shown in Figure 5 and key characteristics for each sweeping zone are summarized in Table 1. Because much
of the City’s growth has occurred in recent decades, stormwater infrastructure includes stormwater BMPs
that provide some level of protection for downstream resources. For these reasons, sweeping zones were
prioritized based on water quality management goals for the downstream resource, (City of Woodbury, 2040
Surface Water Management Plan, SWWD 2018 Lake Management Plan), rather than a lack of existing
infrastructure.

Recommendations for sweeping frequency by zone are outlined in Section 8 of this report. The analysis
identified four priority zones which would benefit from increasing frequency of sweeping to twice monthly:
SW-3, SW-4, SW-5, and SW-7. Sweeping in these zones will primarily benefit Wilmes Lake North, Wilmes Lake

1|Page



South, Powers Lake, and Colby Lake. All other sweeping zones in the City of Woodbury Surface Water
Management Plan, would benefit from monthly sweeping (7 sweepings per season) for protection of
downstream water quality and BMP longevity. Recommendations are presented in a 2-tiered format to
provide options for gradual implementation of an in-house Enhanced Street Sweeping Program for the City
of Woodbury.

1. INTRODUCTION

This study was commissioned by the South Washington Watershed District (SWWD) to support the adoption
of an enhanced street sweeping program by the City of Woodbury as part of their surface water management
plan and regular Best Management Practice (BMP) maintenance program. The objectives of this study are to
identify road-specific recommendations for the timing and frequency of street sweeping, quantify the
resulting phosphorus and sediment load reductions to area lakes, itemize the costs of implementing an
enhanced street sweeping program, and provide a cost-benefit analysis for recommendations with respect
to water quality goals and current maintenance practices.

Enhanced street sweeping has been identified as a potential BMP for treating stormwater runoff to several
large recreational lakes in the City of Woodbury: Colby, La, Markgrafs, Wilmes, and Powers Lakes in the
SWWD and Battle Creek and Carver Lakes in the Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD).
The SWWD and the City have discussed the benefits of modifying their existing street sweeping program from
one spring and one fall sweep to more than two sweeps per year.

2. BENEFITS

Most cities do some amount of street sweeping each year to improve road safety and appearance, but recent
research into the potential water quality benefits of street sweeping has shown that street sweeping is a
cost-effective and efficient means to reduce pollutant loads to storm sewer infrastructure and downstream
water resources (Selbig, 2016; Kalinosky et. al 2013, others). In response to this growing body of evidence,
many cities across the country have implemented robust sweeping programs as an integral part of storm and
surface water management (MN Stormwater Manual, Buranen, 2018):

e The City of Forest Lake, MN sweeps 120 miles of streets monthly at a minimum and twice monthly
in sensitive areas.

e The City of Blaine, MN owns 4 street sweepers that are used to sweep 240 miles of street twice
each spring and fall for a total of 4 times per year and weekly in downtown and lake water quality
areas.

e The City of St. Cloud, MN operates 3 mechanical broom and 2 regenerative air sweepers during the
snow-free season and, in addition to spring and fall cleanings, sweeps streets 1-4 times in the
summer depending on stormwater management priority.

2|Page



e The City of Englewood, CO’s street sweeping program includes 121 miles of street that are swept
curb-to-curb (parking ban) in the spring and fall with monthly ‘routine’ sweeping (no parking ban)
during the summer.

e The City of Odessa, TX sweeps 490 miles using five sweepers, with streets swept twice per month
and downtown areas swept minimally three times per month.

Stormwater management in older neighborhoods tends to be comprised mainly of catch basin and pipe
networks that convey stormwater runoff directly from streets to surface waters with little or no structural
BMPs in place to intercept and treat stormwater. Therefore, source control measures like street sweeping
are the primary tools available to protect downstream water quality.

In newer neighborhoods, stormwater management systems tend to include structural BMPs such as
detention ponds and infiltration basins which performance is highly sensitive to solids accumulation. While
these BMPs provide water quality treatment for stormwater runoff from streets, they accumulate sediment
which must be removed periodically to maintain BMP pollutant removal efficiency.

Additional benefits of street sweeping include reduced clogging and flooding of storm drains, reduced
maintenance to downstream stormwater infrastructure, improved safety for pedestrians, and reduced
presence of pests. Finally, street sweeping presents the advantages of ease of adaptation and preventative
management, as opposed to reactive measures. Scheduling, frequency, and routes are easily altered and
implemented to meet current needs and budget and experimented with to increasing efficiency.

2.1. Protection of Water Resources

Numerous waterbodies within the City of Woodbury receive runoff from Woodbury streets. These include
eight DNR Public Waters that are identified as key water resources in the City’s 2040 Local Surface Water
Management Plan (WSB, 2019): Bailey Lake, Colby Lake, La Lake, Markgrafs Lake, Powers Lake, and Wilmes
Lake, located within the SWWD; and Battle Creek Lake and Carver Lake, located within in the RWMWD. Some
streets discharge their untreated runoff directly into receiving waters, while others enter the City’s
stormwater management systems prior to discharge.

All of Woodbury’s lakes located within the SWWD have comprehensive diagnostics studies that identify total
phosphorus (TP) and total solids (TS) as pollutants of concern and define reductions needed to ensure that
beneficial uses are maintained. The 2018 South Washington Watershed District Six Lake Management Plan
Study identified TP reduction goals of 1,303 Ib/yr, or 63% of the total load, to Colby Lake, 17 Ib/yr, or 28%, to
La Lake, 209 Ib/yr, or 63%, to Markgrafs Lake, 265 Ib/yr, or 26%, to North Wilmes, and 108 Ib/yr, or 14%, to
South Wilmes Lake, respectively. Street sweeping was identified as a cost-effective BMP in all these lake
studies. These same lakes are included on Minnesota’s 2020 Impaired Waters List and are slated to undergo
the TMDL process by 2024.

2.2. Compliance with Permits & Policies

2.2.1. MS4 Permit Requirements

3|Page



The City of Woodbury is a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) community subject to stormwater
regulation under the Clean Water Act and Minnesota Rule 7090. As such, the City is required to develop a
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to reduce the discharge of pollutants from their storm sewer.
Street sweeping can be used to fulfill some of the MS4 permit requirements. The City submitted a revised
SWPPP to the state in April 2021 following issuance of a new MS4 General Permit (MNR040000) by the
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency in November 2020.

Good Housekeeping and Maintenance

Under the terms of Permit MNR040000, MS4s are required to implement an Operations and Maintenance
Program to prevent or reduce discharge of pollutant from any MS4-owned facilities. Source control measures
like street sweeping are encouraged as part of this good housekeeping practice. Although not specifically
identified as a housekeeping practice by the City in the current SWPPP, the sweeping that is completed each
year does reduce the discharge of pollutants from City’s streets and parking areas in compliance with the
terms of the permit.

Impaired Waters and Approved TMDLs

Under item 22.1 of the General Permit — Discharges to Impaired Waters with a USEPA-Approved TMDL, MS4s
must document progress towards Wasteload Allocations (WLAs) where the MS4 discharges to an impaired
water with a USEPA-approved TMDL. There is one waterbody within the City’s jurisdictional boundary with
an active USEPA-approved TMDL: Fish Creek is impaired for aquatic recreation and an E.coli TMDL was
approved in 2017. There are no applicable WLAs for this TMDL, but the City has identified removal of organic
matter via street sweeping as an action that will be taken to reduce the amount of bacteria entering the
creek. The City may have WLAs for other TMDLs in the near future. Several lakes within the City boundary
are impaired for aquatic recreation due to excess nutrient with TMDL studies expected by 2025.

Education and Outreach

Street sweeping programs can provide opportunities for public engagement and education. The City of
Forest Lake, MN added a colorful wrap with pollutant removal statistics and water quality themes to their
street sweeper and implemented a ‘spot the sweeper’ program to garner public interest and support. Many
cities, including Woodbury, use social media like Facebook, NextDoor, Twitter, or YouTube, to post
educational segments on City’s maintenance practices. Educational notices and articles are also commonly
shared through municipal newsletters.

2.2.2. Non-degradation Policies

The City of Woodbury lies within the jurisdiction of three watershed districts: the South Washington
Watershed District (SWWD), Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD), and Valley Branch
Watershed District (VBWD). Stormwater management rules for these watersheds include non-degradation
policies that apply to both water quality and volume control. Enhanced street sweeping provides additional
assurance for non-degradation of water quality by reducing pollutant loads and contributes to non-
degradation of stormwater volume by reducing loss of storage volume through decreased sediment loading

4|Page



to stormwater ponds and other BMPs. RWMWD policies include requirements that cities within watershed
jurisdiction provide descriptions of municipal maintenance practices and call out street sweeping as an
example. Similarly, SWWD requires programs for BMP maintenance. A complete list of water resources
related agreements and permits can be found in the Section 5 of the City’s 2040 Local Surface Water
Management Plan.

2.3. Safety, Aesthetics, and Public Relations

Historically, safety and aesthetics have been the primary reasons for municipal street sweeping. Accumulated
sand and trash detract from curb appeal, may contribute to storm sewer clogging (and subsequent flooding),
and may pose a safety risk to bicycles and pedestrians.

Several articles have detailed the popularity of street sweepers with City staff and residents, both as a public
education opportunity for water resource protection and as a cleanliness and aesthetic public benefit (e.g.,
Buranen, 2017, 2018). In Milwaukee, for example, residents even called for increased sweeping, leading the
City’s Public Works Department to experiment with double sweeping to twice per month in test sites around
the University (Stormwater Magazine, 2014).

2.4. Maintenance Benefits

2.4.1. Local Flood Protection

Regular sweeping can reduce clogging and flooding at storm drain inlets. In 2011-2012, the City of Prior Lake,
MN participated in a 2-year study of intensive, targeted street sweeping. City staff reported that storm drain
clogging was a non-issue in street sweeping zones, resulting in far fewer maintenance calls from residents
(Bintner, 2012). Echoing this observation, Plaguemine, LA City staff recommended street sweeping as the
“best tool” for preventing issues with flooding and in drainage systems that typically plague small Bayou
towns (Buranen, 2015).

2.4.2. Roadway Maintenance Life

Sweeping can also play a part in a preventative maintenance plan to extend the life of pavement surfaces.
Sweeping removes sand and fines which wear down pavement when vehicles pass over paved surfaces. Fine
particles that collect in cracks provide a substrate for vegetation to colonize cracks, making pavement more
susceptible to freeze/thaw damage and further cracking.

2.4.3. BMP Maintenance Life Cycles

The pollutant removal efficiency of structural BMPs that are designed to remove sediment such as settling
ponds, filter strips, and catch basin sumps, decreases as sediment storage capacity is depleted. Eventually,
sediment must be removed from the practice to restore removal capacity. By reducing sediment loading to
structural BMPs, street sweeping can extend sediment storage capacity and improve pollutant removal
efficiency.

5|Page



3. CURRENT PRACTICES

3.1. Street Sweeping

The City of Woodbury currently sweeps its 606 curb miles of paved roads twice per year: once in the spring
to clear salt and tracked sand from roads; and once in the fall to reduce leaf litter on streets. 458 of these
lane miles lie within SWWD and the rest divided between RWMWD and VBWD. In addition, the City contains
81.6 miles of roads operated and maintained by the County which were not included in this analysis. The City
owns two street sweepers: an Elgin Crosswind regenerative air sweeper and an Elgin Pelican mechanical
boom sweeper with water spray for dust control. Both sweepers are used along with a fleet of contracted
street sweepers during the spring and fall to complete city-wide street cleaning.

3.2. Other Maintenance Practices

3.2.1. Roadway Maintenance and Rehabilitation

The City’s Public Works Department oversees pavement repair (e.g., filling potholes), preservation (e.g.,
seal-coating, rejuvenation), and rehabilitation (e.g., mill-and -overlay) projects. These road maintenance
and rehabilitation practices contribute to the reduction of solids recovered from the City’s streets surfaces.
The City could benefit from street maintenance schedule coordination with street sweeping.

3.2.2. Storm Sewers and Catch Basins

Public Works staff inspect and clean city-owned catch basins on a regular basis. Sump catch basins and
manholes are common practice in places (typically the fully developed areas in the City) where other BMPs
are not available. The time and cost associated to cleaning catch basins and manholes would be
significantly reduced by enhanced street sweeping.

3.2.3. Stormwater BMP Maintenance

Woodbury’s Public Works staff inspects all stormwater ponds and outfalls once every four years and in
response to resident concerns.

6|Page



4. SWEEPING ZONES

Street surfaces are connected to surface waters via stormwater conveyance systems and can be a significant
source of pollution to downstream water resources. Key factors that influence pollutant accumulation on
streets include pavement type and condition, traffic volume, maintenance practices, adjacent land use, and
right-of-way tree canopy.

Streets were aggregated into sweeping zones based on connectivity to downstream water resources, existing
stormwater management practices, and right-of-way tree canopy cover characteristics. These considerations
are discussed in Sections 4.1 through 4.3, and proposed sweeping zones are summarized in Section 4.4. While
not designed as driving routes, zones are composed of contiguous street segments to the degree possible for
route management.

4.1. Primary Water Resources

Estimated pollutant reduction benefits are quantified for the eight (8) lakes identified as key water resources
in the City’s 2040 SWMP: Bailey, Colby, La, Markgrafs, Powers, Wilmes, Battle Creek and Carver; four (4) large
wetlands located upstream of a key resource: Tamarack east and west, Evergreen Park, and Marsh Creek
Pond; and for watershed areas that discharge stormwater to resources outside the City’s boundary.

7|Page



Table 1. Summary of defining characteristics for street sweeping zones in the City of Woodbury.

Watershed Characteristics Lane Miles*
Major Watershed | Primary Water Resources Stormwater BMPs* Primary Land Use? Right-of-way Tree Canopy?
North Wilmes Lake 39 R-4, GW, B-1,2,3 5% 31.0 2.0
South Wilmes Lake 25 R-4, GW, B-1,2,4 2% 40.6 8.7
Evergreen Wetland® 19 R-4, B-2,3 6% 21.0 1.3
Markgrafs Lake 20 B-1, 2, 3, MX, R-2 2% 14.3 4.5
Central Powers Lake 37 R-2,4 4% 32.2 0.0
Draw Fish Lake® 16 R-2,4 5% 22.2 -
g Colby Lake 101 R-1,2,4 6% 129.0 11.1
E Bailey Lake 96 R-2,4, B-3, MX 4% 99.9 22.7
Marsh Creek Pond® 35 R-4 9% 33.2 3.9
Central Draw’ 5 R-4; R-1 2% 11.6 1.7
La Lake n/a R-2 2% 0.9 0.2
East .
.. Ria Lake 3 R-2 <1% n/a 0.6
Mississippi
East Mississippi’ 15 R-2 19% 8.3 1.7
West Draw 27 R-2,4 6% 14.1 7.3
Battle Creek Lake 32 R-2,4, GW, BCD, MX, B-1,2,3,4 11% 14.6 -
s Battle Tamarack Wetland East 38 R-4, B-1 7% 23.9 9.4
S Creek Tamarack Wetland West 9 R-4, MCD <1% 6.6 2.6
E Battle Creek’ 1 R-2,4, B-2 16% 14.9 -
Carver Lake 83 R-2, R-4, BCD, B-1,2,3, MCD, GW, I-1 10% 74.7 3.9
[a]
E Valley Branch Creek 30 R-4, BCD, MX, GW, B-2,3 <1% 13.0 2.7
>
1 Number of BMPs located within the resource drainage area based on City of Woodbury BMP digital inventory, does not include wetlands or DNR public waters.
2 City of Woodbury Zoning Map, January 2022. 3Tree canopy cover over and within 20 feet of the curb or shoulder line.
4Turn lanes and merge lanes are not included. 5Century Avenue and Manning Avenue were not included in the study.

6This waterbody is a wetland located upstream of the primary water resource.
7 Portion located within the Woodbury municipal boundary and downstream of primary water resources (Bailey Lake, Ria Lake, Battle Creek Lake).

8|Page



Figure 1. Drainage areas and total lane miles for Woodbury lakes and wetlands included in the study.

9|Page



4.2. Tree Canopy

Tree canopy is particularly important when considering nutrient pollution. Organic litter from trees can be
the primary source of total solids and nutrient loading on street surfaces during certain times of the year in
areas of modest to dense tree canopy cover (Kalinosky, 2015). Older neighborhoods laid out in grid fashion
tend to have more mature trees in front yard areas and denser right-of-way (ROW) canopy than newer
neighborhoods or those with typical suburban street layout patterns. Trees located within front yard setback
areas are more likely to contribute leaf litter and duff to road surfaces. Areas with denser tree canopy can
act as pollutant ‘hot spots’ due to the large amount of accumulated organic litter on street surfaces.

Tree canopy cover was quantified over and within a 20-foot buffer of roadway curb lines for all paved public
roads within developed portions of the City of Woodbury. The City of Woodbury maintains a geospatial
dataset of their boulevard tree inventory. The tree inventory data were overlaid and merged with areas of
deciduous tree canopy as identified in the TCMA 1- Meter Land Cover Classification dataset. The TCMA 1- is
a high-resolution land cover dataset for the metropolitan area developed by the University of Minnesota in
2015.

Average tree canopy cover for individual street segments were estimated by intersecting deciduous canopy
cover data with buffered road surface polygons created from roadway centerline data. Road segment canopy
cover data were then aggregated using spatial weighting to calculate the average ROW tree canopy cover
within the drainage area of primary water resources (Figure 2) and each proposed sweeping zone (Table 2).

/ SWWD \ RWMWD )

VBWD

\_ AN pu

Figure 2. Average right-of-way tree canopy cover for City of Woodbury water resources by watershed district

10| Page



Figure 3. Average ROW tree canopy cover aggregated by minor subwatershed.

11| Page



4.3. Lane-Miles

The length of street to be swept within each sweeping zone was estimated from road centerline data (Figure
4). The total ‘lane-miles’ to be swept in each zone is equal to the total length of paved City roadway
(centerline) multiplied by the number of driving lanes. Length of turn lanes and merge lanes is a negligible
percentage of the total length and difficult to accurately quantify. For these reasons, turn lanes and merge
lanes are not included in lane-mile totals. Additionally, most turn and merge lanes are associated with county
roads which are shown in grey in Figure 4. County roads were included in the study, but pollutant recovery
was estimated separately due to differences in ownership and maintenance responsibility.

-

SWWD RWMWD

VBWD

\_

Figure 4. Paved road lane-miles within the City of Woodbury water resource drainage areas by watershed district.

4.4. Proposed Sweeping Zones

Streets were aggregated into sweeping zones based on connectivity to downstream water resources, storm
water management type, and tree canopy cover characteristics. Sweeping zone characteristics are
summarized in (Table 2) and sweeping zones are mapped in Figure 5. Maps of individual sweeping zones are
included in Appendix A.

12| Page



Table 2. Summary of Proposed Sweeping Zones

Lane Miles Workdays
Zone ID Downstream Resource ot T % by Waterbody | Average ROW | Needed, Single
Drainage Area | Tree Canopy (%) Sweeper!
Battle Creek Lake 0.6 3.8%
Evergreen Wetland 9.2 55.0%
SW-1 Wilmes Lake North 6.9 41.2% 2.0 0.9
SW-1 Total Lane Miles 16.7
Markgraf's Lake 5.9 25.0%
SW-2 W!Imes Lake North 17.3 73.2% 4.0 1.2
Wilmes Lake South 0.4 1.8%
SW-2 Total Lane Miles 23.6
Colby Lake 1.1 3.8%
Markgraf's Lake 2.1 7.3%
Powers Lake 3.7 13.0%
SW-3 Wilmes Lake North 6.8 23.9% >0 13
Wilmes Lake South 14.7 52.0%
SW-3 Total Lane Miles 28.4
Colby Lake 0.3 0.6%
Fish Lake 18.7 43.7%
SW-4 Powers Lake 23.5 54.6% 4.0 2.2
Valley Branch Creek 0.5 1.1%
SW-4 Total Lane Miles 43.0
Colby Lake 0.4 1.8%
SW-5 Wilmes Lake South 23.0 98.2% 9.0 1.2
SW-5 Total Lane Miles 23.4
Bailey Lake 17.2 49.2%
Colby Lake 6.2 17.4%
SW-6 Marsh Creek Pond 7.8 22.3% 40 1.8
Tamarack Wetland East 2.2 6.2%
Wilmes Lake South 1.6 4.7%
SW-6 Total Lane Miles 35.0
Bailey Lake 17.6 33.0%
SW-7 Colby Lake 35.1 65.5% 3.0 28
Wilmes Lake South 0.8 1.5%
SW-7 Total Lane Miles 53.5
Colby Lake 53.1 97.2%
Fish Lake 1.3 2.3%
SW-8 Valley Branch Creek 0.3 0.5% >0 2.8
SW-8 Total Lane Miles 54.7
Bailey Lake 11.6 26.0%
Colby Lake 32.7 73.3%
SW-9 Valley Branch Creek 0.3 0.73% 4.0 2.3
SW-9 Total Lane Miles 44.6
East Mississippi 8.3 35.9%
La Lake 0.9 4.1%
S 13.9 60.1% 14.0 1.2
SW-10 Total Lane Miles 23.1
Bailey Lake 47.4 80.1%
SW-I1 - M Central Draw 11.6 19.6% 4.0 3.0

13 |Page



Lane Miles Workdays

Zone ID Downstream Resource N % by Waterbody Average ROW Needed, Single
Drainage Area Tree Canopy (%) Sweeper?!
West Draw 0.2 0.3%
SW-11 Total Lane Miles 58.2
Battle Creek Lake 0.1 0.5%
Evergreen Wetland 11.6 52.8%
M-1 Tamarack Wetland East 10.2 46.4% 4.0 1.1
Wilmes Lake South 0.1 0.3%
M-1 Total Lane Miles 22.0
Carver Lake 1.20 5.8%
Marsh Creek Pond 9.09 44.2%
M-2 Tamarack Wetland East 10.29 50.0% 14.0 11
M-2 Total Lane Miles 20.6
Bailey Lake 7.10 19.6%
Carver Lake 16.95 46.7%
m-3 Marsh Creek Pond 12.22 33.7% 6.0 1.9
M-3 Total Lane Miles 36.3
Battle Creek 14.89 66.8%
Battle Creek Lake 2.37 10.6%
RMW-1 Carver Lake 5.02 22.5% 7:0 1.2
RMW-1 Total Lane Miles 22.3
Battle Creek Lake 11.53 35.7%
Carver Lake 12.82 39.6%
Evergreen Wetland 0.23 0.71%
RMW-2 Tamarack Wetland East 1.18 3.7% 7:0 1.8
Tamarack Wetland West 6.58 20.4%
RMW-2 Total Lane Miles 32.3
Carver Lake 38.70 90.4%
RMW-3 Marsh Creek Pond 4.10 9.6% 6.0 2.2
RMW-3 Total Lane Miles 42.8
Fish Lake 2.20 8.6%
Markgraf’s Lake 6.32 24.8%
VB-1 Powers Lake 5.08 19.9% 5.0 0.9
Valley Branch Creek 11.88 46.6%
VB-1 Total Lane Miles 25.5

'Basedona single lane pass. Used to determine the number of sweepers needed to complete the sweeping scenario within the
specified timeframe. For example, a single sweeper would not fulfill the sweeper demand for monthly city-wide street sweeping
since 31.6 days. Two sweeper working full time could compete a single lane pass in 31.6 divided by 2, or about 16 workdays.
Additional details provided in Appendix C.1.

14 |Page



Figure 5. City of Woodbury sweeping zones. Maps of individual zones are included in Appendix A.

15| Page



5. LOAD RECOVERY AND LOAD REDUCTION ESTIMATES

Pollutant reductions can be characterized in two ways for street sweeping: the total amount of pollutant
collected from the street surface (load recovery); and the total reduction in load to a downstream surface
water (load reduction). Load recovery is greater than load reduction due to treatment provided by BMPs
that reduce pollutant loads along the flow network from street surface to water resources. For the
purposes of this plan, load recovery and load reduction estimates were calculated for Total Solids (TS) and
Total Phosphorus (TP), the pollutants of concern for BMP maintenance and lake water quality.

5.1. Load Recovery

To facilitate comparisons, potential pollutant recovery was estimated for the simplistic sweeping
scenarios listed in Table 3 with all streets being swept during the snow-free season (April 1 — October 31).
Average pollutant recovery was estimated for the sweeping scenarios using a street sweeping planning
calculator tool developed by the University of Minnesota, ‘Estimating Nutrient and Solids Load Recovery
through Street Sweeping’ (Kalinosky, et. al, 2014). The tool predicts the average annual mass of solids and
nutrients that can be recovered from streets based on the length of street to be swept, the timing (month)
and frequency of sweeping, and density of tree canopy cover over the street. The tool was calibrated using
street sweeping data collected over a 2-year period in Prior Lake, MN and is intended for use in
comparable settings (climate and geography). Actual pollutant recovery is expected to vary somewhat
compared to estimates. Factors such as precipitation, climate, and land disturbing activities may affect
solids loading to streets and typically vary somewhat from year to year.

Table 3. Street sweeping scenarios used in load recovery and load reduction estimates.

Number of
Sweeping Scenario Sweeps per Year | Description
Baseline 2 One sweeping each in the spring and fall
Enhanced Baseline 4 Two sweepings each in the spring and fall
Monthly 7 Once per month sweeping during the snow-free season
Bi-weekly 14 Twice per month sweeping during the snow free season
Weekly 28 Four sweepings per month during the snow free season

Pollutant recovery estimates (TS, TP) for each scenario are summarized by downstream resources in Table
4. The ‘Baseline’ scenario represents the City’s current sweeping practice. Current practice is estimated
to remove about 277 tons of gross solids containing 296 pounds of phosphorus each year.

16 |Page



Table 4. Summary of estimated annual total solids and phosphorus recovery by receiving waterbody for the street sweeping scenarios described in Table 3.

- ed B o P 0 Baseline Enhanced Baseline Monthly 2 X Per Month Weekly

TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib)

Wilmes Lake North 13.0 13.8 25.6 22.5 44.5 33.0 49.4 44.5 76.8 79.8

Wilmes Lake South 19.5 20.9 38.4 341 66.8 50.0 74.0 67.4 115.1 120.8

Evergreen Park Wetland 8.6 9.1 17.0 14.9 29.6 21.9 32.8 29.6 51.0 53.0

Markgrafs Lake 6.1 6.5 12.0 10.5 20.8 15.5 23.1 20.8 35.9 37.4

Central Powers Lake 13.7 14.6 27.0 23.8 47.0 34.9 52.1 47.0 81.0 84.3

Draw Fish Lake 9.4 10.0 18.6 16.3 323 240 35.8 323 55.7 57.9

Colby Lake 58.2 62.2 115.1 101.7 200.0 149.1 221.6 201.0 344.7 360.2

SWWP Bailey Lake 43.8 46.7 86.6 76.3 150.5 112.0 166.8 150.9 259.4 270.5
Marsh Creek Pond 16.3 17.5 32.2 28.6 55.9 41.9 61.9 56.5 96.3 101.3

Central Draw 4.9 5.2 9.7 8.5 16.8 12.5 18.7 16.8 29.0 30.2

East La Lake 0.6 0.6 11 1.0 2.0 15 2.2 2.0 3.4 3.6

Mississippi | East Mississippi 5.1 5.5 10.0 9.0 17.4 13.2 19.3 17.9 30.0 32.0

West Draw 8.6 9.3 16.9 15.3 29.4 224 32.6 30.2 50.7 54.1
SWWD TOTAL | 207.6 221.9 410.4 362.7 712.9 531.9 790.2 7171 1228.9 1285.1

Battle Creek Lake 6.8 7.3 13.5 11.9 23.4 17.5 26.0 23.6 40.4 42.3

Battle Tamarack Wetland West 31 33 6.1 5.4 10.7 8.0 11.8 10.8 18.4 19.3

Creek Tamarack Wetland East 12.1 13.0 23.8 21.3 41.4 31.2 45.9 42.0 71.4 75.4

RWMWD

Battle Creek 7.0 7.5 13.9 12.3 24.1 18.1 26.8 243 41.6 43.6

Carver Lake 345 36.9 68.1 60.3 118.4 88.4 131.2 119.2 204.0 213.5

RWMWD TOTAL 63.5 68.1 125.5 111.2 218.0 163.1 241.7 219.9 375.8 394.1

VBWD Valley Branch Creek /TOTAL 5.5 5.8 10.8 9.5 18.8 14.0 20.9 18.8 324 33.7
ALL | 276.6 295.8 546.7 483.4 949.8 709.0 1052.8 955.9 1637.2 | 1713.0

17 |Page



Pollutant load recovery trends for the estimates in Table 4 are shown graphically in Figure 6 and Figure 7.
The graphics show how the efficiency of TS and TP load recovery (lb per lane-mile) decreases as the
number of sweepings per year is increased while total recovery (lb/yr) increases. As it pertains to water
quality benefits, these trends should be interpreted as - ‘even a few additional sweeping can increase
recovery significantly’ and ‘sweeping frequency is directly correlated with annual pollutant recovery.’

Figure 6. Cumulative total solids and average total solids recovery vs. number of sweepings per year for
waterbodies in the SWWD and the City of Woodbury.

Figure 7. Cumulative total phosphorus and average total phosphorus recovery vs. number of sweepings per year
for waterbodies in the SWWD and the City of Woodbury.

18| Page



5.2. Load Reduction Potential

The potential load reductions reported in this study are equal to the estimated mass of pollutants
recovered through street sweeping minus the estimated mass of pollutants retained in upstream BMPs
based on modeled removal pollutant removal efficiencies. Uncertainties in this method stem include
uncertain in recovery estimates (Section 5.1), uncertainty in BMP treatment efficiency estimates (Table
6), but also uncertainty in pollutant transport, especially phosphorus. A significant portion of the TP
present in organic matter (e.g., leaves, grass clips) will not be released into the downstream water
resource through decomposition or other mechanisms and will not be biologically available to impact the
water resource. The effects of these complex interactions on load reduction estimates are beyond the
scope of this study. Therefore, due to the limitation of the method used, the load reductions shown in
this report should be used for relative comparisons of potential water quality benefits for different street
sweeping scenarios; and should not be directly equated to the TP load reduction targets stablished in Lake
Diagnostic studies, TMDLs, and other reports.

Estimated pollutant load reductions to downstream waterbodies are based on the following assumptions:

e Over time, all solids on the street surface will be transported to the storm sewer system and
ultimately to downstream waterbodies.

e The design efficiency of modeled BMPs can be applied to solids which typically collect on
street surfaces (including organic material).

e The design efficiency of modeled BMPs is preserved through regular maintenance.

The SWWD maintains water quality models (P8) of the district’s primary water resources (Houston
Engineering, 2010-2017) including Wilmes- (north and south segments), Markgrafs-, Powers-, and Fish
Lake. For these resources, pollutant load reductions to downstream resources were estimated by applying
the modeled removal efficiency of BMPs located upstream of the water resource of interest to load
recovery estimates.

For water bodies outside the SWWD and those not represented in water quality models, estimates for the
collective pollutant removal capacity of upstream BMPs were derived by applying median BMP removal
efficiencies (MN Stormwater Manual, Table 5) to the City of Woodbury’s BMP inventory. BMP removal
efficiencies were assigned to the minor subwatershed containing each BMP. A weighted-average, based
on the length of roadway contained within the minor subwatershed, was then used to aggregate minor
subwatersheds and estimate collective removal efficiencies for BMPs within each water resource drainage

area.

Estimated collective pollutant removal efficiencies for BMPs upstream of individual water resources are
summarized in Table 6 and pollutant load reductions (total solids and total phosphorus) for each sweeping
scenario are summarized in Table 7. Since the number and kind of structural BMPs vary among sweeping
zones, sweeping appears to be more effective as a water quality BMP in areas with few structural BMPs
(load reduction =~ load recovery). However, sweeping in zones with many structural BMPs is still important
to help preserve the removal efficiency of those BMPs and consequently protect downstream water
quality.

19| Page



Table 5. Median BMP removal efficiencies (Minnesota Stormwater Manual) used to estimate the collective
pollutant removal efficiency of BMPs located upstream of resources for which water quality modeling data were
not available.

Infiltration Practices

Stormwater Wet Pervious Dry Volume Overflow
Pollutant | No BMPs Wetland Pond* Pavement Pond* Infiltrated? Volume?
TP 0% 40% 50% 45% 20% 100% n/a
TSS 0% 55% 84% 72% 35% 100% n/a

TP = total phosphorus; TSS = total suspended solids

Value for wet swale

2Applied to RG BMP, 100% applied to 5 acres, overflow to remainder, underground 10 acres, permeable pavement — SA of

pavement, 5-acres for dry swale : https://stormwater.pca.state.mn.us/index.php?title=Stormwater_infiltration BMPs -
contributing drainage area

*Medium Removal efficiency:
https://stormwater.pca.state.mn.us/index.php?title=Pollutant removal percentages for stormwater pond BMPs

Table 6. Estimated collective pollutant removal efficiency for existing stormwater BMPs within each resource
drainage area.

ed D Receiving Waterbod TS TP
Wilmes Lake North 69% 52%
Wilmes Lake South 83% 61%
Evergreen Park Wetland 72% 45%
Markgrafs Lake 88% 71%
Powers Lake 96% 65%
Fish Lake 93% 61%
Colby Lake 94% 68%
SWWD
Bailey Lake 63% 38%
Marsh Creek Pond 80% 47%
Central Draw 53% 33%
La Lake 55% 40%
Ria Lake 100% 100%
East Mississippi 59% 35%
West Draw 71% 44%
Tamarack Wetland East 64% 42%
Tamarack Wetland West* 62% 37%
RWMWD Battle Creek Lake 63% 41%
Battle Creek 74% 40%
Carver Lake 67% 41%
VBWD Valley Branch Creek 69% 38%

20| Page



Table 7. Theoretical annual pollutant load reductions (total solids and phosphorus) to waterbodies for street sweeping scenarios described in Table 3.

ep 0 Pred ed PO Red 0 o Do 2 aterboad
- ec B ; P 0 Baseline Enhanced Baseline Monthly 2 X Per Month Weekly

TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib) TS (tons) TP (Ib)

Wilmes Lake North 4.0 6.6 7.9 10.8 13.8 159 15.3 214 23.8 38.3

Wilmes Lake South 33 8.1 6.5 13.3 11.4 19.5 12.6 26.3 19.6 47.1

Evergreen Park Wetland 2.4 5.0 4.8 8.2 8.3 12.1 9.2 16.3 14.3 29.1

Markgrafs Lake 0.7 1.9 1.4 31 2.5 4.5 2.8 6.0 43 10.8

Central Powers Lake 0.5 5.1 1.1 8.3 1.9 12.2 2.1 16.5 3.2 295

Draw Fish Lake 0.7 3.9 1.3 6.4 23 9.3 2.5 12.6 3.9 22.6

Colby Lake 35 19.9 6.9 325 12.0 47.7 13.3 64.3 20.7 115.3

SWWD

Bailey Lake 16.2 29.0 32.0 47.3 55.7 69.4 61.7 93.6 96.0 167.7

Marsh Creek Pond 33 9.3 6.4 15.2 11.2 22.2 12.4 30.0 19.3 53.7

Central Draw 2.3 35 4.6 5.7 7.9 8.4 8.8 11.3 13.6 20.2

East La Lake 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 15 2.2
Mississippi | East Mississippi 2.1 3.6 4.1 5.9 7.1 8.6 7.9 11.6 12.3 20.8

West Draw 25 5.2 4.9 8.6 8.5 12.5 9.5 16.9 14.7 30.3
SWWD TOTAL 41.8 101.5 82.5 165.9 143.4 243.2 158.9 327.9 247.2 587.7

Tamarack Wetland East 25 4.2 4.9 6.9 8.4 10.2 9.3 13.7 14.5 24.5

Battle | Tamarack Wetland West 1.2 2.1 2.3 3.4 4.1 5.0 4.5 6.8 7.0 12.2

Creek Battle Creek Lake 4.5 7.7 8.8 12.5 15.3 18.4 17.0 24.8 26.4 44.5

RWMWD

Battle Creek 1.8 4.5 3.6 7.4 6.3 10.8 7.0 14.6 10.8 26.2

Carver Lake 11.4 21.8 225 35.6 39.1 52.1 433 70.3 67.3 126.0

RWMWD TOTAL 21.3 40.3 42.1 65.8 73.2 96.6 81.1 130.2 126.1 233.3

VBWD Valley Branch Creek /TOTAL 1.7 3.6 3.4 5.9 5.8 8.7 6.5 11.7 10.1 20.9
ALL 64.8 145.4 128.0 237.6 2224 348.5 246.5 469.8 383.3 841.9

21| Page



6. MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

Once collected, swept material must be disposed of properly, a process which may incur additional costs to the
City. These costs include the dump trucks and associated costs used to transport sweeper waste from sweeper
operations to the landfill, the costs charged by the landfill for disposal, and any additional disposal costs
required to compost organic material, including sorting, or separating the material into different waste
streams. The City may wish to consider two disposal scenarios:

1. Dispose of all collected sweepings as solid waste without screening
2. Screen and separate sweepings by trash and debris, recycling, and composting and dispose of each
category separately

Currently, the City owns three dump trucks which transport sweeper waste approximately 10-15 miles away
from sweeper operations. According to City meeting minutes on November 17, 2021, the landfill charges $4
per cubic yard for leaves and $8 per cubic yard for dirt. The City does not maintain a municipal compost site so
local options for composting leaf litter and other organic sweeping material will be explored in this section.

6.1. Non-Compostable

Non-compostable street sweepings include all material that do not qualify as compostable or recyclable. This
typically includes particulate matter, trash and debris, metals, bits of road, and other various materials, all of
which will likely reach its end point in the landfill. The City may wish to consider reuse opportunities for swept
material: the MPCA lists a few common uses such as mixing with salt or sand for winter ice application, fill for
engineered purposes on commercial industrial developments, and daily cover material for a permitted solid
waste landfill able to accept alternate daily cover.

The first disposal scenario includes the disposal costs of solid waste to the landfill, measured by cubic yard.
Additionally, the waste must be stored in accordance with solid waste storage standards which may contribute
to additional costs if the City does not operate sufficient facilities with enough capacity for an increased
amount of sweeping waste. These standards include providing a liner, run-on control systems to collect water,
and inspections, as well as requiring that the storage site be located outside of floodplains, shorelands, wild or
scenic river districts, wetlands, and areas where emissions from stored material would violate air quality
standards.

However, screened sweeper waste does not require storage under solid waste storage standards; rather it only
needs to meet MPCA industrial stormwater permit requirements. If the storage facility qualifies for a “no
exposure” certification, costs can be further reduced. As such, the second scenario will cost the City hourly for
the labor of screening and separating the sweepings; this scenario will also impose the costs charged per cubic
yard by disposal facilities for accepting the various waste streams. These streams will likely include solid waste,
recycling, and composting.

6.2. Compostable Material

A handful of studies in the Twin Cites metro area have quantified the coarse organic content of street sweepings
over the snow-free season. On an annual basis, coarse organics make up about 25% of total the total mass of

22| Page



sweeping collected. Coarse organic inputs will vary spatially and temporally depending on ROW tree canopy and
local vegetation. During the fall leaf-drop season, coarse organic material generally comprised a majority of the
solids collected from street surfaces, but summer sweeping can contain large amount of grass clipping, flower,
pollen, or duff. As such, a local or on-site composting facility for coarse organic material would provide significant
labor and disposal cost savings.

The cost of sweeper waste disposal operations is estimated in Appendix C.3. A detailed comparison of costs for
material management alternatives was beyond the scope of this study; however, the following key findings may
be useful in for planning material management in the future as the cost of individual components changes.

e The cost total associated with disposal of sweeping (Appendix C.3) make up about 1% of the total

cost of sweeping for all scenarios.
0 Fuelis the largest component of disposal costs (75%)

e Roughly 25% of the material collected from street is organic and could be composted if screened
from sweepings. Hauling this material to a local facility would save money on fuel and disposal costs.

e Several municipalities in the TCMA reuse the non-compostable component of sweeping for fill. If
the City finds that they have a shortage of fill material for City project, this object should be further
investigated.

23| Page



7.

COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS

Total annual program costs and cost-benefit ($/lb-P removed) were estimated for the sweeping scenarios

summarized in Section 5. For a city-owned and operated sweeping program, the cost-basis (S/lane-mile) is not

constant but rather depends on the sweeper type and financing and the cost of vehicle maintenance, labor, and

fuel. Total costs for each sweeping scenario were calculated using the component costs and assumptions listed

in Table 8 and the following assumptions:

Sweepers are owned by the City of Woodbury

Typical sweeper operational speed = 3 — 5 mph

An additional 1 hour of labor is required for every 4 hours of sweeping time

Total transit miles (brush off) are about 16 miles on average for travel to/from the sweeping route.

On average, sweeper fuel consumption is 5 mpg

The average bulk density of the material collected from streets is 80 Ib/cf including water content

The City has sufficient staffing to operate the sweepers as needed

One city-wide sweep includes approximately 655 lane-miles of sweeping.

The sweeper can be operational approximately 140 workdays between April 1 and October 31 each
year (30 weeks total). This calculation accounts for federal holidays and 7 additional workday of non-
operation due to maintenance, inclement weather, or staffing shortages.

At high sweeping frequencies (greater than once per month), city-wide sweeping would require
purchase of an additional sweeper(s).

Iltems not included in the cost calculation, but which may add cost to an enhanced street sweeping program,

include:

Administrative staff time
Public outreach and notification
Signage and installation

Table 8. Cost basis assumptions, in-house street sweeping program.

Category ‘ Cost ‘ Data Source(s)

Vehicle Depreciation

Elgin Crosswind | $20,400 Dealer quote for similar sweeper ($269,000, Crosswind),
i i ($209,000, Pelican); 10-year life span, 4% Interest, resale value
Elgin Pelican | $15,100 after 10-year 25% to 30% of purchase price
Vehicle Refurbishment & Maintenance
Elgin Crosswind | $9,190 Maintenance and refurbishment schedule for Tymco
Elgin Pelican | $6,892 regenerative air sweeper for 1, 000 — 2,000 hours of use per year.
Labor (wages + benefits) $75 per hour

Fuel

$4.25 per gallon Max daily average cost of diesel fuel across MN, February, 2022

Disposal Fees

Non-compostable material | $8/CY

City of Woodbury Public Works
Compostable material | $4/CY

24 | Page



Sections 7.1 and 7.2 show costs for in-house sweeping compared to costs for the same level of service using a
contract sweeping service. For contract sweeping, the cost-basis (S/lane-mile) is assumed to be constant for all
sweeping scenarios. The cost per lane-mile was calculated using the total cost of spring sweeping services
divided by the total lane-miles swept.

Additional details for both in-house and contract sweeping cost estimates are provided in Cost Benefits —
Detailed Calculations

7.1. Cost Efficiency Comparisons

The cost-efficiency estimates summarized in this section are focused mainly on in-house sweeping program
options that include the purchase of 1 or 2 new street sweepers. Based on the number of municipal lane-miles
to be swept (Table 2), it would take a single sweeper about 31.6 workdays to complete a single lane pass of all
municipal roads. With two sweepers a single lane pass can be completed in about 16 workdays. Because spring
and fall sweepings often require more than one lane pass to effectively reduce solids accumulation, and these
cleanings are more time-sensitive than sweepings that occur between spring and fall, it is not feasible that even
baseline sweeping could be completed using the sweepers currently owned by the City of Woodbury without
putting a strain on the City’s resources. If sweepers are needed for construction or road maintenance projects,
there will likely be a shortage of vehicles at certain times of the year.

Based on the assumptions outlined in Table 8 and Appendix C, the cost-basis for baseline sweeping is $102 per
lane-mile for a contract sweeper, and roughly $93 per lane-mile for a city-owned sweepers (Figure 8, Table 10).
For baseline sweeping (spring/fall only) with city-owned sweepers, the total cost of sweeping is driven by capital
outlay for sweepers (60% in Figure 9). Because capital outlay cost is essentially flat, the cost-efficiency (S/lane-
mile) of in-house sweeping improves (lower cost basis, $/land-mile) as each vehicle is utilized for additional
sweepings (24% for the 14 sweepings per year in Figure 9). Total labor costs follow the inverse pattern as more
labor per sweeper is needed.

If additional sweepers are needed to complete the specified number of sweepings, the total cost increases by
an increment equal to the vehicle depreciation and maintenance cost in Table 8; causing an initial decrease in
cost-efficiency (higher S/lane-mile). These dynamics are shown in Table 10. For each of the vehicle purchase
options listed under the ‘Cost-basis of Sweeping,’ the cost-efficiency improves as sweeping frequency is
increased. For each of the sweeping scenarios, adding additional vehicles decreases the cost-efficiency,
however, it should be noted then number of vehicles needed is dependent on the desired sweeping frequency.

In contrast, the cost-efficiency of contract sweeping is constant (5102/lane-mile), making additional sweepings
no more cost effective than baseline sweeping.

25| Page



Total cost diverges as the
number of sweepings is
increased.

/

/ Similar total cost for baseline

Figure 8. Cost of inhouse and contract sweeping for sweeping scenarios using 3 (1 new) and 4 (2 new) sweepers.

26| Page



® VEHICLE = LABOR = MATERIAL FEES FUEL

Figure 9. Vehicle (depreciation and maintenance), labor (sweeping and hauling operations), material disposal fees, and
fuel costs as percent of the total cost of sweeping program options summarized in Table 10.

27 | Page



Table 9. Estimated total annual costs and cost-efficiencies for in-house street sweeping for the scenarios presented in Section 5 and different vehicle purchase
options.

Cost of basis of Sweeping ($/mi)

Total ANNUAL COST for Different Sweeper Purchasing Options

Lane-Miles Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Sweeping Scenario Swept (no purchase) (purchase 1) (purchase 2) (no purchase) (purchase 1) (purchase 2)

Baseline 1,212 S75,477 $105,067 $127,059 $62 $87 $105
Enhanced Baseline 2,424 $112,656 $142,246 $164,238 S46 $59 $68
Monthly 4,241 $198,013 $220,005 S47 $52
2X per Month 8,483 $326,001 $347,993 S38 $41
Weekly 16,965 $582,958 $604,950 $34 $36
1. Use sweepers currently owned by City of Woodbury - (1) Elgin Crosswind and (1) Elgin Pelican CELL SHADING KEY

2. Purchase one (1) additional high-efficiency sweeper Numbers of sweepers is not a constrain in the scenario

Number of sweepers could be a constraint if multiple lane
passes are needed, or sweepers are in demand for other
purposes like construction cleanup.

sweeper
- Scenario Requires additional sweepers

Table 10. Comparison of estimated annual costs for in-house and contract service street sweeping for the street sweeping scenarios presented in Section 5.

3. Purchase two (2) additional high-efficiency sweepers OR (1) additional high-efficiency sweeper and (1) broom

otz Recommended Estimated Annual T . o CO
eeping Scenario ane e ep Vehicle Purchase! Cost
Baseline 1,212 Option 2: Purchase (1) additional $105,067 $123,624
Enhanced Baseline 2,424 sweeper $142,246 $247,248
Monthly 4,241 . N $220,005 $432,582
2X per Month 8,483 Option 3: Purchase two (2) additional $347,993 $865,266
sweepers
Weekly 16,965 $604,950 $1,730,430

1 Number of sweepers is not a constraint based on recommended purchase (see Table 9).
2 Cost basis = $102 per lane-mile based on review of municipal bid awards. See Appendix C for cost-basis estimate details.

28| Page



7.2. Pollutant Removal Cost Benefit

The primary objective of this study is to provide street sweeping recommendations to the City of Woodbury for
the purpose of protecting water resources within the City’s jurisdiction. To that end, we evaluated the cost
benefit of each street sweeping scenarios with respect to total phosphorus management. Cost-effectiveness,
measured as S per pound of phosphorus recovered, tends to improve with cost-efficiency, but also depends on
the timing of sweeping. Sweeping is most cost-effective in the spring and fall with total solids loading on street
surfaces is greatest. Additional sweeping, during the late spring and summer months, does increase pollutant
recovery on an annual basis; however, these sweepings are less productive (lower Ib/lane-mile) when compared
to spring and fall sweepings. Therefore, the cost-effectiveness for monthly sweeping is somewhat decreased
when compared to the ‘Enhanced Baseline’ scenario in Table 11. Entries that are outlined in red correspond to
scenarios that were used to develop sweeping recommendations (Section 8). For these scenarios, the cost-
effectiveness of phosphorus recovery is roughly $300 - 350 per pound.

When quantified with respect to the estimated TP reductions to downstream water resources, the cost-
effectiveness of sweeping is somewhat decreased (higher cost per pound). For the highlighted scenarios, the
cost-effectiveness for pollutant reduction is about $650 per pound of TP. As discussed in Section 5.2, the TP load
reductions presented in this report should be used for comparison of sweeping scenarios and not directly
translated to reduction target quantified through other methods. Similarly, the cost-effectiveness estimates
quantified for this study, do not capture the full scope of material benefits that sweeping can provide. Street
sweeping reduces the mass of sediment as associated pollutants discharged to the City’s stormwater
infrastructure and, in doing so, can help preserve the treatment capacity or extend the maintenance life cycle
of downstream BMPs. Due to the scarcity of research on this topic, a detailed cost-estimate of these benefits
was beyond the scope of this study, nonetheless, co-benefits like this, if quantified would improve the cost-
effectiveness of sweeping compared to the estimated provided here.

Table 11. Total costs and cost-efficiency with respect to phosphorus management for potential in-house sweeping
scenarios.

Total Costs Average Cost-Efficiency ($/Ib-TP)

Annual Cost S/lane-mile Pollutant Recovery Pollutant Reduction

Sweeping Scenario Vehicle Purchase Option 2: (1) Additional High-Efficiency Sweeper

Baseline $105,067 $87 $355 $723
Enhanced Baseline $142,246 $59 $295 $599
Monthly $198,013 $47 $279 S568
2X per Month $326,001 $38 $337 $694
Weekly $582,958 S34 $340 $692

Vehicle Purchase Option 3: (2) Additional Sweepers (1 or both high-efficiency)

Baseline $127,059 $105 $429 $874
Enhanced Baseline $164,238 S68 $340 $691
Monthly $220,005 $52 $310 $631
2X per Month $347,993 $41 $360 $741
Weekly $604,950 S36 $353 $719

Number of sweeping vehicles could be a constrain depending on the need for more than one lane pass during period
of heavy solids loading (spring, fall) and/or the demand for sweepers for construction projects.

29| Page



8. RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendations for sweeping by sweeping zone are listed in Table 12. In addition to prioritization of key water
resources, the sweeping recommendations provided in this section were developed using the following guiding
questions:

1) The City currently uses a contract service to complete spring and fall street cleanings.
e What level of service can be provided for comparable cost if an in-house sweeping program is
developed?
2) The City has expressed an interest in developing an enhanced street sweeping program for protection
of Woodbury’s key water resources.
e Enhanced sweeping city-wide, would include 4 sweeping year minimally up to weekly sweeping.
What level of service can be provided for comparable cost if an in-house sweeping program is
developed when compared to contract sweeping?

The analyses completed for this study showed that for baseline sweeping, the cost of an in-house program is
somewhat less than, but comparable to, using a contract service. However, as the frequency of sweeping is
increased from 4 times per year, in-house sweeping is an increasingly more cost-effective option.

The recommended sweeping scenario is a hybrid of the scenarios outlined in red under the Vehicle Purchase
Option 2 (purchase 2 additional sweepers) in Table 11. It prioritizes sweeping in zones SW-2, -3, -4, -5, and -7
with a frequency of twice monthly (12-14 sweepings per year). Sweeping in these zones will most benefit the
following key water resources: Wilmes North and South -Lakes, Markgrafs Lake, Powers Lake, and Colby Lake.
All other sweeping zones in the City would benefit from monthly sweeping (7 sweepings per season) for water
quality and BMP longevity.

Estimated pollutant recovery and pollutant load reductions for downstream water resources for the
recommended scenario are summarized in Table 13. For the fully implemented recommendations, the
estimated pollutant recovery is 979 tons of total solids and 779 pounds of total phosphorus. Compared to
baseline pollutant load reductions, sweeping at recommended frequency is estimated to reduce TP loads to key
resources by the following amounts:

Pollutant Reduction Compared to
Key Water Resource Baseline Sweeping (lb-TP/yr)

Wilmes Lake (North and South) 13.6
Markgraf’s Lake 3.5
Power’s Lake 10.7
Colby Lake 33.0
Bailey Lake 45.3
Battle Creek Lake 5.9
Carver Lake 30.4
Valley Branch Creek 5.2

Recommendations for Program Implementation

It may be easiest to implement recommendation over a period of 2 to 3 years to adapt staffing and equipment
schedules.

30| Page



Year 1:

e Buy 1 high-efficiency sweeper and implement monthly sweeping in all zones

e If staffing limitations or sweeper demand for other needs (construction, road maintenance) limits the
availability of sweeper for enhanced sweeping practices, prioritize sweeping zones that target key
water resources.

The estimated annual cost for implementation of at this level of effort is $198,013. This cost is comparable to
the cost of contract sweeping for the Enhanced baseline scenario (4X per year) in all zones ($247,248).

Year 2 or 3:
e Purchase an additional sweeper. Choose high-efficiency or mechanical sweeper depending on cross-
over demand with other sweeping needs (construction, road maintenance projects).
e Add sweepings up to twice monthly in zones that target priority water resources.

The estimated annual cost for implementation at this level of effort is $351,766 or about $65 per lane-mile
swept. This cost is less than the cost of contract sweeping for monthly sweeping in all zones ($432,582).

Year 4 and beyond:

e Adapt sweeping practices to target key water resources as impacted by new development, BMP
performance; changes in tree canopy or infrastructure, or other factors that influence watershed
pollutant loads.

31| Page



Table 12. Recommended Sweeping Scenario

Proposed
Sweeping Primary Resource Workdays Needed, Total Sweeping Estimated
Zone Targeted Single Sweeper? Lane-Miles Schedule Annual Cost?
SW-1 Wilmes Lake North 0.9 16.7 Monthly $7,552
SW-2 Wilmes Lake North 1.2 23.6 Twice Monthly $21,344
SW-3 Wilmes Lake North 1.5 28.4 Twice Monthly $25,685
Powers Lake .
SW-4 Markgraf’s Lake 2.2 43 Twice Monthly $38,889
SW-5 Wilmes Lake South 1.2 23.4 Twice Monthly $21,163
SW-6 Bailey Lake 1.8 35 Monthly $15,827
SW-7 Colby Lake 2.8 53.5 Twice Monthly $48,385
SW-8 Colby Lake 2.8 54.7 Monthly $24,735
SW-9 Colby Lake 2.3 44.6 Monthly $20,168
East Mississippi
SW-10 West Draw 1.2 23.1 Monthly $10,446
SW-11 Bailey Lake 3.0 58.2 Monthly $26,318
Tamarack Wetland
M-1 Evergreen Wetland 1.1 22 Monthly $9,948
M-2 Tamarack Wetland 1.1 20.6 Monthly $9,315
Carver Lake
M-3 Marsh Creek Pond 1.9 36.3 Monthly $16,415
RMW-1 Battle Creek 1.2 22.3 Monthly $10,084
RMW-2 Battle Creek Lake 1.8 32.3 Monthly $14,606
RWM-3 Carver Lake 2.2 42.8 Monthly $19,354
Valley Branch Creek
VB-1 Markgrafs Lake 0.9 25.5 Monthly $11,531
TOTAL 31.6 606 $351,766

! Basedona single lane pass. Used to determine the number of sweepers needed to complete the sweeping scenario within the
specified timeframe. For example, a single sweeper would not fulfill the sweeper demand for monthly city-wide street sweeping
since 31.6 days. Two sweeper working full time could compete a single lane pass in 31.6 divided by 2, or about 16 workdays.

In house street sweeping program, all sweepers city-owned and operated.

32| Page



Table 13. Estimated pollutant load recovery and load reduction to downstream water resources for the sweeping recommendations summarized in Table 13.

/b a0 p 5 Estimated Pollutant Recovery Estimated Pollutant Reduction
=€ . TS TP TS TP

Zone Scenario (tons/yr) (Ib/yr) $/lb-TP (tons/yr) (Ib/yr) $/LB-TP

Wilmes Lake North 30.9 264 48.4 42.1 $405 15.0 20.2 $843
Wilmes Lake South 40.7 555 73.8 66.8 $537 12.5 26.1 $1,376

Evergreen Park Wetland 21 147 29.6 21.9 $433 8.3 12.1 $788
Markgrafs Lake 14.3 114 22.1 18.5 $399 2.7 5.4 $1,374
Powers Lake 32.3 416 51.3 45.1 $596 2.1 15.8 $1,702

Central Draw

Fish Lake 22.2 287 35.3 31.0 $598 2.5 12.1 $1,533
SWWD Colby Lake 128.9 1160 206.6 165.2 S454 12.4 52.9 $1,417

Bailey Lake 100 823 153.7 119.7 S444 56.9 74.2 $716

Marsh Creek Pond 33.2 232 55.9 41.9 $357 11.2 22.2 S674

Central Draw 11.6 81.3 16.8 12.5 $420 7.9 8.4 $627

La Lake 0.9 6.6 2.0 1.5 $284 0.9 0.9 S474

East Mississippi

East Mississippi 8.3 57.9 17.4 13.2 5282 7.1 8.6 S434

West Draw 14.1 98.4 29.4 22.4 $298 $284 12.5 $533
SWWD TOTAL 458.4 4242 742.1 602.0 $479 $455 271.3 $1,062

Battle Creek Lake 14.6 102 23.4 17.5 $376 17.2 10.8 $610
Tamarack Wetland West 6.6 46.1 10.7 8.0 $373 4.1 2.6 $1,145

Battle Creek
Tamarack Wetland East 23.8 166.7 41.4 31.2 $345 16.1 10.1 $1,066
RWMWD

Battle Creek 14.9 104.3 24.1 18.1 $373 3.6 3.3 $2,042
Carver Lake 74.7 522.9 118.4 88.4 $S402 $382 29.9 $1,187
RWMWD TOTAL 134.6 942 218.0 163.1 $392 $373 56.7 $1,128

VBWD Valley Branch Creek /TOTAL 13 94 18.9 14.2 $450 $429 7.2 $886
ALL 606 5278 979.1 779.3 $460 240.1 $429 $1,069

33| Page



9. REFERENCES

Bartolozzi, |.; Baldereschi, E.; Daddi, T.; Iraldo, F. The Application of Life Cycle Assessment (LCA) in Municipal
Solid Waste Management: A Comparative Study on Street Sweeping Services. J. Clean. Prod. 2018,
182, 455-465. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2018.01.230.

Berretta C., S. Raje, and J.J. Sansalone. Quantifying Nutrient Loads Associated with Urban Particulate Matter
(PM), and Biogenic/Litter Recovery Through Current MS4 Source Control and Maintenance Practices.
University of Florida, College of Engineering, Gainesville, Florida: Florida Stormwater Association
Education Foundation (FSAEF); 2011 Final Report: 31 May 2011.

Bintner, Ross, 2012 — personal communication while serving as Water Resources Engineer for the City of Prior
Lake, MN.

Buranen, M., 2015; Water Quality Improves with Street Sweeping, Stormwater Magazine,
https://www.stormh2o0.com/bmps/article/13018539/water-quality-improves-with-street-sweeping.

Buranen, M., 2018; Street Sweeping—Cleaner Air, Clearer Water Stormwater Magazine,
https://www.stormh2o0.com/home/article/13034513/street-sweepingcleaner-air-clearer-water.

Chesapeake Bay Stormwater Network, 2016; Crediting Street Sweeping & Storm Drain Cleaning in the Bay
Watershed, Webinar/pdf.

Emmons and Olivier Resources (EOR), 2015, for the City of Edina, MN; Street Sweeping Management Plan,
https://www.edinamn.gov/964/Edina-Docs-Document-Archive.

EOR, 2018, for the Comfort Lake-Forest Lake Watershed District; City of Forest Lake Street Sweeping
Management Plan, http://ci.forest-lake.mn.us/documentcenter.

Florida Stormwater Particulate Removal Studies 2007, 2011 and 2019
http://www.worldsweeper.com/Street/Studies/UFloridaSansalonelnterview12.19.html (accessed
2021 -10 -08).

Hixon, L. F.; Dymond, R. L. State of the Practice: Assessing Water Quality Benefits from Street Sweeping. J.
Sustain. Water Built Environ. 2018, 4 (3), 04018007. https://doi.org/10.1061/JSWBAY.0000860.

Hixon, L. F. Potential and Quantification of Street Sweeping Pollutant Reductions towards Addressing TMDL
WLAs for MS4 Compliance. 158.

Hobbie, S. E.; Baker, L. A,; Finlay, J. C. MSRC2019: Mass, Moisture, Nitrogen, and Phosphorus in Street
Sweepings Collected from Five Cities in the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, Minnesota, 2020.
https://doi.org/10.13020/39eg-bg21.

Hunt, J. Street Sweepers as Cost-Effective Stormwater BMPs for Municipal Parking Lots in Charlotte. 27.

and Washwater. Environ. Int. 2020, 135, 105337. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envint.2019.105337.

34| Page



Kalinosky, P., 2015. Quantifying Solids and Nutrient Recovered Through Street Sweeping in a Suburban
Watershed. Master’s Thesis, University of Minnesota

Kalinosky, P., Baker, L., Hobbie, S., Bintner, R., Buyarski, C. 2013. User Support Manual: Estimating Nutrient
Removal by Enhanced Street Sweeping, University of Minnesota for Minnesota Pollution Control
Agency (MPCA).

Kidwell-Ross, R, 2015; City of Seattle Doubling its Sweeping Program to Address Stormwater Pollution,
Stormwater Magazine (accessed 2021 -10 -08).

Kidwell-Ross, 2013; The Effectiveness of Sweepers as an Urban Stormwater BMP in Maryland

Kim, D.-G.; Kang, H.-M.; Ko, S.-O. Reduction of Non-Point Source Contaminants Associated with Road-
Deposited Sediments by Sweeping. Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res. 2019, 26 (2), 1192-1207.
https://doi.org/10.1007/s11356-017-0192-y.

Law, N. L. Deriving Reliable Pollutant Removal Rates for Municipal Street Sweeping and Storm Drain Cleanout
Programs in the Chesapeake Bay Basin. 73.

Lloyd, L. N.; Fitch, G. M.; Singh, T. S.; Smith, J. A. Characterization of Environmental Pollutants in Sediment
Collected during Street Sweeping Operations to Evaluate Its Potential for Reuse. J. Environ. Eng.

2019, 145 (2), 04018141. https://doi.org/10.1061/(ASCE)EE.1943-7870.0001493.

Selbig, W. Evaluation of Leaf Removal as a Means to Reduce Nutrient Concentrations and Loads in Urban
Stormwater. Sci. Total Environ. 2016, 571, 124-133.
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2016.07.003.

Stormwater Magazine, 2014; Street Sweeping, https://www.stormh2o.com/bmps/article/13002773/street-
sweeping.

wsb, (2019), for the City of Woodbury, MN; City of Woodbury, 2040 Local Surface Water Management Plan,
https://www.woodburymn.gov/Search?searchPhrase=documents.

35| Page



APPENDIX A. STREET SWEEPING ZONE MAPS

36|Page



Figure 10. Sweeping Zones SW-1 and SW-2

37| Page



Figure 11. Sweeping Zones SW-3, SW-4, and SW-5.

38| Page



Figure 12. Sweeping Zones M-2, M-3, SW-6, SW-7.

39| Page



Figure 13. Sweeping Zones SW-8 and SW-9.

40| Page



Figure 14. Sweeping Zones SW-10 and SW-11.

41| Page



Figure 15. Sweeping Zones M-1, RMW-1, and RMW-2

42 |Page



Figure 16. Sweeping Zones M-2, M-3, and RMW-3.

43| Page



Figure 17. Sweeping Zones VB-1.

44 |Page



APPENDIX B. COLLECTIVE BMP REMOVAL EFFICIENCIES FOR LOAD
REDUCTION CALCUATIONS

Modeled Resources

The SWWD provide water quality models (P8) for several lakes in the SWWD. Since street sweeping zones
boundaries do not correspond to modeled subwatershed boundaries, a collective BMP removal efficiency
was calculated at the watershed-scale applied and applied to pollutant recovery from street re-aggregated
by water resource drainage area (as shown in Table 4 and Table 6).

The collective removal efficiency of BMPs was calculated as follows:

The total pollutant load retained by BMPs in the watershed = Watershed Load — Lake Inflow Load

The collective removal efficiencies of BMPs = (Watershed Load — Load Retained by BMPs) / Watershed Load

Table 14. Summary of TSS load estimates from SWWD P8 lake models used to calculate the collective TSS removal
efficiency of modeled BMPs in the water resource drainage area.

TSS Load (Ib/yr)

Watershed Direct Total Retained by Collective BMP
Waterbody Load Drainage Inflow Upstream BMPs Removal Efficiency
Wilmes North 247307 5184 82062 76878 69%
Wilmes South 268463 21156 65822 44666 83%
Markgrafs 160482 62617 81421 18804 88%
Powers Lake 981769 159777 203726 43949 96%
Fish Lake 392417 14522 42195 27673 93%
Colby Lake 544221 86410 121141 34731 94%

Table 15. Summary of TP load estimates from SWWD P8 lake models used to calculate the collective TP removal
efficiency of modeled BMPs in the water resource drainage area.

TP Load (Ib/yr)

Watershed Direct Total Retained by Collective BMP
Waterbody Load Drainage Inflow Upstream BMPs Removal Efficiency
Wilmes North 599 12.1 296.9 285 52%
Wilmes South 648 48.52 302.4 254 61%
Markgrafs 383 150.9 261.9 111 71%
Powers Lake 1146 183.3 583.3 400 65%
Fish Lake 460 17.7 196.6 179 61%
Colby Lake 2312 366.4 1104.1 738 68%

All Other Resources

Where modeled efficiencies were not available the median removal efficiencies reported in Table 5 were
applied to the City’s BMP inventory and area-weighted based on the district drainage area. A sample of the
BMP inventory with median BMP removal efficiencies is shown in Table 16.

45| Page



Table 16. Summary of BMPs by drainage district and downstream water resource for Tamarack East and Tamarack
West wetland.

District Estimated
Downstream Area (ac) Impervious % Impervious SWS TSS SWS TP
District Waterbody BMP Type | Count (ac) Treated Removal G ]
BC-18 Tamarack East | WET POND 1 183.2 64.1 100% 84% 50%
BC-18 Tamarack East | WETLAND 1 183.2 64.1 100% 55% 40%
BC- ) -
18.0.1 | Tamarack East | DRY POND 2 133.2 473 21% % 4%
BC-18.1 Tamarack East | WET POND 1 17.3 6.1 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.10 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 10.2 3.6 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.11 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 9.8 3.4 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.12 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 3.8 1.3 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3a | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 2.2 0.8 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3b | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 3.8 1.3 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3c | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 14 0.5 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3d | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 1.8 0.6 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3e | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 2.6 0.9 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3f | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 5.9 2.1 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.3g | Tamarack East | WET POND 3 40.3 14.1 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.4 Tamarack East | WET POND 1 17.3 6.1 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.5 Tamarack East | WET POND 1 293 10.2 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.6 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 25.0 8.7 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.7 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 39.2 13.7 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.8 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 34.8 12.2 100% 84% 50%
BC-18.9 | Tamarack East | WET POND 1 12.8 45 100% 84% 50%
Tamarack RAIN R :
BC-17 | West GARDEN > °27 18.4 100% 100% 100%
Tamarack ] ;
BC-17 West WET POND 1 527 18.4 100% 84% 50%
Tamarack . ]
BC-17 West WETLAND ! 227 18.4 100% >5% 40%
BC- Tamarack . ]
1701 | West DRY POND > 104.9 36.7 68% 24% 14%
BC- Tamarack : ]
17.0.1 West WET POND ! 104.9 36.7 100% 84% 50%
Tamarack . ;
BC-17.1 | West werponp | >© 20 100% Ba% S0%
Tamarack . ;
BC-17.2 | West werponp | 1 314 11.0 100% 8a% >0%
Tamarack : ;
BC-17.3 | West WET POND 2 232 8.1 100% 84% 50%
Tamarack . ;
BC-17.4 | West WET POND 1 157 55 100% 84% 50%

46| Page



APPENDIX C. COST BENEFITS — DETAILED CALCULATIONS

For this study, cost estimates for street sweeping included the following three categories.

Total Cost = {Labor Cost} + {Equipment Cost} + {Material Management Cost}

Appendix C.1. Labor Cost

The following assumptions were used to calculate labor costs as part of the sweeping scenario cost
estimates. All quantities are based on information collected from the City of Woodbury and/or City
engineers from other Twin Cities municipalities for similar sweeping analyses.

Table 17. Summary of sweeping labor cost calculation assumptions.

Item ‘ Rate
Labor Rate
Average Labor Rate (wages + benefits) ‘ $75.00/hr
Labor Time
Sweeper Operation Time
Average brush-on operational speed 3.5 mph
Average brush-off operational speed 35 mph

Non-driving time related to sweeping
(maintenance, fueling, dumping, other)
Hours available per 1.0 FTE

1 hour for every 4 hours of driving

Cost-basis, 1.0 FTE Baseline 8.0 hr/day (40 hr/wk.)!
Snow-free season weekdays 153 days (30.6 weeks)
Holidays and PTO 10 days (2 weeks)
Work-basis, hours available per day 7.5 hr/day (37.5 hr/week)!

1The time needed to sweep proposed zones was calculated using the average hours available per day (7.5 hr) and the associated
cost for that work was calculated by applying the labor rate to an 8-hour day.

Table 18. Estimated annual cost of labor for street sweeping by sweeping scenario.

Brush-on
Time Brush-off Non- driving Labor Cost

Scenario (hr/yr) Time (hr/yr) | Time (hr/yr) (S/yr)

Baseline (Spring/Fall 1 X each) 346 29 87 $34,617
Enhanced Baseline (Spring/Fall 2 X each) 692 58 173 $69,234
Monthly all Routes 1212 101 303 $121,160
2X Monthly all Routes 2424 201 606 $242,321
Weekly all Routes 4847 403 1212 $484,641

47 |Page



Appendix C.2. Equipment Cost

Table 19. Breakdown of vehicle purchase and maintenance cost, annualized.

Elgin Crosswind® (or similar)

Elgin Pelican? (or similar)

Owned? New Owned? New
Capital Outlay
Purchase Price New (5269,000) $279,000 (5201,000) $209,000
Applicable Grant Contribution (SWWD) S$115,000 --- --- ---
Outlay = (Purchase Price New — Grant Contribution) $154,000 $279/000 $201,000 $209,000
Annual Capital Depreciation
Useful Lifespan of Vehicle 10 years
Anticipated Resale Value $75.000 $58,000
Depreciation = (Outlay — Resale)/Lifespan $15,296 $32,318 $14,300 $15,100
Yearly Maintenance, Refurbishment, and Fuel
D oyclefor stancrd Pigh usage and weat teme $9,190 56,892
Air filter and lubricants per 1000 hours of use® ~1,800*
Average vehicle mileage>® 6.25 mph
Cost of diesel fuel®’ $5.50 per gallon
Annualized Maintenance Cost $9,190 ‘ $6,892
Annualized Sweeper Cost
= Depreciation + Annual Maintenance $24,486 $41,508 ‘ $21,192 $21,992

1Regenerative Air or similar high efficiency sweeper
2 Mechanical broom sweepers with dust spray

3Currently owner by the City — (1) Elgin Crosswind and (1) Elgin Pelican Sweeper

4See product information sheet from Tymco, Appendix C.5.

5The cost of fuel, filters, and lubricant is accounted for in the total cost of sweeping based on estimated hours or miles of use for

each sweeping scenario.
5Prior Lake, MN sweeping study.

’Average cost of diesel in Minnesota for the period May 15™ — Jun 15t, 2022, AAA.

48 | Page




Table 20. Summary of total vehicle-related costs for sweeping scenarios based on minimum number of sweepers needed to complete sweeping within the

allotted timeframe.

# Total Operation Fuel & Other Depreciation &
aric eper A ptic Sweepers Miles Consumables Maintenance TOTAL
Baseline (Spring/Fall 1 X . .
each) City -owned Crosswind 3 1,212 $1,878 $69,750
Enhanced Baseline City -owned- Pelican $67,872
(Spring/Fall 2 X each) (1) New Elgin Crosswind (or similar) 3 2,424 $3,755 $71,627
Monthly all Routes City -owned Crosswind 4 4,241 $6,572 $96,444
City -owned- Pelican
(1) New Elgin Crosswind (or similar) 289,872
2X Monthly all Routes (1) New Elgin Pelican (or similar) 4 8,483 $13,143 $103,015
City -owned Crosswind
City -owned- Pelican
Weekly all Routes (3) New Elgin Crosswind (or similar) 6 16,965 $26,287 $133,872 $160,159
(1) New Elgin Pelican (or similar)

49 |Page



Appendix C.3. Materials Management Cost

The following assumptions were used to calculate the disposal costs of sweeper waste.

Table 21. Summary of sweeper waste management assumptions.

Item
Vehicle Assumptions — Dump Truck (hauling)

Rate

Maximum hauling capacity*

8 CY / 16 ton hoist capacity

Average vehicle fuel efficiency?

6.5 mpg

Cost of diesel fuel®

$4.25 per gallon

Sweeper Waste

Average bulk density (Ib/ft) — Inorganic*

88 Ib/cf

Average bulk density (Ib/ft) - Coarse Organic®

15 Ib/cf

Average annual composition by solids type®

75% inorganic/25% organic

Sweeper hopper capacity’

8 CY (Elgin Crosswind)/3.5 CY (Elgin Pelican)

Sweeper Waste Management Labor Costs

Labor Time = transit time + related non-driving time

Distance to disposal site® 36 miles
Average transit speed 45 mph
Non-drive time required per haul 0.5 hour

Labor Rate

(Same as sweeping operations, see Appendix C.1).

Disposal Fees

Non-compostable (inorganic) material® S8 /CY
Compostable (organic) material® S4 /cY
Mass-weighted disposal fee (75% inorganic/25% organic) S7/CY

1Typical value for truck with box length 10 — 12 feet, Monroe Municipal Equipment, All Season Bodies - Monroe Municipal Truck

Equipment (monroetruck.com).

2Trux, Inc, How to Effectively Reduce Fuel Consumption.

3 Average cost of diesel in Minnesota for the period Feb 15™ — March 15%, AAA.

4Bulk density of silty sand, MN Stormwater Manual

5 Bulk density of yard waste, average for leaves (Minnesota, 342 Ib/CY) and uncompacted yard waste (250 Ib/CY), and compacted
yard waste (640 lb/CY), USEPA Volume-to-Weight Conversion Factors, April 2016.

6 Sweeper waste composition, Prior Lake Street Sweeping Study (Kalinosky, et al, 2013).

7Vebhicle specifications, vendor website.

8 Project communications, City of Woodbury Public Works staff.

Table 22. Estimated annual cost of disposal-related costs for street sweeping scenarios.

Total Material

Disposal Cost

Scenario Volume (CY/yr) Disposal Fees | Fuel ($/yr) | Labor (S/yr) ($/yr)
Baseline (Spring/Fall 1 X each) 12 $151 $1,927 $466 $2,544
(Spmg/Fal 3 X eaeh) 2 S99 | S3S08 | son0 $4,727
Monthly all Routes a1 $519 $6,218 $1,597 $8,334
2X Monthly all Routes 45 $574 $6,893 $1,765 $9,232
Weekly all Routes 70 $894 $10,863 $2,752 $14,509

50| Page



Appendix C.4. Contract Sweeping Cost Estimate

The cost of sweeping using a contract service was estimated using public bid tabulations for municipal street
sweeping services and data collected by EOR for previous street sweeping studies (Table 23). Only quotes for
annual or city-wide street cleaning were included in comparisons. The cost-basis for other sweeping services
—e.g., construction site maintenance and parking lot sweeping — was not reviewed since this cost-basis tends
to be hourly rather than by distance swept and lighter-duty sweepers are often used. Quoted rates for street
sweeping services varied significantly among the bids reviewed, from a low rate of approximately $28.33 per
lane-mile to a high of $147.84. Variation in bids is due in part to local economic factors. Other less transparent
factors include:

e Number, type, and condition of sweepers —sweepers come in different sizes, and some are more effective than

others when targeting grit vs. leaves. vs. trash, etc.
e  Operational speed and number of sweeper passes per lane —assumptions regarding the number of lane passes

requested/needed to clean streets may vary among service providers.
e Distance to municipality — mobilization costs were not quantified explicitly in any of the bid tabulations that

were reviewed but may be accounted for in unit pricing.
e Disposal-related costs —lIt is not clear how sweeper waste management responsibilities may factor into pricing

for other bids. Only the Oak Park Heights quote (2014) included an explicit item for disposal.
e Reimbursable expenses — It was not clear in the bid tabulations whether expenses were included or if some

quotes included reimbursement for fuel costs.

Based on the surveyed rate, a value of $102 per lane-mile was used to estimate the cost of contract services.
This value represents the median cost of all entries in Table 23.

Table 23. Summary of municipal street sweeping bids reviewed for contract sweeping service cost estimates.

Year ‘ Proposed Lane Miles

Cost per lane mile

1 Cottage Grove, MN 2020 (City -wide) $85.00/hr ~$28.33!
2 Forest Lake, MN 2017 239x2 $66,500 $139

. $115/hr $32.85' + disposal fees

k Park Heigh
3 &"”N ark Heights, 2014 Spring/Fall Sweeping +$1.20/CY disposal | ($44.95 adjust for 4%
fee annual inflation)

4 Downer’s Grove. IL 224 x 12 sweepings $143,673.60 spring $53.45 Spring

. ! 2022
5 | (Greater Chicago) 240 x 3 sweepings $73,526.40 fall $102.12 fall
6 $211,372 average $95.73

. Charl IL (4
7 ZT d; arles, IL ( 2021 276 x 8 sweepings $82,481 low $35.36
8 $280,120 high $127.32
9 Westerville, OH 2020 Annual street sweeping $0.028/curb-foot $147.84
10 | Fairfield, OH 201820 | SV Streetinl;r'] tZP:( oraxper | ¢4 01339/curb-foot $70.70
. . $280/centerline mile
11 Laude, MO 2022 21 centerline miles x 12 $70,560 470 - $140/ lane-mile
648 highway, 375 arterial,
12 Victoria, TX (3 bids) 2020 740 local, 400 extra lane pass $251’78_4'30 $116.41
. (low bid)
for heavy debris

1Based on a single lane pass at an average operational speed of 3.0 mph

51| Page




Appendix C.5. Detailed Costs - Vehicle Maintenance

Sample Manufacturer’s Data Sheet, Tymco Model 600

OV I IVN 1| = D 1TANUARLD Mon USALE FAKIS

SEUVIIUN £ = WEAR ITEMS

**ex*Verify parts prices with TYMCO Parts Department before quoting.*****

1of2 TIL-006 / 3/12/2021

52| Page




*+*COSTS FOR THE FOLLOWING LISTED ITEMS MUST ALSO BE TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION***

1. FILTERS
Aucxiliary Engine Truck Sweeper Hydraulic System
(per manufacturer's suggestion)
Qil Filter (every 100 hrs) Oil Filter
Air Filter (per restriction indicator) Air Filter (per restriction indicator)
Fuel Filter (as required) Fuel Filter
Transmission Filter

2. LUBRICANTS

Sweeper Truck (Interval twice factory recommendation)
1. Auxiliary Engine Qil 1. Grease
2. Hydraulic Oil (Approximate 25 Gallons Capacity) 2. Engine Qil (every 100 hrs)
After first 2000 hrs & every 2000 hrs thereafter 3. Differential Qil

3. Grease 4. Transmission
4. Coolants 5. Coolants

LABOR OVERHEAD

DEPRECIATION MISCELLANEOUS REPAIRS

FUEL (Flats, Light Bulbs, etc.)

SECTION 3 = MISCELLANEOUS MAINTENANCE SECTION 4 = VARIABLE EXPENSES

NOTE: All Sweeper replacement parts are based on TYMCO list prices.

The above is a projected parts usage list for a TYMCO Model 600 covering four years under normal use. This
document is intended to provide a general projection for planning purposes based on our own experience and
feedback from the field over the years, but should not be interpreted as being totally accurate. The format is
separated into four sections showing, first, the standard parts that are considered to possibly fail over the periods
shown. Secondly, the parts that we consider to be wear items on which monies should be routinely budgeted. The
third section is a statement concerning miscellaneous expenditures related to maintenance and upkeep of the
sweeper. Dollar amounts shown in this section are based on current prices in our locale and will, no doubt, vary in
different parts of the country. A Model 600 mounted on a FC Freightliner Cargo truck with a 5.9 Liter engine was
used to collect this data. The fourth section contains variables such as local labor rates, overhead costs, etc. and
it is mentioned only as a reminder of factors to be considered and no attempt has been made to establish a dollar
figure on it.

In working up a cost proposal on a TYMCO Model 600, it must be taken into account that the first 1000 hours or
one year, whichever comes first, is covered under warranty and non-wear parts failures are provided at no charge
FOB Waco, Texas.

Proper care and operation of the machine play a large role in such projections as does the environment in which it
is used. Negligent operation, cleaning and shoddy maintenance practices have the potential of increasing cost
25% or more over a year's period. In addition, the unnecessary use of the pickup head broom will further add cost.
The figures in this document reflect the acerave use of the broom at approximately 20%.

The environmental aspect that comes into play primarily concerns the type of material and surface that the
sweeper encounters. Constant exposure to sand, chip seal, rotomill and stripe grindings tend to accelerate wear
and, of course, increase cost.

Another major consideration is the number of hours the sweeper is used in a year's time. This projection is based
on 1000-1200 hours of operation per year, and cost can be expected to increase proportionally with the increased
usage beyond that figure.

20f2 TIL-006 / 3/12/2021

53| Page




Stewardship Grant Program Budget Status Update

October 5, 2022

Homeowner Coverage Number of Projects: 17 Funds Allocated
Habitat Restoration and rain
50% Cost Share
garden w/o_ hard surface $15,000 Max 12 $36,800
drainage
Rain garden w/hard surface
. . 75% Cost Share
drainage, pervious pavement, $15,000 Max 4 $48,125
green roof
. 100% Cost Share
Master Water Steward Project $15,000 Max 0 $051
. 100% Cost Share
Shoreland Restoration $15,000 Max 1 $15,000
Commercial, School,
Government, Church, Coverage Number of Projects: 12 Funds Allocated

Associations, etc.

50% Cost Share

Habitat Restoration $15,000 Max 3 $25,500
Shoreland Restoration (below 0
100-year flood elevation 100% Cost Share 1 (Lake Owasso) $160,000
) . $100,000 Max
w/actively eroding banks)
. . 100% Cost Share 5 %
Priority Area Projects $100,000 Max $378,540
- . 75% Cost Share
Non-Priority Area Projects $50,000 Max 1 $50,000
: 50% Cost Share
Public Art $15.000 Max 0 $0
Aquatic Veg Harvest/LVMP 50% Cost Share
Development $15,000 Max 2 $12,430
. 50% Cost Share
Maintenance $5,000 Max for 5 Years 3 $51.375
Consultant Fees $32,766
Total Allocated $810,536
2022 Stewardship Grant Program Budget
Budget $1,000,000
Total Funds Allocated $810,536
Total Available Funds $189,464

*Includes $50,000 enhanced street sweeping request pending approval at the October 5, 2022 board meeting.




*kkhkhkkhkhkkhkhk

Action Items
*kkkkhkkhkhkk



Request for Board Action

Board Meeting Date: October 5, 2022 Agenda Item No: 7A
Preparer: Tina Carstens, Administrator

Item Description: Watershed Excellence Awards Approval.

Background:

Annually, the District seeks out nominations for the Watershed Excellence Awards. This year’s
awards will be held on Tuesday, November 15 at Keller Golf Course. A formal invitation will be
sent.

Nominations were received by staff and then were reviewed by the citizen advisory committee
(CAC) at their September 27" meeting and suggested winners were selected for approval from
the board.

The suggested award winners will be sent ahead of the October board meeting for discussion
and approval.

Applicable District Goal and Action Item:

Goal: Inform and empower communities — The District will inform and empower communities
to become partners in improving and protecting the watershed through their own efforts.

Action Items: Hold events to celebrate community connections and participation, showcase
partner accomplishments, and educate youth, families, and residents about clean water.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Watershed Excellence Award winners.

Financial Implications:
The Watershed Excellence Awards event is included in this year’s budget under education
events.

Board Action Requested:
Recommend and approve the proposed Watershed Excellence Award winners.



KEXKEKEIEKXEIETXAXRXX

New Reports/

Presentations
KAEXKEXKEEIEEEAEAAXXKXKX



District Inspection
Standardization Update

October 5, 2022 — Tyler Olsen



» Standardization of inspection process
for:

—Creek systems
Purpose —Facilities
—Infrastructure

* Prioritization framework for selection
of next year’'s maintenance projects




Methodology

Overview

» Obtain and review previous inspection
data

 Categorize types of facilities
—1.e. BMPs, pipes, outlet structures

 Develop a scoring system for inspections

» Create mobile data collection application
(IPad) with ArcGIS Field Map




Water Quality
Ponds

Creeks

Pipes
(non-tunnel)

Misc. inspection sites
(outlets, weirs,
slopes, filters, etc.




Double Driveway Pond
(Fish Creek)
CATEGORY: POND



Category

Development

- Reviewed several data sets for creating
categories

— Past CIPs
— Current inspection spreadsheet/notes
— GIS files

— Other tools (WQ project prioritization tool,
developed in 2020)

» Created larger categories that encompass all
iInspected infrastructure

* Included “catch-all” categories to help capture
miscellaneous inspections



 For each category, created inspection
items

—1.e. erosion, damage to infrastructure,
Criteria sediment build-up, etc.

Development » Range of criteria developed for each
Inspection item

—Covers a range of conditional assessment

—Based on field experience/input from
RWMWD and Barr staff



Pond Criteria
- Deltas
1. No sediment accumulation below surface
2. Delta formation between 0 and 20 cubic yards
3. Delta formation 20-50 cubic yards
4. Delta formation >50 cubic yards
- Erosion
1. None
2. Small channel under 1 foot wide and/or 4 inches deep
3.  Medium channel, 1-2 feet wide and/or 8 inches deep
4. Large channel, over 2 feet wide and/or 8 inches deep
- Cattail formation
1. None or under 50 square yards
2. Mat between 50 and 200 square yards
3. Mat between 200 and 500 square yards
4. Mat >500 square yards
- Pond storage
1. Recently cleaned out
2. Under 25% full of sediment
3. 25% to 50% full of sediment
4. >50% full of sediment
- Last known survey



» Conditional assessment score for each criteria (1-4)
 Time frame score assigned to each project/location (1-4)
— "How soon does this need to be repaired”

: » Total score is added up for each category/criteria within a
Scoring System project 2 normalized based on number of “components” -

top scorers in list are prioritized for maintenance

*prioritization occurs at a desktop level after field inspections/follow-up is
complete




Pond Scoring

- Deltas score
Delta formation 20-50 cubic yards: 3
Time score: 2 (2-3 year need)

- Erosion score
None: 1
Time score: 1 (No Threat)

- Cattail formation score
None or under 50 square yards: 1
Time score: 1 (No Threat)

- Pond storage score
Under 25% full of sediment: 2
Time score: 2 (2-3 year need)

- Last known survey: 2019

* Risk score: 1 (low risk)



Field Majps/
survey 123
(IPad)

application
development

» Development of a Field Map
(ArcGIS) basemap to be used
for inspections

Map includes points for each piece
of infrastructure inspected

— Drop down menus for each point's category/criteria
— Note taking, attaching photos abilities
— Tracking if infrastructure owned by RWMWD or other entity

Past inspections will be available for each point

Flags for further desktop review

Attach plans and other useful info to each point

Survey123 tied to each inspection point — automatic switching
between apps to collect data



e Live Demo!

Field Majps/
survey 123
(IPad)

application
development




Scoring/

Prioritization

 Raw data downloaded from GIS database

* Microsoft Excel macro to format data and
apply scoring

e List of inspection records sorted and
ranked by score

* “Threshold” score set each year to
determine which sites are evaluated for
maintenance



Scoring/

Prioritization

 Raw data downloaded from GIS database

* Microsoft Excel macro to format data and
apply scoring

e List of inspection records sorted and
ranked by score

* “Threshold” score set each year to
determine which sites are evaluated for
maintenance

— Sites above threshold will be reviewed by
RWMWD/Barr staff



2022 Annual

Inspection

* Test run completed May 2022, minor
updates made to categories/criteria

* Full CIP inspection completed August
2022

* Normalized scores ranged from 1 to
8.5 this year

21 sites reviewed by RWMWD/Barr
staff



* Annual maintenance
— Updates to criteria

—Add/remove sites
Future Updates —Track past years' data

* Review meetings with RWMWD/Barr staff
 Application updates (ESRI)

* Incorporate additional prioritization
metrics (i.e. flood risk)



Technical memorandum

To: Tina Carstens, David Vlasin, and Carrie Magnuson

From: Gabrielle Campagnola, Tyler Olsen, and Brad Lindaman

Subject: District inspection standardization and mobile data collection
Date: September 28, 2022

Project: 23-62/0282.39

c: Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District board of managers

1 Introduction

The Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD) has a long history of maintaining and
improving its owned and operated infrastructure to enable proper function for water quality
improvement, conveyance, and flood risk reduction. Proper maintenance is critical to operating
stormwater infrastructure to ensure public safety as well as increase the longevity of the infrastructure’s
lifecycle. The objective of this work was to standardize the district's facilities (capital improvements)
inspection process and prioritization of capital improvements project maintenance items. To accomplish
this goal, Barr developed an inspection tool that can be used in the field to identify infrastructure or
project sites that should be prioritized for maintenance. In addition, this effort provides more
transparency to the public, improves efficiency of the annual inspection process, and reduces risk

associated with delaying needed maintenance.

Results of this work led to an integrated tool for collecting data in the field and prioritization of
maintenance needs. The integrated tool includes two ArcGIS applications (Field Maps and Survey123),
which enable inspectors to score infrastructure and document notes during annual inspections from an
iPad tablet while in the field. The applications use preset forms and inspection questions to identify
potential failures or defects for different infrastructure types. The integrated tool also includes a scoring
and prioritization spreadsheet, which uses the data collected in the ArcGIS applications to assign scores to
and prioritize identified maintenance needs. This memorandum outlines the methodology used to
develop the integrated tool, the process for using the tool during annual inspections, a summary of the
2022 annual inspection, and future recommendations.

2 Methodology
2.1 Review previous inspection data and process

At the beginning of tool development, Barr participated in the RWMWD's 2021 capital improvement
program (CIP) annual inspection over the course of three days to better understand what data is collected
in the field. We then reviewed the CIP inspection notes from the past three years to understand the types
of projects that were selected for maintenance and what criteria triggered a need for maintenance. Barr
also reviewed the CIP Maintenance Inspection Sites and the RWMWD Stormwater Infrastructure GIS files to

understand all the types of infrastructure that are inspected and owned in the district. Finally, we reviewed

Barr Engineering Co. 4300 MarketPointe Drive, Suite 200, Minneapolis, MN 55435 952.832.2600 www.barr.com




To: Tina Carstens, David Vlasin, and Carrie Magnuson

From: Gabrielle Campagnola, Tyler Olsen, and Brad Lindaman
Subject: District inspection standardization and mobile data collection
Date: September 28, 2022

Page: 2

other prioritization methodologies from the district (i.e., water quality project prioritization tool) as well as
other sources (other watershed districts, municipalities, and national associations) to develop a framework
for the tool.

2.2 Categorize types of inspections

The next step in developing the inspection tool was to categorize all infrastructure that is inspected and
maintained in the RWMWD. Barr used the previously described sources to create categories that include
pipes and culverts, infiltration basins, engineered filtration systems, and more. In total, 14 infrastructure
categories were developed. In addition, an “other” category was added to capture all infrastructure that
does not fit well into the 14 developed categories. Specific scoring criteria were developed for the 14
categories (see section 2.3). The “other” category does not include a scoring system due to the varied

nature of these systems.

2.3 Develop scoring system

To evaluate the data collected in the annual CIP inspections, a conditional assessment scoring system was
developed for the categories described in section 2.2. Each category of infrastructure includes multiple
conditional assessment criteria based on the components of the system and the types of defects or
failures that may be encountered in the field. For example, ponds are inspected for deltas, erosion, cattail
formation, and loss of pond storage. To maintain consistency across various infrastructure categories in
the tool, each conditional assessment criteria is assigned a score ranging from 1 to 4, where 1 represents
a minimal maintenance need and a 4 represents a significant maintenance need. For example, a pond
delta that is assigned a score of 1 represents no sediment accumulation below the pond surface, while a
score of 4 represents a delta formation that is greater than 50 cubic yards or 50 percent of the pond

surface area.

In addition to the conditional assessment score, a score representing the immediacy of the maintenance
need is assigned to each conditional criteria to represent how soon the estimated maintenance will be
needed prior to the system failing. This score is nicknamed the "time frame score.” Similar to the
conditional assessment score, the time frame score will be a value of 1 through 4. A time frame score of 1
represents no immediate maintenance need or threat (within the next three years), while a score of 4
indicates that maintenance must be completed within a year.

2.4 Develop GIS application

Using the inspection categories and scoring systems, Barr created a GIS-based field inspection integrated
application that incorporates this information into a user-friendly form for inspectors to fill out in the field.
A GIS SQL server database was first developed for seamless integration with web- and mobile-based
inspection applications such as ArcGIS Online, Field Maps, and Survey123. Various GIS layers provided by
the district, such as CIP locations, were migrated into the database, and the scoring system developed by

Barr was incorporated into the mobile inspection system.



To: Tina Carstens, David Vlasin, and Carrie Magnuson

From: Gabrielle Campagnola, Tyler Olsen, and Brad Lindaman
Subject: District inspection standardization and mobile data collection
Date: September 28, 2022

Page: 3

Following GIS database and desktop mapping, an online mapping service was published to render the GIS
layers and scoring system available via web and mobile platforms. ArcGIS Enterprise was utilized to
facilitate web publishing, and the resulting map and feature service layers were migrated to ArcGIS Online
for secure sharing with Barr and the RWMWD.

During initial phases of the scoring system design, Barr determined that an integrated application
involving ArcGIS Field Maps and Survey123 would provide the best possible experience for field
inspection staff while also meeting the needs of the underlying scoring system. An ArcGIS Online
basemap was created with relevant map service layers for viewing and reference in the field. This basemap
was then configured for mobile consumption via the ArcGIS Field Maps application. With Field Maps, staff
were able to view map layers, navigate to specific locations, and evaluate basic information about each

CIP inspection site.

To facilitate CIP inspections, a hyperlink was made available within each CIP location pop-up window in
the Field Maps application. This hyperlink was established to guide staff to a customized CIP inspection
form in the Survey123 application. In Survey123, conditional questions and dropdown lists were designed
to appear in the form based on the applicable infrastructure category, with the goal of providing as
streamlined an experience as possible while standardizing data collection methods for scoring. All forms
and data submitted from Survey123 were made available in real time within the GIS database for
additional post-processing, scoring, and photo log development.

3 Inspection tool processes

The following sections describe the methodology for collecting an inspection record, scoring the site, and
prioritizing maintenance needs.

3.1 Field inspection tools process

To start the field inspection process, the inspector will open Field Maps and view the prepopulated CIP
inspection locations with their status. The CIP locations will show a status of “inspection required,”
"inspection complete,” or “follow-up inspection required.” The CIP inspection status will help inspectors

visually track inspection progress and remaining required inspections.

Once an inspector navigates to the location of the CIP infrastructure, the inspector can view information
about the inspection site, such as feature, subwatershed, nearby infrastructure, etc. To launch the
inspection form, the inspector will select the hyperlink in the Field Maps application to open Survey123.
The first item in the inspection form is the category of the inspection feature. These categories are
prepopulated based on the RWMWD-maintained CIP location database, but the category can be changed
as needed in the field. Once the category is selected, the inspector will input the conditional assessment
and time frame scores and add notes as needed. Figure 1 provides an example of what this form looks

like in Survey123.



To: Tina Carstens, David Vlasin, and Carrie Magnuson

From: Gabrielle Campagnola, Tyler Olsen, and Brad Lindaman
Subject: District inspection standardization and mobile data collection
Date: September 28, 2022

Page: 4

Figure 1: A screenshot of a section of the pond inspection template from Survey123

Once all the criteria are scored and entered into the application, the inspector will be prompted with four
more entry fields, as seen in figure 2. At the end of each inspection, the inspector should first answer if the
RWMWD owns the infrastructure; while inspectors are in the field, they may notice maintenance needs for
infrastructure not owned by the district. The inspection tool allows inspectors to add a new feature, score
the feature, and identify that the feature is not RWMWD-owned. Once the inspection is complete, the

district can send inspection results to the owner of the infrastructure.

Secondly, the inspector will be prompted to note whether the infrastructure should be flagged for further
review. Infrastructure marked for further review will be automatically evaluated for CIP maintenance the
following year, regardless of how the inspected feature scores in the inspection prioritization tool—
allowing for further desktop review after the inspection is completed and for additional QA/QC if a
determination cannot be made in the field.

The third prompt is inspection notes, which can be used to indicate the overall site condition,
environmental factors, or anything not disclosed in the criteria scoring notes. The final prompt is to
submit photos of the infrastructure. Photos can be used to document issues and can be referenced in
future years during inspections.



To: Tina Carstens, David Vlasin, and Carrie Magnuson

From: Gabrielle Campagnola, Tyler Olsen, and Brad Lindaman
Subject: District inspection standardization and mobile data collection
Date: September 28, 2022

Page: 5

Figure 2: Four prompts for the inspector at the end of each inspection

3.2 Prioritization process

Following field CIP inspections, the data is compiled from the back end of the GIS database and
downloaded for scoring and prioritization. The data is downloaded in a large database format and
requires scripting in Microsoft Excel to automate the process of formatting the data from its raw form to a
useful format for scoring.

Once the data is formatted, the scoring process is applied to the inspection records collected in the field.
The process multiplies the conditional assessment score by the time frame score to calculate a total score.
This total score is then normalized (divided) by the number of records collected for each site. Using this
system, the normalized scores can range from 1 to 16. A score of 1 indicates that the inspector did not
find any structural defects or maintenance needs, nor were any needs time sensitive for addressing. A
score of 16 indicates that the inspector found significant structural defects and that maintenance/repairs
need to be made as soon as possible.

3.3 Determining maintenance priorities

Once the data is compiled and scored, projects can be identified for CIP maintenance the following year.
As a first step in determining maintenance priorities, Barr recommends reviewing all sites that were
flagged for further review. The second step is to compile the normalized scores for infrastructure and sort
them from highest to lowest. Depending on the year, the range of scores for the inspected infrastructure
may vary. Therefore, it is recommended that a threshold score be set each year and that sites that rank

above the threshold be reviewed for inclusion in the CIP.



To: Tina Carstens, David Vlasin, and Carrie Magnuson

From: Gabrielle Campagnola, Tyler Olsen, and Brad Lindaman
Subject: District inspection standardization and mobile data collection
Date: September 28, 2022

Page: 6

One benefit of the GIS application is that it can produce a one-page summary, as seen in appendix A.
Each summary includes scoring results from the inspection, whether a site was flagged for review,
inspection notes, and images, and the summaries can be reviewed by inspection staff to determine which

sites should be on the following year’s CIP maintenance schedule.

4 Field collection 2022

Following completion of the integrated tools and process definitions in spring 2022, a field verification of
the integrated tool test was conducted. In May 2022, four Barr and RWMWD staff members visited nine
test sites that were recommended by either the RWMWD managers, district staff, or Barr. The goal of the
small field test was to collect inspection records for the different sites to test the tool’s variability and to
identify any needed improvements. After the field verification test was conducted, Barr processed the data

and determined that the tool functioned as intended.

In August 2022, the same four staff members completed the full annual CIP inspection using the
inspection tool. The 2022 CIP inspection took course over three and a half days and was overall successful.

After, the data was downloaded and processed.

Normalized scores for the 2022 CIP inspection ranged from 1 to 8.5. A threshold score of 2 was chosen,
and Barr and the RWMWD would review any inspected item that scored over a 2. Eleven inspected items
scored over a 2, and 19 were flagged for review. Multiple inspected features both scored over a 2 and
were flagged for review, so the total list of features to be reviewed was 21. One-page summaries were
created to help compare and evaluate the 21 identified sites, which Barr and RWMWD are currently
reviewing for inclusion in the CIP. Additionally, a few non-district sites were identified as needing

maintenance. The results of these inspections will be sent to the respective owners.
The one-page summaries for the 2022 inspections are included in appendix A.

5 Future recommendations

Barr suggests that the RWMWD budget for annual maintenance of this tool to keep it up to date and
incorporate improvements. These updates may include integrating new infrastructure into the database,
removing infrastructure from the database, and tracking maintenance needs identified in the previous
year. Additionally, improvements to the tool may be identified in the annual CIP inspection process and
should be incorporated prior to the start of the next inspection. These improvements may include refining
the tool to confirm that inspector bias is reduced, and that the scoring system is consistent regardless of
the individual inspector using the tool. Potential changes could include updates to categories, scoring,
one-page summaries, etc. Once annual inspections are complete and CIP projects are selected for the
following year, we recommend holding working meetings between Barr and the RWMWD to determine
any tool maintenance needs. The number of necessary changes from year to year is predicted to decrease

as the tool is used.



Unique ID: CIP-0164-A
Site ID: 164
Section: PFS Basins
Name: PFS Basin East
Z Inspection Date: 8/17/2022 11:57:00 AM
% Inspector Name: Vlasin

%6} Category: Infiltration surfaces

© Sediment Accumulation Ranking Description: 3. 1-2 inches

Sediment Accumulation Ranking Value: 3
Sediment Accumulation Time Frame Value: 3
Sediment Accumulation Notes:
CIP-0164-A Mounding Beneath the Surface Ranking Description: 3. 1-2 inches
Mounding Beneath the Surface Ranking Value: 3
Mounding Beneath the Surface Time Frame Value: 3
Mounding Beneath the Surface Notes:
Structural Damage Ranking Description: 1. 0-10 pavers out of place, or 0-10
cracked pavers

Structural Damage Ranking Value: 1
Structural Damage Time Frame Value: 1

Structural Damage Notes:
Last Known Survey Notes:

< &
Q I I Sttt bt
‘ee‘\ B . .
e - K District Owned: Yes
% Flag for Further Review: Yes
7?% Inspection Notes: Clean pavers just like every year ... clean/replace outlet rock
& as well
° Total Score: 19
Normalized Score: 6.333333333
@ Inspection Indicator
O Inspection Location

D RWMWD Boundary

0 100 200
| N
Feet

Ranking Value (1 - 4): 1 = good condition, 4 = needs attention/repair
Time Frame Value (1 - 4): 1 = no immediate repair needed or repair is not time sensitive,
4 = immediate repair needed

Image Source: Met Council (2020)

INFILTRATION SURFACES
INSPECTION SUMMARY - 2022
Ramsey-Washington Metro

Watershed District
UNIQUE ID: CIP-0164-A

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.8.1, 2022-08-31 23:07 File: I\Client\Ramsey_Washington_Metro_WD\Work_Orders\CIP_Maint_and_Repairs\Inspection_Maintenance_Standardization\Maps\Reports\Inspection_Forms_2022\CIP Inspections 2022 - Infiltration Surfaces.mxd User: JIL2



Unique ID: CIP-2002-F

Site ID:

Section: Battle Creek, Upper/Lower Ravine

Name: Lower Afton Rd Drainageway at Winthrop; Basin and Rock Channel

Inspection Date: 8/17/2022 1:44:00 PM

Inspector Name: Vlasin

Category: Ponds

Delta Ranking Description: 4. Delta formation over 50 cubic yards
Delta Ranking Value: 4

Delta Time Frame Value: 4

Delta Notes:

Erosion Ranking Description: 1. None

Erosion Ranking Value: 1

Erosion Time Frame Value: 1

Erosion Notes:

Cattail Ranking Description: 1. None or under 50 square yard area
Cattail Ranking Value: 1

Cattail Time Frame Value: 1

Cattail Notes:

Pond Storage Ranking Description: 4. Over 50% full of sediment
Pond Storage Ranking Value: 4

Pond Storage Time Frame Value: 4

Pond Storage Notes: Needs to be cleaned

Last Known Survey Notes:

S Winthrop St

CIP-2002-F

E Lower Afton Rd

Morningsige Cir

(o
/70?/7
(0

District Owned: Yes

Flag for Further Review: Yes

Inspection Notes: Adding a “pool 2" in 2923 cip
Total Score: 34

Normalized Score: 8.5

@ Inspection Indicator

O Inspection Location

D RWMWD Boundary

Feet

Image Source: Met Council (2020)

PONDS
INSPECTION SUMMARY - 2022

Ranking Value (1 - 4): 1 = good condition, 4 = needs attention/repair
Time Frame Value (1 - 4): 1 = no immediate repair needed or repair is not time sensitive,
4 = immediate repair needed

Ramsey-Washington Metro

Watershed District
UNIQUE ID: CIP-2002-F

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.8.1, 2022-08-31 19:08 File: I\Client\Ramsey_Washington_Metro_WD\Work_Orders\CIP_Maint_and_Repairs\Inspection_Maintenance_Standardization\Maps\Reports\Inspection_Forms_2022\CIP Inspections 2022 - Ponds.mxd User: JJL2



Unique ID: CIP-0012-G

Site ID: 12

Section: Gervais Creek

Name: Gervais Mill Pond, steep slope repair by watertower

Inspection Date: 8/12/2022 1:57:00 PM

Inspector Name: Vlasin

Category: Turf reinforcement mat

Vegetation Establishment Ranking Description: 4. Under 50%

Vegetation Establishment Ranking Value: 4

Vegetation Establishment Time Frame Value: 3

Vegetation Establishment Notes:

%, CIP-0012-G Proper Location Ranking Description: 1. Properly installed/functioning
Proper Location Ranking Value: 1

Proper Location Time Frame Value: 1

Proper Location Notes:

Last Known Survey Notes:

Edgerton St

9

Keller PKWY

District Owned: Yes

Flag for Further Review: Yes

Inspection Notes: Some erosion under TRM. Pipe visible about 1/4 way down.
Should repair add soil .... Complete redo?

Total Score: 13

Normalized Score: 6.5

[~ )

Schletty Dr

Little Canada Rd g

@ Inspection Indicator
—
o4

O Inspection Location

D RWMWD Boundary

CIP-0012-G

0 200 400 -
| N
Feet

d

Ranking Value (1 - 4): 1 = good condition, 4 = needs attention/repair
Time Frame Value (1 - 4): 1 = no immediate repair needed or repair is not time sensitive,
4 = immediate repair needed

Image Source: Met Council (2020)

TURF REINFORCEMENT MATS
INSPECTION SUMMARY - 2022
Ramsey-Washington Metro

Watershed District
UNIQUE ID: CIP-0012-G

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.8.1, 2022-08-31 23:35 File: I\Client\Ramsey_Washington_Metro_WD\Work_Orders\CIP_Maint_and_Repairs\Inspection_Maintenance_Standardization\Maps\Reports\Inspection_Forms_2022\CIP Inspections 2022 - TRM.mxd User: JJL2



Unique ID: CIP-0170-B.2

Site ID:

Section: Tanners Lake

Name: 5th Street Wetland Weirs - west

Inspection Date: 8/15/2022 1:38:00 PM

Inspector Name: Vlasin

Category: Weir

Structural Damage Ranking Description: 1. 0-3 cracks, bends, or dings on
structure

Structural Damage Ranking Value: 1

Structural Damage Time Frame Value: 1

Structural Damage Notes:

Blockages Ranking Description: 3. 26-50% of slots in permeable weir or weir
structure

Blockages Ranking Value: 3

Blockages Time Frame Value: 2

Blockages Notes:

Last Known Survey Notes:

District Owned: Yes
Flag for Further Review: Yes

Inspection Notes: Clean upstream side of downstream weir— sed is 18inches

below top of weir in pool 2. maybe remove 50yard?

Total Score: 7

Normalized Score: 3.5

WEIRS
INSPECTION SUMMARY - 2022
Ramsey-Washington Metro

Watershed District
UNIQUE ID: CIP-0170-B.2

z
Q
>
<
£
3
e
o
o
9
z 6th St N
[ z
2 ¢
z <
[ [=
2 S
o =
S ©
9 G}
> b}
4
< CIP-0170-B.2
S
I
o)
o
K]
G}
5th St N
Glenbrook Ct N
@ Inspection Indicator
O Inspection Location
D RWMWD Boundary
0 200 400
BB
Feet
Image Source: Met Council (2020)

Ranking Value (1 - 4): 1 = good condition, 4 = needs attention/repair
Time Frame Value (1 - 4): 1 = no immediate repair needed or repair is not time sensitive,
4 = immediate repair needed

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.8.1, 2022-08-31 23:52 File: I\Client\Ramsey_Washington_Metro_WD\Work_Orders\CIP_Maint_and_Repairs\Inspection_Maintenance_Standardization\Maps\Reports\Inspection_Forms_2022\CIP Inspections 2022 - Weirs.mxd User: JIL2




Project Work Plan
Date: September 21, 2022

Project: Target Stormwater Retrofits - Woodbury / 236214XX.00

Project Team

District Staff: ~ Paige Ahlborg
Barr Staff: Erin Anderson Wenz, Katie Turpin-Nagel, Gareth Becker, Tyler Olsen, Marcy Bean

Barr Team Roles

Principal-in-charge Erin Andersen Wenz

Project Management: Katie Turpin-Nagel

Design Engineers: Katie Turpin-Nagel, Tyler Olsen
Design Technician: Gareth Becker

Landscape Architecture: Marcy Bean

Communications: Katie Turpin-Nagel

District Staff
Project Manager: Paige Ahlborg

Target Corp. Staff

Stormwater Program Manager: Dan Latham

Scope of Work

The first phase of this project consists of developing concept designs for stormwater retrofit projects at
the Target retail location at Valley Creek Plaza in Woodbury, MN. The stormwater retrofits may alter the
surface parking layout of the existing parcels owned by Target (e.g., removal of approved number of
parking spaces approved by Target) and may utilize existing open space for surface projects and
underground treatment systems. The approximate area that will be assessed for the incorporation of
stormwater retrofits is approximately 6.5 acres of parking lot and open green space. Treatment systems
will be designed and selected to be economical, similar to those selected by private developers in the
district. The deliverables for Phase 1 of the project will be conceptual plans and planning level opinions of
cost. After Phase 1 is complete, Barr will present the concept design and planning level opinion of cost to

the RWMWD managers for their review and approval to continue to Phase 2 of the project.

Barr Engineering Co. 4300 MarketPointe Drive, Suite 200, Minneapolis, MN 55435 952.832.2600 www.barr.com




To: Error! Reference source not found.Page: 2

Phase 2 of this project will proceed after Board approval and will consist of preparing final plans,
specifications, and an engineer’'s opinion of cost, conducting project bidding, and assisting with
construction observation. Phase 2 deliverables will consist of final plans and specifications, presentation of
bids, weekly construction updates, and submittal of monthly payment applications during active

construction. Construction will not begin until spring 2024 at the earliest.

Budget

Barr will complete Phase 1 of the work outlined above and below on a time and expense basis, for an
estimated $46,900. At the same time the Phase 1 tasks are presented to the Board, Barr will provide an
estimated budget for Phase 2 for Board approval.

Schedule

We propose the following schedule, milestones and deliverables.
Phase 1 Tasks:

Task 1 (November 2022): Topographic Survey. A topographic survey will be conducted to establish
existing grades and elevations and locations of existing infrastructure and utilities. The survey will be
conducted using a total station and/or survey grade GPS with horizontal and vertical accuracy of +/-
0.2 feet.

Task 2 (October - January 2022): Conceptual Designs. Conceptual design options will be

developed and presented to district staff, the board of managers, and Target representatives.

Task 3 (January 2022): Soil Borings. Soil borings will be done at prospective BMP locations to
evaluate infiltration capacity of the existing soils. Soil borings will need to be scheduled outside of the
busy holiday shopping season. Soil borings could be scheduled as early as January 2023, if Target
approves the temporary bituminous patching technique applied by a geotechnical subcontractor

(needed for patching pavement during cold weather conditions).
Phase 2 Tasks:

Task 1 (TBD based on Phase 1 approval): Engineering and Design. All contract documents and
bidding documents will be completed. This task includes all hydrologic and hydraulic modeling and
calculations, design development, and opinion of probable construction costs. Intermediate
milestones will include 50% and 90% design review and 100% design approval from RWMWD Board.

Task 2 (TBD based on Phase 1 approval): Project Bidding. The project will be publicly bid and a
contractor will be recommended to the board.

Task 3 (TBD based on Phase 1 approval): Construction Observation. Construction oversight and

administration will be provided during construction of the project.



To: Error! Reference source not found.Page: 3

Project Tracking - Project Milestones

Milestone

Estimated Completion
Date

Actual Completion
Date

Design Team Kickoff October 2022
Topographic Survey Completed November 2022
Conceptual Designs Completed December 2022
Conceptual Design Wrap-up Meeting with Target January 2022

50% Draft Plans (Internal)

90% Draft Plans and Specifications (Internal)

90% Plans, Specs, Cost Estimate for Target and District Review

90% Comments Due from Target and District

100% Plans and Cost Estimate for Board Approval

Public Bid Release

Bids Received

Contractor Recommendation to Board

Notice to Proceed

Construction Substantial Completion/Plant Establishment Period
Begins

Plant Establishment Period Ends

Soil Borings Completed January 2022

Phase 2 timeline to be
determined pending
Phase 1 approval

Phase 1 Budget Tracking (Engineering)

Project Objectives Estimated Budget* Spent to Date
Task 1: Topographic Survey $16,500
Task 2: Conceptual Design $20,000
Task 3: Soil Borings $10,400
Total $46,900

*Barr budget only- these totals do not include RWMWD project budgets.

Phase 2 Budget Tracking (Engineering)

Project Objectives

Estimated Budget*

Spent to Date

Task 1: Engineering and Design

Task 2: Project Bidding

Phase 2 budget to
be determined

Task 3: Construction Observation

pending Phase 1

Total

approval

*Barr budget only- these totals do not include construction or RWMWD project budgets.




To: Error! Reference source not found.Page: 4

Monthly Updates

$0.00

(0%)

Project Budget Tracking (2023 Construction - Contractor)

Original Bid (from Contractor)

Final Contract Price

Partial Payment Tracking (2023 Construction — Contractor)

Payment Application #1 (Date)

Payment Application #2 (Date)

Payment Application #3 (Date)

Total Paid to Date




*kkhkkhkkkhkkhkhk

Administrator’s
Report

AKEXKEKEIEKXEIEIETXAXRXX



MEMO

TO: Board of Managers and Staff

FROM: Tina Carstens, Administrator

SUBJECT: September Administrator's Report
DATE: September 29, 2022

A. Meetings Attended

Wednesday, September 7 11:30 AM MAWD Events Committee Meeting
6:30 PM Board Meeting
Thursday, September 8 2:00 PM Purple Line BRT Project
Monday, September 12 11:30 AM Pioneer Park Project Meeting
Tuesday, September 13 1:00 PM MCWD Land Management Meeting
4:00 PM Prior Lake-Spring Lake WD Meeting for MAWD
Wednesday, September 14 9:00 AM MAWA Executive Committee
Thursday, September 22 8:00 AM Hodgson Road Project Update
Monday, September 26 8:00 AM MAWD Board Meeting
Wednesday, September 28 3:00 PM Purple Line BRT Meeting

B. Upcoming Meetings and Dates

Water Resources Conference October 18-19, 2022

November Board Meeting November 2, 2022

Watershed Excellence Awards Tuesday, November 15, 2022

MAWD Annual Meeting Thursday, Dec 1, 2022 — Saturday, Dec 3, 2022
December Board Meeting December 7, 2022

C. Ongoing Project Update
Land Acquisition and Use Policy — | have met with the administrator and staff of Minnehaha
Creek Watershed District to discuss their policies and implementation around land
acquisition and use. And | have collected some other information from watersheds around
the state. | am finding there are various policies relating to land acquisition for project
implementation vs. for flood protection vs. for open space preservation. | will be compiling
the information collected and share with the board next month.



August 2022 Administrator’s Report
Page 2

Ponds of Battle Creek — | have connected with the Ramsey County staff person in Property
Management that is responsible for this property. We had a meeting scheduled that had be
to be rescheduled when | was sick. | hope to be able to update you at the meeting.

West Vadnais Lake Boundary Change — information on the suggested boundary has been
sent to VLAWMO for review. Once approval notification is received, | will move forward
with the next steps. | would anticipate that approval coming in the next week.

D. WEFTEC Conference
Next week, Monday-Wednesday, | will be attending the WEFTEC conference in New
Orleans, LA. | have attended this conference twice in the past. This conference pulls
together water professionals from around the world and has a great format that is
interactive and brings forward results and solutions. There are various concurrent session
tracks that focus on stormwater management, flood risk, water quality, watershed
management, and future issues. At the November meeting, | will give some highlights to the
board of my time at the conference and how it relates to our work here.



*kkhkkhkkkhkkhkhk

Project and
Program
Status Reports

AKEXKEKEIEKXEILETXALRXX



Memorandum

To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report — September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022

Note: The location, brief description, and current status of each project described below can
be found on the 2022 RWMWND engineering services story map.

Project feasibility studies

A. Interim emergency response planning for district areas at risk of flooding (Barr project
manager: Gareth Becker; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this project is to provide information and guidance to cities throughout the district about
how to protect low-lying habitable structures from flooding during the 100-year storm event. These
emergency response plans address areas for which there is 1) not currently a feasible project that has
been identified to protect structures or 2) a project that cannot be implemented in the near future due to
logistical and/or budgeting reasons. This effort is an outcome of the Beltline resiliency study. This project
will extend into 2022.

This month and through the fall, Barr is creating plan sheets for placing emergency flood risk mitigation
measures. We anticipate completing the plans this winter and working directly with city representatives
to communicate the plans to potentially impacted individuals and answer questions about
implementation.

B. Kohlman Creek flood risk reduction feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon
Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk
along Kohlman Creek to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination
with the cities of Maplewood and North Saint Paul, evaluation of alternatives to reduce flood risk,
preparation of cost estimates for each alternative, and identification of permitting requirements. This
project focused primarily on areas surrounding PCU Pond and the wetland complex west of White Bear
Avenue. This feasibility study is a follow-up study of flood-prone areas identified in the Beltline resiliency
study.

The Kohlman Creek flood risk reduction feasibility study will focus on concept development of the types
of system improvements near PCU Pond that the city would support and that would complement North
Saint Paul’s other ongoing studies. This study is being conducted in parallel with the Kohlman
Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion study (upstream of PCU Pond and the North Saint Paul Urban Ecology
Center), so system modifications around PCU Pond will not be further developed until next year when
the Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion concept is better defined and resulting design flows are
determined.


https://maps.barr.com/RWMWD/BoardMeeting_Updates/StoryMapJournal2022/index.html

To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 2

Last month, Barr provided the district’s stormwater model to the City of North Saint Paul for reference
in the city’s flood risk reduction study. After learning about the city’s planned approach for flood risk
mitigation in these areas and better understanding the change in peak flow rates following the Kohlman
Creek-Wakefield Lake diversion study, Barr will begin evaluating potential flood risk mitigation options
for PCU Pond and the wetland complex west of White Bear Avenue.

Next month and through the end of the year, Barr will continue working with the city to identify flood
risk reduction opportunities that accomplish both RWMWD and city goals and objectives.

C. Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon
Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk on
Kohlman Creek by diverting high flows to the historic County Ditch 17. Work includes coordination with
stakeholders, evaluation of alternatives to reduce flood risk, preparation of cost estimates for each
alternative, and identification of permitting requirements. This feasibility study is a follow-up study of a
flood-prone area identified in the Beltline resiliency study.

This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with Ramsey County and the county’s contractor to review the
proposed locations and sizes of potential flood storage basins in Goodrich Golf Course. The county
indicated that, in general, three of the four basins could be feasible but that the proposed basin along
hole 15 would impact pace of play and difficulty of the hole. The county requested that the basin be
modified and asked whether increasing the existing irrigation pond would offset reductions in size to the
hole 15 pond.

Following the meeting, Barr began evaluating how Ramsey County’s comments impacted the size of the
diversion and downstream peak water levels. On October 7, the county will review other changes within
Goodrich Golf Course (not associated with this project). We agreed to meet again in October to discuss
how the county’s initial comments as well as new information the county receives on October 7 may
impact the basin size.

Barr had planned a design charet with stakeholders for this fall. While we will still reconvene the
stakeholder group, discussions with the county are guiding modifications to basin size and location.

Next month, Barr anticipates collecting additional survey information needed for the feasibility
evaluation of system improvements. We also expect to start reviewing the water quality monitoring
data that the RWMWD collected this summer. Water quality information will inform whether additional
treatment is required before diverting stormwater from Kohlman Creek into Wakefield Lake. We will
continue evaluating and refining alternatives through the winter. The feasibility study is scheduled to
continue through summer 2023.

D. County Ditch 17 improvements feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes;
RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk
northeast of Wakefield Lake along historic County Ditch 17 to remove structures from the 100-year
floodplain. Work includes coordination with the City of Maplewood, evaluation of alternatives to reduce
flood risk, preparation of cost estimates for each alternative, and identification of permitting



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 3

requirements. This feasibility study is a follow-up study of a flood-prone area identified in the Beltline
resiliency study.

This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with the City of Maplewood to review potential system
modifications to reduce flood risk along County Ditch 17. The city requested that the RWMWD evaluate
an alternative that does not include impacts to Frost Avenue, as it was recently reconstructed. An
additional alternative, which includes modifications to the outlet structure north of Frost Avenue and
either site-specific modifications or emergency response plans, will be considered for this location in
addition to system modifications that include changes to the storm sewer system between Frost Avenue
and Wakefield Lake.

After the meeting, Barr began preparing a memorandum to document the methodology, alternatives for
system modifications for flood risk reduction, and opinions of probable construction cost. Later this
month, we will share a draft memorandum with the RWMWD and the city to confirm that
recommended system modifications would have stakeholder support. Following review, Barr will revise
the memorandum and will provide an updated version to the RWMWD managers later this fall.

E. Phalen Village feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project
manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near
Phalen Village north of Lake Phalen to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes
coordination with the City of Maplewood, evaluation of alternatives to reduce flood risk, preparation of
cost estimates for each alternative, and identification of permitting requirements. This feasibility study is
a follow-up study of a flood-prone area identified in the Beltline resiliency study.

This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with the City of Maplewood to solicit input on potential system
modifications. The city suggested evaluating two additional modifications to the storm sewer system,
noting that the planned street improvement project for this area includes a complete reconstruction of
the road, presenting an opportunity to include a larger modification to the storm sewer system.
Following the meeting, Barr completed hydraulic evaluation of the additional two alternatives and
began preparing a memorandum that summarizes the methodology, potential system modifications,
and opinion of construction costs for each alternative.

Next month, we anticipate sharing the draft memorandum with the RWMWD and the City of
Maplewood. We will request comments on the summary and confirm that the city would support
system modifications. The Phalen Village feasibility study will extend through the fall.

F. Ames Lake area flood risk reduction planning study (Barr project manager: Brandon
Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose is to complete a planning-level evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near Ames
Lake, supported by the City of Saint Paul. Work includes coordination discussions with Saint Paul; review
of potential pipe alignments, land acquisition costs, utility conflicts, and permitting issues; and related
design. If the planning study identifies projects that impact regional drainage, a feasibility study will be
completed in 2023. This planning study is a follow-up study that was identified in the Beltline resiliency
study.

This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with the Saint Paul Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA)
about potentially using vacant parcels near Ames Lake for flood risk reduction best management
practices (BMPs). Specifically, two HRA-owned parcels south of Ames Lake are primarily located within



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 4

the 100-year floodplain. As a follow-up to conversations with the Saint Paul Water Resources Working
Group (WRWG) last month, Barr, the RWMWD, and the HRA discussed the possibility of using these
parcels for flood mitigation infrastructure such as ponds or basins that would provide regional flood risk
reduction for the surrounding area. The HRA is currently reviewing the concepts and will determine in
October whether further evaluation of conceptual flood risk reductions is desired for this site.

Barr and the RWMWD met with Saint Paul Parks about expanding a planned water quality basin in
Sackett Park, which would also provide some flood risk reduction for the surrounding area. Construction
of the basin is awaiting MPCA notification of a grant application that the city submitted. Saint Paul Parks
indicated that the proposed footprint of the basin has been maximized given planned programming
needs for the park, so further expansion is not feasible at this time. This discussion also resulted from
conversations with the WRWG last month.

Finally, Barr and the RWMWD met with the City of Saint Paul to review our understanding of existing
opportunities for flood risk reduction near Ames Lake. Based on input from the WRWG, we grouped
locations by the potential for city support. Locations where support is likely were identified based on
positive feedback from the WRWG and alignment with other city projects and goals. Areas categorized
as “unknown” are locations where the city would potentially support a project, but the support is
contingent on others’ approval and stakeholder coordination. Finally, areas identified as “not likely” are
locations where WRWG members identified a conflict or other city plans that would prevent system
modifications. Last month, Barr shared a figure showing site locations and corresponding classifications
(based on WRWG comments) with the city. This month, we discussed the classifications with city staff,
who confirmed that our general characterization of vacant parcels was consistent with the city’s
understanding of opportunities within the watershed. Many of the sites have constraints (such as
planned future uses) or impacts (such has upland impacts to existing trees) that will require further
evaluation in the form of a site-specific feasibility study prior to final design of system modifications.

This planning-level study will extend through the fall. The next step is to prepare a memorandum
summarizing stakeholder coordination and possible opportunities for flood risk reduction projects near
Ames Lake. If a potential site is identified, a detailed feasibility study for a specific site would be
completed in 2023. We anticipate preparing the memorandum later this fall following additional
discussions with the HRA about opportunities and future uses of vacant parcels near Ames Lake.

G. Owasso Basin area/North Star Estates improvements (Barr project manager: Sam
Redinger; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the benefit-cost of flood risk reduction strategies in the Owasso
Basin/North Star Estates area by reviewing potential pipe and berm alignments, land acquisition costs,
utility conflicts, permitting issues, and related design as well as construction and long-term maintenance
costs associated with each alternative that achieves the project objective of removing habitable
structures from the floodplain in this area. Stakeholder outreach with the City of Little Canada is an
important part of this effort. This study is a continuation of the Owasso Basin bypass study, which laid
out several phases of implementation and areas of further study.

This period, Barr finished evaluating alternatives for flood risk reduction in and around North Star
Estates and Owasso Basin. We are currently drafting a technical memorandum to summarize the
findings and provide recommendations for the district and board of managers to consider. Barr will
share the technical memorandum first with RWMWD staff for review and comment, followed by the
City of Little Canada, and then distribute to the board at the November meeting.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 5

H. Double Driveway Pond optimization study (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD
project manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the benefit-cost of water quality improvements in Double
Driveway Pond in the Fish Creek subwatershed. These improvements will be targeted at sediment
reduction strategies that will benefit downstream Fish Creek, which is considered impaired by excess
sediment. An important part of this study is tying strategies to the findings of a current Department of
Agriculture study (currently under review) that is assessing the water quality of runoff from upstream
areas.

This study saw no new activity. Barr will continue monitoring any remediation action outlined by the
MDA and look for opportunities to partner to address total maximum daily load (TMDL) issues in
downstream Fish Creek. We expect to hear details of the MDA’s work before the end of the year. The
next report to the managers will likely be in December.

I. Carver Ponds improvements study (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project
manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this study is to characterize the water quality in the Carver Ponds in the Fish Creek
subwatershed and to evaluate the benefit-cost of water quality improvements to the ponds. These
improvements will be targeted at internal loading of nutrients in the pond, as well as potential external
sediment and nutrient loading. The goal will be to inform design solutions to be implemented in the
ponds.

Barr completed one water quality sampling event in August and sent the samples to Pace Analytical for
testing. A final water quality sampling will take place in September. Sediment sampling and release rate
experiments will occur in September or October, and the results will help inform next steps for
improving the pond’s water quality.

J. Evaluation of compliance with South Metro Mississippi River total suspended solids (TSS)
total maximum daily load (TMDL) (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project
managers: Eric Korte, Nicole Soderholm)

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the RWMWD’s compliance with the South Metro Mississippi
River TSS TMDL. As a regulated municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4), the district is required to
meet the waste load allocations (WLA) of 154 pounds of TSS per acre per year. The WLA is applicable to
the RWMWD for the Saint Paul Beltline Interceptor and its contributing drainage area, as the district
owns and operates the infrastructure.

This period, the RWMWD received Saint Paul Beltline flow data from the Metropolitan Council. The district
shared this data with Barr for review and analysis to determine TSS loading from the Beltline’s tributary
drainage area. The goal is to inform TMDL reporting in 2023 for the South Metro Mississippi River TSS
TMDL. Additionally, the RWMWD and Barr will meet with the Metropolitan Council in October to review
the flow data and discuss transfer of the WOMP station to the district.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 6

Monitoring water quality and special projects

K. Annual water quality report assistance (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD
project manager: Eric Korte)

The purpose is to update and report on lake and stream water quality, monitoring of selected best
management practices (BMPs), and other water quality improvement projects that highlight district
efforts.

Primary activities during this period included organizing water quality data for lakes, streams, and BMPs;
developing tables and graphs for the 2021 report; writing the report; and adding project activities for
2021. The draft report was delivered to the RWMWD for review earlier this month.

Research projects

L. Kohlman permeable weir test system (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD
project manager: Bill Bartodziej)

The objective of this current investigation is to design a full-scale permeable weir treatment system for
installation in the Kohlman Basin.

Barr and the RWMWD are proceeding with broader implementation of the permeable weir pilot project
as part of the CIP maintenance and repairs project for 2023. During this period, floodplain modeling
confirmed that no changes in flood elevation are expected with the planned permeable weir
modifications. We also completed a site visit and continued developing the preliminary design.

In September, Barr prepared the wetland permit application and continued discussing permitting
requirements with the Department of Natural Resources (DNR). Since Kohlman Basin is considered a
state “public waters,” a DNR permitting process is associated with the modifications.

M. Shallow lake aeration study (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD project
manager: Bill Bartodziej)

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the potential effectiveness of aeration in shallow lakes by
studying the effect of aeration in three smaller shallow systems (Markham Pond, Bennett Lake, and
Gervais Mill Pond) in detail during 2021 and 2022. This approach is being pursued as an alternative to
whole-lake alum treatments.

Markham Pond, Bennett Lake, and Gervais Mill Pond are serving as the study sites. The aerator in
Markham Pond operated all winter and will continue to do so through the fall. The City of Roseville
installed a limited aeration system in the east bay of Bennett Lake, and Gervais Mill Pond will have an
aerator installed in the north bay in 2022 when equipment is available (currently backordered).
Dissolved oxygen meters have been installed, and monitoring is underway. As a reminder, this
experimental design will provide comparison of:

= |nternal loading in Markham Pond without (2021) and with (2022) aeration

= Internal loading in Gervais Mill Pond for a bay with aeration to a bay without aeration (2022)

= |nternal loading in the west bay of Bennett Lake (no aeration) to the east bay of Bennett Lake
(with aeration) in 2022



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 7

Recent activities have included collecting August sampling data, reviewing and planning for September
sampling, organization and review of May to August data for completeness and accuracy, and data
management.

Capital improvements

N. Target store stormwater retrofit projects (Barr project manager: Katie Turpin-Nagel;
RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg)

The purpose of this project is to design, provide bid assistance for, and oversee construction of BMP
retrofits at two Target retail stores.

The one-year plant warranty expired in June at the East Saint Paul Target site. Some plants were
replaced in July, and Barr is working with the contractor to complete replacements this fall to satisfy the
warranty. The RWMWD coordinated a watering schedule with Ramsey Conservation District to support
the plantings through the dry season.

The one-year plant warranty will expire in early November at the North Saint Paul Target site. To
increase the probability of success of the replacement plants, Barr contacted the Contractor 1.5 months
early so that the replacement plants could be installed between September 15 and October 15, 2022.
Barr met the Contractor onsite on September 13 to review the plant and tree health. The plants marked
for replacement were replaced by the Contractor on September 20. This project is now complete, and
no further updates are anticipated.

For the Woodbury Target store, a scope of work is included in this month’s Board packet, which outlines
the proposed tasks, schedule, and budget for the project. Barr will begin work on the Woodbury Target
Stormwater Retrofits project in October, pending Board approval.

O. Targeted retrofit projects (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager:
Paige Ahlborg)

The purpose of this project is to design, provide bid assistance for, and oversee construction of BMP
retrofits on previously identified commercial, school, and faith-based properties throughout the district.

Planting is finished at Mounds Park Academy, completing this portion
of the project. Pay application 2 is included for payment.

St. Pascal Baylon Catholic Church

began construction just before Labor

Day, with completion of the
subcontracted work in the Saint Paul right of way that was noted at the
September board meeting in change order 2. Since then, excavation
and installation of the tree trench has been underway, as shown
below. We anticipate that the project will be finished in early October.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 8

Preliminary design and owner coordination is underway for Roosevelt Homes (owned by the Saint Paul
Public Housing Authority), a potential project for 2023 construction. Barr and the RWMWD are
coordinating with the City of Saint Paul to help inform improvements.

New potential targeted retrofit project: Pioneer Park Stormwater Reuse

In 2021, Barr completed a stormwater reuse assessment for Ramsey County. The objective of the
project was to perform a county-wide assessment to identify opportunities for stormwater reuse for
irrigation in order to conserve groundwater and protect/improve surface water quality. This assessment
was funded by a Board of Water and Soils Resources (BWSR) Clean Water Fund Watershed Based
Funding Grant and Ramsey County. The various parcels across the county were initially prioritized using
a desktop assessment approach. Ramsey County then contacted landowners for the highest-ranking
sites. Based on landowner interest, conceptual reuse designs were ultimately developed and evaluated
for seven sites. These planning level concepts were based on site visits and information provided by the
property owners/representatives. Five of the seven sites were located within the Ramsey-Washington
Metro Watershed District.

Based on the information compiled as part of the Ramsey County assessment, the projects were input
into the RWMWD water quality project prioritization tool and all projects fell within the top 10 projects
for the District. One of the highest-ranking parcels for stormwater reuse potential identified by the
Ramsey County assessment is Pioneer Park, a public site located at 2950 Centerville Rd., in the City of
Little Canada. Pioneer Park is drains to Gervais Creek and ultimately Gervais Lake. The site currently
irrigates 11.2 acres, including several athletic fields from an irrigation well, using an average of
approximately 2.2 million gallons per year of groundwater for irrigation. The stormwater reuse
assessment for Ramsey County outlined a conceptual stormwater reuse system that would pump and
treat (filtration and UV disinfection) the top one foot of water within the existing two constructed
stormwater ponds on the east side of the site, which is estimated to meet 85-90% of the average annual
irrigation demand for the site. The existing well will be used for backup water supply if water is not
available from the defined storage in the basins.

RWMWD staff have been working with City staff regarding potential implementation of the reuse
project in Pioneer Park. A scope summary and budget for the Pioneer Park Stormwater Reuse Project
will be included in the November Board packet for the managers’ consideration.

P. Stewardship grant program — street sweeping (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean and
Michael McKinney; RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg)

The purpose of this project is to is to a) provide BMP design and review services to cost-share applicants
throughout the RWMWD on as-needed basis and b) support development of the stewardship grant
program.

Barr continued working on the street sweeping prioritization study. We finished all data processing and
initial runs of the district-wide model, and QA/QC is underway. The project abstract for this work was
accepted for a presentation at the Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts fall conference. We
plan to complete initial prioritization calculations by the end of this month.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 9

Q. Lake Emily subwatershed regional BMP (Barr project manager: Leslie DellAngelo;
RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg

The purpose of this project is to complete final design, plans, and specifications for a regional
stormwater BMP in the Lake Emily subwatershed with the purpose of decreasing phosphorus loads to
Lake Emily, which is deemed to be at risk of impairment from excess nutrients.

This period, Barr conducted the design survey, which included topographic survey, utility locations,
detailed storm sewer survey, and staking of the proposed soil boring locations. Filtration medias for
both the Arbogast Street and Vivian Avenue/Cobb Street BMPs were selected based on performance of
existing filtration BMPs in the district and other locations in the Twin Cities. We have begun final design
and 30-percent plans for both designs and will prepare updated cost estimates and water quality
benefits for the November meeting.

CIP project repair and maintenance

R. Beltline five-year inspection (Barr project manager: Sam Redinger, RWMWD project
manager: Dave Vlasin)

The purpose of this project is to maintain the existing Beltline and Battle Creek tunnel systems and
infrastructure owned and operated by the RWMWD.

Over the next few periods, Barr will evaluate findings to develop the inspection report. The report will
likely be complete in early 2023.

S. District inspection standardization (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project
manager: Tina Carstens)

The purpose of this project is to standardize the district’s creek and facilities inspection process,
evaluation, and related data collection effort. Work includes review of current methods, development of
a scoring system, and implementation of mobile data collection.

This period, Barr and the RWMWD reviewed results from the annual CIP inspection to create a draft list
of CIP projects for next year. Barr also drafted a summary memorandum for the inspection
standardization tool, which summarizes the methodology used to create the tool and recommended
future actions. Tyler Olsen will attend the October board meeting to demonstrate the tool and
summarize results.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 10

T. New technology report: Miyawaki Mini-Forest Assessment (MFA) (Barr project manager:
Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

Definition The Miyawaki Forest Assessment is a method to restore a high-functioning forest

successfully and quickly in depleted landscapes

Takeaways = The Miyawaki Method is a technique pioneered by Japanese botanist Akira
Miyawaki that helps build dense, diverse, multi-layered native forests.

= The technique is based on natural reforestation principles (i.e., using trees native to
the area and replicating natural forest regeneration processes).

= |t has some significant benefits over more traditional forestry methods when used
in smaller afforestation projects and is particularly effective in the urban
environment.

= One of the most noticeable differences between a Miyawaki Forest and traditional
methods is that the seedlings are planted at very high densities.

= |n context of the current climate change emergency and stark warnings about the
global loss of biodiversity, being able to create diverse, healthy forests quickly could
prove vital to tackle these issues.

Application = Survey local forest for potential natural vegetation (PNV, or vegetation in an area
without human intervention) tree species

= Determine forest community structure: identify main canopy trees, companion tree
species, shrub, and ground cover

= Source seed and tree saplings (growing saplings from native seed sources)

= Assess soil health and potential soil amendments (natural amendments, i.e.,
compost)

= Plant tree seedlings randomly at a high density (tree spacing every 2 to 3 feet
instead of traditional methods of every 10.5 feet)

= Apply mulch, which should be sourced from local materials

= Water and weed for two to three years

Benefits = Fast urban forest or landscape restoration

= Grows 10 times faster and is 30 times denser

= Restores high-functioning and diverse forest (multistrata, or layered forest)

= Planting in high density creates competition (faster growth rate)

= Planting in high density encourages plant collaboration (subgrade interactions),
increasing resiliency

= High tree success rate (proven around the world with a 97-percent success rate for
tree survival)

= Becomes maintenance-free after two to three years (due to increased interaction
and support through subgrade plant collaboration)

= Chemical-free, sustains itself, and supports local biodiversity

= 30 times better noise and dust reduction than traditional reforestation methods

= Fast and increased carbon sequestration in the soil

= Reduces air pollution and soil contamination in urban environments

= Improves water absorption to buffer against flooding and erosion in degraded
landscapes

= Cools the surrounding area to mitigate urban heat island effect in urban
environments

= Encourages native biodiversity

Creates habitat




To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 11

Drawbacks = Utilizes PNV, an outdated concept describing what vegetation might be in a given
place without human intervention

= PNV methodology does not incorporate the concept of climate change, and
incorporating selective (non-hyperlocal) trees may be useful depending on project
goals

Conclusion = Very productive for quick and successful forest ecosystem restoration

= Proven to work around the globe as a tool for native forest regeneration

= Could be a critical tool in our fight against the climate crisis and global loss of
habitat and biodiversity

Description

A Miyawaki Forest is an ultra-dense, biodiverse pocket forest that recreates the complexity,
relationships, and processes of natural forests that help them grow strong and resilient. At the core of
the concept, Miyawaki Forest Assessment is a strategy for fast and effective ecosystem restoration. The
planting of dense, diverse, and native plant communities allows for utilization of the basic principles of
forest ecology and ecological succession, creating an opportunity for competition and cooperation
between vegetation.

Many scientific studies have shown positive interactions within plant communities that can impact the
success of a forest or an individual within a forest. Within a plant community, direct positive plant
interactions and complex indirect positive plant interactions lead to overall enhanced community
development and increased plant resiliency. In many cases, such as with the Miyawaki Method, plant
communities become a physical entity instead of multiple single plants acting as isolated individuals. A
plant community acting as a single entity allows the diversity of a forest to weather times of drought
and disease that an individual plant could not.

The Miyawaki Method utilizes also notably utilizes ecological succession. When a clearing in a forest
canopy opens due to a larger tree falling, the saplings grow very fast to compete for the newfound light
and space. Natural selection favors the fastest growing individuals. The result is a densely packed
pioneer forest that grows in 20 to 30 years instead of the same result but over a longer period (closer to
150 to 200 years). The Miyawaki Method utilizes this principle in combination with plant cooperation to
create a dynamic and fast-growing forest.

The outcome of these interactions allows the Miyawaki Method to create advanced and thriving
forests—forests that can boost natural ecosystem functions and provide pockets of pollinator habitat.
They can sequester carbon in the soil, reduce air pollution and soil contamination, improve water
absorption to buffer against flooding, reduce erosion rates and increase water quality, and cool the
surrounding area to mitigate the urban heat island effect. The Miyawaki Method has obvious benefits
for projects that aim to maximize a forest’s carbon sequestration, recreation, habitat, biodiversity,
wildlife, or water quality.

Background

Akira Miyawaki developed the Miyawaki Method for planting trees in the late 1950s as a graduate
student. He took the concept of potential natural vegetation (PNV) and merged it with his studies of
phytosociology, or the way plants interact. PNV was a new concept at the time that used the most
adapted species or species at an expected state of maturity within an ecosystem without or in the
absence of human intervention. PNV states that these adapted species are native species, are built to
optimize ecological resilience, and provide the most biodiversity on a site.




To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 12

After studying both PNV and
phytosociology, Miyawaki
visited old growth forests and
observed stratification of
layered vegetation within the
ecosystems. Vegetation fell into
four groups: main tree species,
subspecies, shrubs, and ground-
covering herbs. He used these
observed layered categories
along with his knowledge of
PNV and phytosociology to
develop the Miyawaki Method
for planting forests.

The Miyawaki Method

The Miyawaki Method is a simple, site-specific concept. It starts with an assessment of the soil. Soil
texture helps determine water-holding capacity, water infiltration, root perforation capacity, nutrient
retention, and erodibility. Amendments can then be

added to enhance poor or unsuitable soil, including to

improve soil perforation, water retention, organic

fertilizers, or the addition of mulch as a soil cover.

Next, a selection of planting species creating a plant
community would be made based on the four
observed vegetation categories (main tree,
subspecies, shrubs, ground cover). This selection
would be based off native plant material—what would
be naturally growing if humans had not impacted the
site.

The Miyawaki Mini-Forest should be a minimum of 10

feet in width (15 feet is preferred) and about 1,000

square feet, incorporating the equivalent of

approximately 350 trees. Seedlings would be planted

densely (two to seven trees per square meter, or

about 30 times as dense as commercial forestry) and watered, weeded, and monitored for a period of
two to three years. During this process of initial growth, plantings compete, subsequently encouraging
faster growth. The density of the plantings also promotes the growth of complex community structures
and positive interactions leading to plant cooperation and greater resiliency. After two to three years of
maintenance, plant communities can become self-sustaining and continue to function as advanced
forest communities without human intervention.

Steps

= Survey local forest fragments and identify PNV tree species that are best suited to the
conditions.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 13

= Determine the forest community structure. Identify the main canopy and tree layer species and
select companion species, shrubs, and ground cover based on their compatibility with the key
species.

=  Conduct a soil survey to help determine the required type of mulch and soil nutrients.

= Source seeds and tree saplings. Check the availability of native species saplings at your local
nursery as well as their age and height. The ideal height is 2 to 2.5 feet.

= Treat the soil and seedlings with soil improvers or a mycorrhizal improver.
=  Plant the seedlings randomly and at high density (every 2 to 3 feet) with stakes for support.

=  Apply a mulch made from local materials to protect and nourish the seedlings. This simulates
the protection offered by humus and leaf litter in a natural forest.

=  Water regularly and keep the site weed free for the first two years.

Growth benefits

= Trees in a Miyawaki Forest grow up to 10 times faster at around a meter per year, reaching a
stable multi-layered forest community in 20 to 30 years instead of hundreds of years.

= The growing trees absorb more carbon in a Miyawaki Forest than in a plantation or in standard
afforestation projects because there are thirty times as many trees and they grow more quickly.

= The Miyawaki Method has been successful where other planting projects have failed, such as in
arid Mediterranean habitats, due to high survival rates within the growing method.

= Native trees thrive in the conditions to which they are adapted and are more resilient to
environmental changes.

=  Miyawaki Forests have been found to have far higher biodiversity than neighboring woodland—
on average, 18 times higher.

Ecological, climate, and human benefits

The Miyawaki Forest provides numerus benefits and multiple ecosystem services. All services and
benefits are dependent on site and location. Many benefits can be amplified when the forests are
planted in urban environments where natural systems are greatly disturbed. General benefits can
include air pollution removal, oxygen production, climate management (cooling through
evapotranspiration and shade), carbon sequestration, stormwater management (runoff/stormwater
reduction, increased water quality, reduced erosion rates), habitat creation (pollinator habitat and
habitat pockets or creation of habitat corridors), and energy savings through reduction in heating or
cooling costs or protection from wind. Non-direct human-specific benefits can also occur from
producing more habitable urban environments. Reduced urban heat island and mitigated pollution
levels can create more pedestrian friendly environments, which can directly translate to reduced
pollution or heat-related illness or health complications or increased pedestrian transportation such as
walking and biking.

Case studies

The Miyawaki Method has been used successfully around the world. Akira Miyawaki has planted over 40
million trees using his method in more than 15 countries. The ability to quickly create a dense native
forest has made the technique useful around the world. Below is an image from a company called SUGi,
which has utilized the Miyawaki Method around the globe. One reason that the Miyawaki Method has



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 14

been successful is its simple ecological-based framework that focuses on site-specific conditions. A few
additional U.S. case studies are highlighted below.

SUGI https://www.sugiproject.com/

Franconia Sculpture Park Forest (Shafer, MN): https://www.franconia.org/lu-xu/ and
https://www.naturalurbanforests.com/franconia

This project, Liang’s Tears, was implemented in 2016 as part of an art installation by Lu Xu. The art
installation connects Beijing and the forest using the Miyawaki Method. Little is known about the
current status of the installation. The images below show the process through the first three years.


https://www.sugiproject.com/
https://www.franconia.org/lu-xu/
https://www.naturalurbanforests.com/franconia

To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 15

Danehy Park Forest (Cambridge, MA): https://www.sugiproject.com/projects/danehy-park-forest

Danehy Park is a 50-acre recreational facility built on the site of a former city landfill, which was closed
to active dumping in the early 1970s. The city subsequently reclaimed what would have been a
wasteland and turned it into a community resource. At Danehy Park, the Miyawaki Method was utilized
to plant over 1,400 trees in 4,300 square feet with more than 32 native species.


https://www.sugiproject.com/projects/danehy-park-forest

To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 16

Tu’paxin (Yakama Nation, USA): https://www.sugiproject.com/projects/tu-paxin

This forest is named after Debra, a member of the Yakama Nation in central Washington State. Debra
grew up going to the mountains every weekend with her family to camp, hike, fish, gather, and hunt.
Her Indian name is Tu’paxin; she is named after her great grandmother, a strong and protective figure
for the tribe. Tu’paxin will be an inspirational and educational forest for the Yakama community in the
shape of a medicinal wheel. The Miyawaki Method was utilized to plant over 1,400 trees in 4,400 square
feet with more than 42 native species.



https://www.sugiproject.com/projects/tu-paxin

To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 17

Conclusion

The Miyawaki Forest is a very productive method for quick and successful forest ecosystem restoration.
A significant number of benefits are associated with the growth of a forest, especially in an urban or
otherwise degraded environment. The Miyawaki Method provides a reliable and fast forest with very
little associated maintenance and becomes self-sustaining after only a few years of growth. This
restoration method could be a successful tool for watershed districts.

There are very few drawbacks associated the Miyawaki Method for forest revegetation. The only minor
flaw is the method’s reliance on PNV—a theory that requires the use of native vegetation and does not
incorporate the changing climate. However, the Miyawaki Method can easily be adjusted to modern day
realities and include vegetation that might be better suited for a changing climate. Even without a
climate change modification, the Miyawaki Method has been incredibly successful (an approximately
97-percent success rate) and a useful tool around the globe to restore native forests.

The Miyawaki Forest could be a productive tool in the context of our current climate crisis and stark
warnings about global loss of biodiversity. The Miyawaki Method provides a high-functioning, diverse,
and healthy forest quickly and could be a vital method in our fight against today’s challenges.

References

e https://daily.jstor.org/the-miyawaki-method-a-better-way-to-build-forests/

e https://urban-forests.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Urban-Forests-report-The-Miyawaki-
method-%E2%80%93-Data-concepts.pdf

e https://www.naturalurbanforests.com/

e https://bengaluru.citizenmatters.in/how-to-make-mini-forest-miyawaki-method-34867

e https://www.sugiproject.com/

e https://www.creatingtomorrowsforests.co.uk/blog/the-miyawaki-method-for-creating-forests



https://daily.jstor.org/the-miyawaki-method-a-better-way-to-build-forests/
https://urban-forests.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Urban-Forests-report-The-Miyawaki-method-%E2%80%93-Data-concepts.pdf
https://urban-forests.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Urban-Forests-report-The-Miyawaki-method-%E2%80%93-Data-concepts.pdf
https://www.naturalurbanforests.com/
https://bengaluru.citizenmatters.in/how-to-make-mini-forest-miyawaki-method-34867
https://www.sugiproject.com/
https://www.creatingtomorrowsforests.co.uk/blog/the-miyawaki-method-for-creating-forests

To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 18

U. Natural Resources Update — Bill Bartodziej and Matt Doneux

Volunteer and Supplemental Plantings at Several Restoration Sites

Late summer - early fall is an excellent time to install native plants. Lower temperatures and soaking
rainfall events typically result in high plant survival rates. Over the last month, the NR team was able to
conduct supplemental plantings in numerous restoration areas, including Lake Phalen, Keller Lake, Keller
Golf Course, Keller Creek, and Wetland A. Watershed staff also had the opportunity to work with a
volunteer team from 3M. The main focus of this volunteer planting event was to install 2,500 prairie and
wetland plants in a no-play area on Goodrich Golf Course. Although the weather was less than ideal, a
group of around 20 volunteers got their hands a bit muddy and had a good time in taking part to create
high quality habitat on the course. Below are a few photos and descriptions from our late season
planting efforts.

NR staff restored the old Lake Phalen boat ramp (concrete slabs were removed last year). The soil was
mechanically tilled, a gravel layer was redistributed, and then covered with a compost-soil mixture.



To:
From:
Subject:
Date:

Board of Managers and Staff

Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Project and Program Status Report September 2022
September 29, 2022

Page 19

A custom native seed mix was
spread over the site and then a
degradable erosion control blanket
was installed. Over 20 prairie and
wetland shore species were then
introduced via 3” containers.

After completing the installation,
the site was fenced off to limit foot
traffic. Educational signage was
placed on the fence to let park
users know of the new buffer
restoration area.

Throughout the growing season,
NR staff has battled weeds along
the southern end of the Wetland-A
restoration. After a substantial
weeding event last week, staff
installed additional prairie plants
amongst the already established
one-year-old native plants. This
will provide additional plant
community diversity, and shows of
color throughout future growing
seasons.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 20

The northern buffer (phase I) restoration of Wetland-A was a visual treat this year.

On a chilly, damp September morning, volunteers from 3M joined NR and Ramsey County Park staff at Goodrich
Golf Course, assembled to assist with our ongoing efforts to restore native habitat to no-play areas. The group
cheerfully worked for several hours through intermittent showers, installing 2400 wildflowers and grasses in a
nearly quarter-acre site between two fairways. This planting, combined with other project areas at Goodrich,
will provide food and shelter to butterflies, bees and songbirds, while improving infiltration and reducing runoff.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 21

The 3M crew was really enthusiastic to take part in the restoration. Although events like these take
additional time in planning, it really helps to educate and get the word out regarding watershed
projects in our community.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 22

V. Public Involvement and Education Program — Sage Passi

Re-engaging with Lionsgate Academy in the Classroom and Gardens

Our education team made a huge comeback at Lionsgate Academy this fall, teaching fourteeen
classrooms in September. That is a record number of classes at one school! Located in Shoreview,
Lionsgate Academy focuses on educating youth on the autism spectrum. In 2019, the school moved into
a commercial area, removed a huge area of parking lot and converted it into a large rain garden and
open space with native gardens with support from our watershed. When we began this partnership, we
interfaced with several science classes throughout the school year and engaged them in growing native
plants, a field trip and planting the rain garden as a culminating service learning experience. The science
teacher who had been the champion for our successful engagement, retired after we “finished” this
large-scale project. Then Covid hit and we were not able to go into the school. Over the last three years,
since this project was planted, we have helped care for this huge retrofit project on their site with the
assistance of maintenance contractors, a Master Naturalist and a former Farnsworth teacher.

We wanted to reconnect with classes at this school this year, so we sat down with three science
teachers before school started and made plans for engaging their students this fall and in coming
months. In September, over a span of 10 days, we taught 14 science classes (grades 7-12) covering
various watershed topics (What is a watershed? What is run-off? How does water flow through our
Watershed District?) and introduced them to the projects on their site. We plan to return for further
lessons this coming year. Four of the science classes will be doing supplemental plantings in their “open
space” native gardens on September 29 and 30. We are planning a field trip with one of the classes to
our watershed demo office site on October 14.

The open space at Lionsgate Academy is heavily used by all classes at the school. While we were
spending time at the school, we generated a lot of interest in exploring the plants and wildlife and
explaining the purpose of the rain garden. We enjoyed engaging youth in learning about the plants
growing on the site, augering the soil to determine its capacity to infiltrate and explaining the reasons
why we did this project. We did experiments with many of the classes to compare run-off from pervious
and impervious surfaces (see photo on previous page). We are spending the last days of summer getting
this site up to shape. Alternative turf was intentionally planted in the main area to reduce the need for
irrigation, but it has moved into the perimeter native gardens (the seeds blow into the side gardens)



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 23

necessitating its removal. Some student have helped with that too. We look forward to the planting in
late September.

L’Etoile du Nord 4" Graders Help Us Finish the Boys and Girls Club Project

Nick Gasho’s fourth grade class from L’Etoile du Nord in St. Paul learn about plants that are growing at the Boys
and Girls Club and their relationship to pollinators through this activity on September 21.



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 24

Last fall two L’Etoile du Nord fifth grade classes stepped up to the plate to help us install native plants at
the East Side Boys and Girls Club large-scale native memorial garden in St. Paul. Similar to last year, we
were facing the end of the season and had limited availability of youth from the club to help us finish
this first phase of this project. It is an inevitable challenge in the fall.

Luckily, this year we did not have the added pressure and limitations of Covid impinging upon school
involvement, but we were still up against limited numbers of youth at the Club who could assist us. We
needed to complete the last part of this project before cold weather and do some supplemental
plantings and mulching around the newly installed split rail fence and other areas of the garden planted
last year to complete this grant-funded project. Over the summer youth from the Club helped keep the
garden watered, a Kohl’s team helped do some weeding and additional planting and watershed staff did
some occasional weeding. But youth availability at the Club decreases when school starts so to finish
projects we have to turn to other options. Just as school was starting this fall, we contacted one of our
long-time teachers, Nick Gasho and asked for his fourth grade class’ planting assistance at the Boys and
Girls Club on September 27. We knew they could help us get the job done because of our successful
history of collaboration with this school over many years and the class’ previous exposure to native
plantings as third graders in Henriette Bissoy’s science classes.

We arranged to do a pre-lesson in Nick’s class on September 23 and said we would find another
opportunity to engage the other 3/4%" grade class so they could also have a service learning experience
in October. After providing background in the classroom about the Boys and Girls Club project the week
before, we met up with Nick’s fourth grade class on September 27 at the garden site to do a round robin
of three activities. These included a hillside planting and supplemental planting in the main garden and
an introduction to the benefits of the pervious pavers in the Boys and Girls Club parking lot with the
assistance of Paige Alhborg through a hands-on experiment comparing run-off volume from imperious
versus impervious surfaces.

For the third activity, we invited Dana Boyle, a Master Naturalist to lead an art activity. Danais a
member of the St.Paul Garden Club who provided funding for this planting project. She invited students
to do chalk drawings on the sidewalks to illustrate their awareness of the role of pollinators in the
garden and the plants we chose to include in the garden. Three Ramsey County Master Gardeners and a
Master Naturalist provided planting assistance for the students. Bette Danielsen and Stuart Knappmiller,
two Water Stewards helped with set-up and planting. Below are photos from the day. We had great
weather! Thanks, everyone!



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 25

W. Communications and Outreach Program Report — Lauren Hazenson
Video and Content

Education Program Documentation and
Assistance

Lauren filmed and photographed in-
class activities and outdoor gardening
projects the Education program
completed with L’Etoile Du Nord and
Lionsgate Academy schools over several
weeks. The goal of gathering this
content is to create article features, and
videos showcasing the range of school-
based programming and document the
history of the Eastside Boys and Girls
Club project as it nears completion.
Video content at the Boys and Girls Club is planned as a short feature to be shown as part of the
sculpture unveiling celebration next spring.

Volunteer Planting Documentation and Assistance

This past month 3M volunteers assisted with the Goodrich Golf Course restoration planting. Due to the
rain, volunteer numbers were lower than expected. Lauren assisted with the planting in addition to
photographing the event. We also took and posted pictures of Keller Golf Course maintenance this
month to illustrate the importance of ongoing restoration maintenance in our management plan.

Water Steward Recruitment

Our water steward recruitment campaign will launch in early October with a short film on steward
projects, blog posts, and social media ads. Much of this content is already completed and is entered into
the communications calendar for optimal visibility.

Website Updates
Lake level station page

The design for the lake level one-stop page for the “Data” section of the site has been completed. We
will post it on the website and send an update to the Board as soon as the link is available.

Online permit payment system update

Our current payment processing requirements are a significant obstacle to permitting applicants to
submit their payments online; therefore, the online payment system has been delayed until credit card



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman

Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022

Date: September 29, 2022 Page 26

payments are more established at RWMWD. In the meantime, applicants will be provided the option to
call our office and submit a credit card payment on the phone or in person when the office reopens to
the public.

Recognition Dinner

Lauren is acting as the event project manager for the second year, which involves creating the event
preparation schedule, scheduling update meetings and key deadlines, and connecting with staff to
ensure event planning stays on target. She will complete the registration form, event invitation, and
nine awards videos in September and October. The recognition dinner is scheduled for Tuesday,
November 15" at 6 pm.

E-newsletter

Audience: 1,574
Opens:
Link clicks:

Social Media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram)

Numbers as of 9/26 :

Facebook

Reach: 4,125

Engagement (likes, shares, comments): 865
Audience: 1,307

Note: We gained 62 new followers this month thanks to a brief ad campaign encouraging those who live
in the District to follow us on Facebook. Our follower count has increased 72% since August 2020.

Instagram
Reach: 449
Engagement: 48
Audience: 708

Twitter

Reach: 494
Engagement: 14
Audience: 1,023

Resident Communications/Professional Development/ Public Meetings, Misc.
e Staff public communications support



To: Board of Managers and Staff

From: Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman
Subject: Project and Program Status Report September 2022
Date: September 29, 2022 Page 27

X. Citizen Advisory Committee Report — Carrie Magnuson
The Citizen Advisory Commission met on September 27, 2022. The group included staff members Carrie

Magnuson, Sage Passi and Lauren Hazenson, board member Val Eisele, and fourteen CAC members. The
following initiatives were discussed and further developed:

» Watershed Excellence Awards — Selection of awardees and program planning: The CAC reviewed
twelve nominations, and is recommended awardees for the Board to review. Those
recommendations will be sent to the board ahead of the meeting and the action is listed in the
October board packet under item 7A. Following Board approval of candidates, a formal letter will
go out to each individual.

The group also discussed the logistics of the Recognition Dinner including award presenters,
commissioning the physical award, and managing time effectively.
The CAC also reviewed projects being done by RWMWD staff and partners.

Future 2022 CAC meetings: October 25", December 13t



*kkhkhkkhkhkkhkhk

Board Action
Log

KEXKXKEKXEIEXXEAKXKAX



Board of Managers Action Log
Wednesday, September 7, 2022

Date Anticipated .
Added Item Action Date Means of Action Completed
Alum use for internal load
July control along with Fall/Winter .
2022 information on alternative 2022 Memo/Presentation
solutions.
PFAS (Per-
July polyilfjoi;aa:;];jsubstances) Fall/Winter Presentation — invite
2022 in MN and RWMWD’s role. 2022 MPCA representative
July Miyawaki Mini-Forest Fall 2022 Barr new technology Oct 2022
2022 Assessment report PSR

NOTE: Overflow parking is available at Little Canada City Hall Parking Lot




	RWMWD October 2022 Board Packet.pdf
	.divider pages

	2AAgenda 10052022 DRAFT.pdf
	RWMWD October 2022 Board Packet
	2B - 10052022 Board meeting notice
	Wednesday, October 5, 2022
	*5:00 PM and 7:00 PM
	Hybrid Meeting: In-Person and Web Conference

	.divider pages
	3A - 09-07-2022_Draft Minutes
	3B - September 2022 Bill List
	Budget Status Report-1
	Sep22

	Check Register-2
	RWMWD Check Register

	Cash Disbursements Journal-3
	Detail Listing

	Barr Engineering-4
	23621172_RWMWD_PayApp_02-20220920-5
	23621172_RWMWD_PayApp_02-Cover
	23621172_RWMWD_PayApp_02-Pg2

	Galowitz-6

	3C - Oct 2022 Board Packet_Permit_combined
	22-26 Coversheet
	22-26 Map
	22-26 Special Provisions
	22-27 Coversheet
	22-27 Map
	22-27 Special Provisions
	22-27 Plan
	22-28 Coversheet
	22-28 Map
	22-28 Special Provisions
	22-28 Plan

	3D - Pages from Oct Grant Items
	.divider pages
	5 - Permit items not on consent
	Pages from Oct 2022 Board Packet_Permit_combined.pdf
	Pages from Oct 2022 Board Packet_Permit_combined-2.pdf

	.divider pages
	6 - Oct Grant Items
	22-29 CS Woodbury Request
	Stewardship Grant Request

	SWWD City of Woodbury Sweeping Plan_FinalDRAFT_061722
	Oct Budget Status

	.divider pages
	7A - RBA10052022-7A Watershed Excellance Award Winner_Final
	.divider pages
	10A - Inspection and Maintenance
	RWMWD_InspectionMaintenancePrioritization_October-Mtg_PPT
	District Inspection Standardization Update
	Purpose
	Methodology Overview
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Category Development
	Criteria Development
	Slide Number 8
	Scoring System
	Slide Number 10
	Field Maps/ Survey 123 (iPad) application development
	Field Maps/ Survey 123 (iPad) application development
	Scoring/ Prioritization
	Scoring/ Prioritization
	2022 Annual Inspection
	Future Updates

	RWMWD_CIP_InspectionStandardization_Memorandum_final
	Technical memorandum
	1 Introduction
	2 Methodology
	2.1 Review previous inspection data and process
	2.2 Categorize types of inspections
	2.3 Develop scoring system
	2.4 Develop GIS application

	3 Inspection tool processes
	3.1 Field inspection tools process
	Figure 1: A screenshot of a section of the pond inspection template from Survey123
	Figure 2: Four prompts for the inspector at the end of each inspection

	3.2 Prioritization process
	3.3 Determining maintenance priorities

	4 Field collection 2022
	5 Future recommendations

	AppendixA_ExampleOnePageSummaries

	10B - Project Work Plan - Target Woodbury
	Project Work Plan
	Project Team
	Barr Team Roles
	District Staff
	Target Corp. Staff
	Scope of Work
	Budget
	Schedule

	Project Tracking - Project Milestones
	Phase 1 Budget Tracking (Engineering)
	Phase 2 Budget Tracking (Engineering)
	Monthly Updates
	Project Budget Tracking (2023 Construction - Contractor)
	Partial Payment Tracking (2023 Construction – Contractor)


	.divider pages
	11 - 10052022 Admin Report
	.divider pages
	12 - 2022 September PSR
	Note: The location, brief description, and current status of each project described below can be found on the 2022 RWMWD engineering services story map.
	Project feasibility studies
	A. Interim emergency response planning for district areas at risk of flooding (Barr project manager: Gareth Becker; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	B. Kohlman Creek flood risk reduction feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk along Kohlman Creek to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination with the cities of Maplewood and North Saint Paul...
	C. Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk on Kohlman Creek by diverting high flows to the historic County Ditch 17. Work includes coordination with stakeholders, evaluation of alternatives ...
	This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with Ramsey County and the county’s contractor to review the proposed locations and sizes of potential flood storage basins in Goodrich Golf Course. The county indicated that, in general, three of the four basins cou...
	Following the meeting, Barr began evaluating how Ramsey County’s comments impacted the size of the diversion and downstream peak water levels. On October 7, the county will review other changes within Goodrich Golf Course (not associated with this pro...
	Barr had planned a design charet with stakeholders for this fall. While we will still reconvene the stakeholder group, discussions with the county are guiding modifications to basin size and location.
	Next month, Barr anticipates collecting additional survey information needed for the feasibility evaluation of system improvements. We also expect to start reviewing the water quality monitoring data that the RWMWD collected this summer. Water quality...
	D. County Ditch 17 improvements feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk northeast of Wakefield Lake along historic County Ditch 17 to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination with the C...
	This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with the City of Maplewood to review potential system modifications to reduce flood risk along County Ditch 17. The city requested that the RWMWD evaluate an alternative that does not include impacts to Frost Avenue,...
	After the meeting, Barr began preparing a memorandum to document the methodology, alternatives for system modifications for flood risk reduction, and opinions of probable construction cost. Later this month, we will share a draft memorandum with the R...
	E. Phalen Village feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near Phalen Village north of Lake Phalen to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination with the City of Maplewood, ...
	This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with the City of Maplewood to solicit input on potential system modifications. The city suggested evaluating two additional modifications to the storm sewer system, noting that the planned street improvement project ...
	Next month, we anticipate sharing the draft memorandum with the RWMWD and the City of Maplewood. We will request comments on the summary and confirm that the city would support system modifications. The Phalen Village feasibility study will extend thr...
	F. Ames Lake area flood risk reduction planning study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose is to complete a planning-level evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near Ames Lake, supported by the City of Saint Paul. Work includes coordination discussions with Saint Paul; review of potential pipe alignments, land acquisi...
	This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with the Saint Paul Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) about potentially using vacant parcels near Ames Lake for flood risk reduction best management practices (BMPs). Specifically, two HRA-owned parcels south...
	Barr and the RWMWD met with Saint Paul Parks about expanding a planned water quality basin in Sackett Park, which would also provide some flood risk reduction for the surrounding area. Construction of the basin is awaiting MPCA notification of a grant...
	Finally, Barr and the RWMWD met with the City of Saint Paul to review our understanding of existing opportunities for flood risk reduction near Ames Lake. Based on input from the WRWG, we grouped locations by the potential for city support. Locations ...
	This planning-level study will extend through the fall. The next step is to prepare a memorandum summarizing stakeholder coordination and possible opportunities for flood risk reduction projects near Ames Lake. If a potential site is identified, a det...
	G. Owasso Basin area/North Star Estates improvements (Barr project manager: Sam Redinger; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	H. Double Driveway Pond optimization study (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

	Monitoring water quality and special projects
	K. Annual water quality report assistance (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD project manager: Eric Korte)

	Research projects
	M. Shallow lake aeration study (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD project manager: Bill Bartodziej)

	Capital improvements
	O. Targeted retrofit projects (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg)

	CIP project repair and maintenance
	R. Beltline five-year inspection (Barr project manager: Sam Redinger, RWMWD project manager: Dave Vlasin)
	S. District inspection standardization (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	T. New technology report: Miyawaki Mini-Forest Assessment (MFA) (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

	U. Natural Resources Update – Bill Bartodziej and Matt Doneux
	Volunteer and Supplemental Plantings at Several Restoration Sites
	Late summer - early fall is an excellent time to install native plants. Lower temperatures and soaking rainfall events typically result in high plant survival rates. Over the last month, the NR team was able to conduct supplemental plantings in numero...
	NR staff restored the old Lake Phalen boat ramp (concrete slabs were removed last year). The soil was mechanically tilled, a gravel layer was redistributed, and then covered with a compost-soil mixture.
	A custom native seed mix was spread over the site and then a degradable erosion control blanket was installed. Over 20 prairie and wetland shore species were then introduced via 3” containers.
	After completing the installation, the site was fenced off to limit foot traffic. Educational signage was placed on the fence to let park users know of the new buffer restoration area.
	Throughout the growing season, NR staff has battled weeds along the southern end of the Wetland-A restoration. After a substantial weeding event last week, staff installed additional prairie plants amongst the already established one-year-old native p...
	The northern buffer (phase I) restoration of Wetland-A was a visual treat this year.
	E-newsletter
	Social Media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram)


	.divider pages
	13A - 10052022 Board Action Log




